
The YouTube channel "City of Franklin WI" will be live streaming the Common Council meeting so that
the public will be able to view and listen to the meeting.

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofFranklinWIGov

CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

FRANKLIN CITY HALL - COMMON COUNCIL CHAMBERS
9229 WEST LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

AGENDA*
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 1, 2022, AT 6:30 P.M.

A. Call to Order and Roll Call.

B. 1.
2.

Citizen Comment Period.
Mayoral Announcement: A Proclamation in Support and Recognition of February 2022 as
"American Heart Month".

C. Approval ofMinutes:
1. Regular Common Council Meeting of January 18, 2022.
2. Special Common Council Meeting of January 25, 2022.

D. Hearings.

E. Organizational Business.

F. Letters and Petitions.

G. Reports and Recommendations:
1. Consent Agenda:

(a) Request to Purchase Replacement Inspection Services Vehicle in the Amount of
$28,467.

(b) Request from the Director of Health and Human Services to Approve a Contract to
Continue to Administer the Retail Food and Recreation Programs for the Wisconsin
Department ofAgriculture, Trade, and Consumer Protection.

(c) Polling Location Facility Usage/Indemnity Agreement with St. Martin of Tours
Church.

2. Approve a Three-Year Property Assessment Services Contract with Accurate Appraisal,
LLC.

3. A Motion to Rescind or Amend Resolution No. 2017-7318, a Resolution to Waive Water
Extension to Serve a Lot in the 5000 Block ofW. Minnesota Avenue.

4. A Preliminary Resolution Declaring Intent to Exercise Special Assessment Powers Granted
by Section 207-15 of the Municipal Code and Section 66.0701 of the State Statutes for
Installation of a Water Main on S. 50th Street from the Intersection of W. Minnesota
Avenue to a Point of Connection Approximately 250 Feet South on S. 50th Street and Also
Along W. Minnesota Avenue from a Point of Connection at the Intersection of S. 51st



Common Council Meeting Agenda
February 1, 2022
Page 2

Street to the Intersection of S. 49th Street and Then to a Point of Termination
Approximately 50 Feet North of W. Minnesota Avenue and Setting the Public Hearing
Date for April 4, 2022 at 6:30 P.M.

5. Standards, Findings and Decision of the City of Franklin Common Council Upon the
Application of Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC, Applicant, for a
Special Exception to Certain Natural Resource Provisions of the City of Franklin Unified
Development Ordinance.

6. Acceptance of Public Improvements in Conjunction with the "Development Agreement for
Tax Incremental Financing District No. 6 Public Improvements and Ryan Meadow
Subdivision."

7. Approval of a Job Description for the Position ofLaborer.
8. Watermain Project on S. Lovers Lane from W. St Martins Road to 7911 S. 100th Street.
9. Water Survey for Frontage Road Along S. Lovers Lane (U.S. 45/STH 100) from W. Herda

Place to S. Phyllis Lane.
10. A Resolution to Enter a License with Wisconsin Electric Power Company to Use Their

Property for a Linear Park from S. 116th Street/W. Mayers Drive to Municipal Boundary
with Muskego.

11. Status Update for the S. 116th Street Trail in the WISDOT 2022-2026 Transportation
Alternatives Program (TAP).

12. A Resolution for the Design and Implementation of the Streambank and Wetland
Restoration on Private Properties in the 7300 Block of S. 35th Street (TKN 761-9992-002,
761-9994-005, & 761-9997-003) in Cooperation with Root-Pike Watershed Initiative
Network.

13. A Resolution for the Design and Implementation of the Wetland Restoration at Water
Tower Park 8120 S. Lovers Lane Road (TKN 801-9986-000) in Cooperation with Root
Pike Watershed Initiative Network.

14. A Resolution Declaring Official Intent to Reimburse Expenditures up to $11.05 Million,
from Proceeds of Future Borrowing.

15. An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2021-2486, an Ordinance Adopting the 2022 Annual
Budget for the Capital Outlay Fund to Provide $15,819.25 of Appropriation and Funding
Resource for the Purchase of One Additional LUCAS-3 Automatic Chest Compression
Device, and Common Council Approval to Purchase the Device.

16. Recommendation from the Committee of the Whole Meeting of January 31, 2022:
(a) Demonstration of the LUCAS Device (Lund University Cardiac Assist System) by

the Fire Department.
(b) Kueny Architects, LLC Status Update Concerning the Department of Public Works

and Fire Needs Assessment Services Project.

H. Licenses and Permits.
Miscellaneous Licenses from License Committee Meeting of February 1, 2022.

I. Bills.
Request for Approval ofVouchers and Payroll.



Common Council Meeting Agenda
February 1, 2022
Page 3

J. Adjournment.

Supporting documentation and details of these agenda Items are available at Caty Hall during normal business hours

[Note Upon reasonable notice, efforts wall be made to accommodate the needs of d1sabled mdrvduals through appropriate ads and services
For add1tonal Information, contact the City Clerk's office at (414) 425-7500 ]

REMINDERS:

February 3
February 15
February 15
February 17

Plan Commission Meeting
Spring Primary (Whitnall School District Only)
Common Council Meeting
Plan Commission Meeting

7:00 p.m.
7:00 a.m. -- 8:00 p.m.
6:30 p.m.
7:00 p.m.



BLANK PAGE



Cit of 1franklin
tolamation

>
A PROCLAMATION IN SUPPORT AND RECOGNITION OF FEBRUARY 2022 AS

"AMERICAN HEART MONTH".

WHEREAS, According to the American Heart Association, heart disease is a leading cause of death
in the United States for both men and women; and according to the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention, one person dies every 37 seconds from heart disease and one in three American adults live with
some form of heart disease; and

WHEREAS, Heart disease is preventable by targeting risk factors such as smoking, high cholesterol
levels, and maintaining normal blood pressure; and

WHEREAS, the global COVID-19 disease pandemic poses significantly high risk to individuals
with cardiovascular disease; and public awareness of preventative measures is essential for heart health, it is
vital to support accessible heart healthy resources in our community; and

WHEREAS, February being American Heart Month, a federally designated event, it is time to
remind Franklin residents to focus on their hearts, and ways to prevent cardiovascular disease, by adopting
healthy habits; and

WHEREAS, The Mayor and Common Council support the Franklin Fire Department, by providing
for a I 00% paramedic staff level, the only Milwaukee County department with this distinction, and by
purchasing a LUCAS device for each of the three MED units; and

WHEREAS, the Franklin Health Department and Volition Franklin Youth will be participating in
heart healthy focused activities throughout the month of February by creating heart shaped valentines sharing
smoking and vaping prevention messaging with their peers and community members; and

WHEREAS, the Franklin Health Department and Volition Franklin will be partnering with the
Franklin Fire Department to facilitate a hands only CPR learning session for the general community and
offering options to sign up for a future CPR course for certification; and

WHEREAS, the Franklin Health Department will offer free walk-in blood pressure screenings each
Tuesday in February from I 0-11 am in the Health Department; and the Franklin Public Library is offering heart
healthy lifestyle programming such as yoga, stress management programs and healthy cooking classes.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE [T RESOLVED, That I, Mayor Steven R. Olson proclaim February 2022,
as American Heart Month in the City of Franklin.

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor



BLANK PAGE



ROLL CALL A.

CITIZEN COMMENT B. 1.

MAYORAL B.2.
ANNOUNCEMENT

MINUTES C.
JAN. 18, 2022

CONSENT AGENDA G. l.

RESCHEDULE (a)
4/5/2022 MTG.

I-YR. TOWING (b)
CONTRACT EXT.

RIFLES FOR POLICE (c)
SWAT TEAM

CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

JANUARY 18, 2022
MINUTES

The regular meeting of the Common Council was held on January 4,
2022 and called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor Steve Olson in the
Franklin City Hall Council Chambers, 9229 W. Loomis Road,
Franklin, Wisconsin. On roll call, the following were in attendance:
Alderman Ed Holpfer, Alderman Daniel Mayer, Alderwoman Kristen
Wilhelm, Alderwoman Shari Hanneman, Alderman Mike Barber and
Alderman John R. Nelson. Also present were City Engineer Glen
Morrow, Dir. of Administration Peggy Steeno, City Attorney Jesse A.
Wesolowski and City Clerk Sandra Wesolowski.

Citizen comment period was opened at 6:32 p.m. and closed at
6:52p.m.

Mayor Olson presented a Proclamation Declaring our Substantial
Appreciation and Respect for and to Adam Brett Walker II for His
Incredible Achievements in Life and for Being our Most Valuable
Player.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to approve the minutes of the regular
Common Council meeting of January 4, 2022, as presented at this
meeting. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to approve the following Consent
Agenda items:

Reschedule Common Council Meeting of April 5, 2022, to April 4,
2022, due to the Spring Election;

Approve one-year extension of Towing Contract with N&S Towing,
Inc. for 2022-2023;

Authorize the Police Department to purchase 7 SWAT rifles from the
Police Department Firearm Supplies account for an expenditure of up
to $13,000;

CHEST
COMPRESSION
DEVICES

DPW SALE OF
SURPLUS
EQUIPMENT

(d)

(e)

Authorize the Fire Department to purchase two additional LUCAS-3
automatic chest compression devices from the manufacturer Stryker, in
the amount of$31,638.50;

No action required on the results of the Department of Public Works
Sale of Surplus Equipment included in the Common Council meeting
packet; and



Common Council Meeting
January 18, 2022
Page 2

EMAIL ARCHIVING (f)
APPLIANCE

RES. 2022-7714 G.2.
RATIFICATION OF A
PROCLAMATION
EXTENSION OF
COVID-19

COVID UPDATE G.2.(a)

FTE TO REPLACE G.3.
EMT WITH
FIREFIGHTER
PARAMEDIC

BALLPARK G.4.
COMMONS UPDATE

RES. 2022-7715 G.5.
SPECIAL USE FOR
FOOD PROCESSING
OPERATION AT W.
OAKWOOD RD. AND
S. 27TH ST. (SAPUTO

Authorize the purchase of an Intradyn 4TB IAlO email archiving
appliance at a total cost of $13,425, as budgeted for in the 2022
Information Services Computer Equipment Capital Outlay Budget and
1 year of Software Maintenance and Support and CloudSync DR
Cloud-Based Backup for the appliance at a total cost of $8,079, as
budgeted for in the 2022 Information Services Equipment Maintenance
Budget.

Seconded by Alderman Holpfer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to approve Resolution No. 2022-7714,
A RESOLUTION IN RATIFICATIAON OF A PROCLAMATION
TO RESURRECT, REVIVE, REINSTATE AND EXTEND THE
TIME PERIOD OF THE PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY
PROVIDED FOR IN RESOLUTION NO. 2021-7703, IN PART
ENTITLED A RESOLUTION IN RATIFICATION OF A
PROCLAMATION TO EXTEND THE TIME PERIOD OF THE
PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY PROVIDED FOR IN
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-7653, IN PART ENTITLED A
RESOLUTION TO AMEND A RESOLUTION IN RATIFICATION
OF A PROCLAMATION DECLARING A PUBLIC HEALTH
EMERGENCY IN RESPONSE TO THE CORONAVIRUS DISEASE
2019 (COVID-19), AS AMENDED AND IN PART WITH REGARD
TO THE OMICRON VARIANT SURGE, UNTIL FEBRUARY 15,
2022. Seconded by Alderman Mayer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

No action was taken on the COVID update distributed by the Franklin
Director of Health and Human Services/Health Officer.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to approve the following: Adjust
authorized staffing full-time equivalencies (FTEs) to replace the sole
current Firefighter-Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) with a
Firefighter-Paramedic. Seconded by Alderman Mayer. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

No action was taken following the presentation of Project updates by
Mike Zimmerman, Ballpark Commons.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to approve Resolution No. 2022-7715,
A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE TO ALLOW A 310,485
SQUARE FOOT "OFFICE/LIGHT INDUSTRIAL FLEX SPACE" TO
DEVELOP A FOOD PROCESSING OPERATION, INCLUDING
THE PROVISION OF MATERIALS DELIVERY, PROCESSING,



Common Council Meeting
January 18, 2022
Page 3

CHEESE USA, INC.
APPLICANT)

ORD. 2022-2492
CREATE UDO
SECTION 15-3.0445
PDDNO.40
(CAPE CROSSING)

G.6.

PACKAGING AND DISTRIBUTION OF FOOD PRODUCTS, WITH
SUPPORTING OFFICE AND EMPLOYEE WELFARE FACILITIES
UPON PROPERTY LOCATED ON THE EASTERN HALF OF THE
PARCEL AT THE INTERSECTION OF WEST OAKWOOD ROAD
AND SOUTH 27TH STREET, OTHERWISE KNOWN AS LOT 2 OF
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 9362, ZONED PLANNED
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 39 (MIXED USE BUSINESS
PARK). Seconded by Alderwoman Wilhelm. On roll call, all voted
Aye. Motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to refer back to Plan Commission for review
of each question and answer and review of soil report, an Ordinance to
Create Section 15-3.0445 of the Franklin Unified Development
Ordinance Establishing Planned Development District No. 40 (Cape
Crossing) and to Rezone Property From R-3 Suburban/Estate Single
Family Residence District and C-1 Conservancy District to Planned
Development District No. 40 (12200 West Ryan Road). Seconded by
Alderman Mayer.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to call the question. Seconded by
Alderman Barber. On roll call to call the question, Alderman Holpfer,
Alderwoman Hanneman, and Alderman Barber voted Aye; Alderman
Mayer, Alderwoman Wilhelm, and Alderman Nelson voted No.
Mayor Olson broke the tie by Aye; motion carried.

For the vote on the main motion, Alderman Mayer, Alderwoman
Wilhelm, and Alderman Nelson voted Aye; Alderman Holpfer,
Alderwoman Hanneman, and Alderman Barber voted No. Mayor
Olson broke the tie by voting No; motion failed.

Alderwoman Hanneman then moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2022-
2492, AN ORDINANCE TO CREATE SECTION 15-3.0445 OF THE
FRANKLIN UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE
ESTABLISHING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 40
(CAPE CROSSING) AND TO REZONE PROPERTY FROM R-3
SUBURBAN/ESTATE SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCE DISTRICT
AND C-1 CONSERVANCY DISTRICT TO PLANNED
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 40 (12200 WEST RYAN ROAD).
Seconded by Alderman Barber. On roll call, Alderman Barber,
Alderwoman Hanneman, and Alderman Holpfer voted Aye; Alderman
Nelson, Alderwoman Wilhelm, and Alderman Mayer voted No.
Mayor Olson broke the tie by voting Aye; motion carried.



Common Council Meeting
January 18, 2022
Page 4

SENIOR CITIZENS G.7.
TRAVEL UPDATE

WI DNR URBAN G.8.
FORESTRY GRANT

ATC COMMUNITY G.9.
PLANTING GRANT

RES. 2022-7816 G.10.
CONTRACT WITH
HAUSCH DESIGN
AGENCY, LLC FOR
SEWER PROJECT
MESSAGING
PROGRAM

RES.2022-7817 G.11.
AGREEMENT WITH
R.A. SMITH FOR
WATERMAIN
PROJECT TID NO. 6
(W. RYAN RD.)

PRELIMINARY RES. G.12.
SPECIAL
ASSESSMENT FOR
WATER MAIN INS.
50TH ST. AND W.
MINNESOTA AVE.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to accept and place on file the Franklin
Senior Citizens Travel Program Update for 2021 year end. Seconded
by Ald. Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to authorize the Department of Public
Works to accept and use the Wisconsin Department of Natural
Resources Urban Forestry Grant funds and matching funds provided by
the City of Franklin. Seconded by Alderman Mayer. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to authorize the Department of Public
Works to accept and use the American Transmission Company
Community Planting Program grant funds as specified by the terms of
the grant. Seconded by Alderman Mayer. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to adopt Resolution No. 2022-7816, A
RESOLUTION TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH HAUSCH
DESIGN AGENCY, LLC TO DEVELOP A MESSAGING
PROGRAM FOR FRANKLIN SEWER UTILITIES
PROJECT/PRIVATE PROPERTY INFILTRATION & INFLOW
REDUCTION PROJECT FOR $31,000, subject to liability insurance
changes as authorized by the Director of Administration. Seconded by
Alderwoman Wilhelm. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to adopt Resolution No. 2022-7817, A
RESOLUTION FOR A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
WITH R.A. SMITH, INC. FOR AW. RYAN ROAD WATERMAIN
PROJECT SERVING TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT NO. 6 FOR
$142,900 and to further direct Staff to bid project in 2022. Seconded by
Alderwoman Wilhelm. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Nelson vacated his seat at 8:52 p.m. and returned to his seat
at 8:54p.m.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to authorize staff to prepare a bid for the
South 50th Street stub with a north/south water stub extending to West
Minnesota Avenue, and to include an alternate bid, for an east/west
water line along West Minnesota Avenue between South 51st and
South 49th Streets, and further to survey the affected residents per
Resolution No. 93-3955, which includes providing costs estimates at
the time of survey, based on the alternate bid results; returning to the
Common Council on the first meeting of each month with a brief
update until the project(s) are complete. Seconded by Alderman
Nelson. Alderwoman Wilhelm withdrew her motion and Alderman



Common Council Meeting
January 18, 2022
Page 5

LICENSES AND
PERMITS

VOUCHERS AND
PAYROLL

H.

I.

Nelson withdrew his second. All voted in favor of allowing the motion
to be withdrawn.

Alderwoman Wilhelm then moved to have the City Engineer survey
property owners as appropriate and return to the Common Council with
Resolution No. 2017-7318 for reconsideration. Seconded by Alderman
Nelson. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Mayor Olson vacated his seat at 9: 11 p.m. and returned to his seat at
9:25 p.m.

Alderman Nelson moved to approve the following:

Grant 2021-2022 Operator License to: Shannon Corcoran, Jessica
Deangelis, Amanda Losiniecki, Jena Obarski ; and

Grant 2021-2022 Day Care License to Mrs. Rikki's Structured
Daycare, 11224 W Forest Home Ave, Lisa Norgel, President, with
verification on complete background check.

Seconded by Alderwoman Wilhelm. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm vacated her seat at 9:27 p.m. and returned to her
seat at 9:35 p.m. (during Item G.13.).

Alderman Barber moved to approve the following: City vouchers with
an ending date of January 14, 2022 in the amount of $997,909.56 and
payroll dated January 14, 2022 in the amount of $530,393.98 and
payments of the various payroll deductions in the amount of
$305,413.68, plus City matching payments and estimated payroll dated
January 28, 2022 in the amount of $425,000 and payments of the
various payroll deductions in the amount of $608,000, plus City
matching payments and Property Tax disbursements with an ending
date of January 14, 2022 in the amount of$30,367,419.99 and approval
to release property tax settlements in the amount of $56,889,648.04.
Approval to release payment to Milliman Inc. in the amount of $8,000.
Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. On roll call, Alderman Holpfer,
Alderman Mayer, Alderwoman Hanneman, Alderman Barber, and
Alderman Nelson voted Aye; Alderwoman Wilhelm was Absent.
Motion carried.

CLOSED SESSION G.13.
AMENDMENT TO
TID NO. 7 DEV.
AGREEMENT/VELO

Alderman Barber moved to enter closed session at 9:31 p.m.
pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 19.85(l)(e), to deliberate upon a Potential
Amendment to Tax Incremental District No. 7 Development
Agreement Between the City of Franklin and Velo Village



Common Council Meeting
January 18, 2022
Page 6

VILLAGE
APARTMENTS LLC

Apartments LLC (Developer), the negotiation of Agreement
terms and the investing of public funds in relation thereto, for
competitive and bargaining reasons, and to reenter open session at
the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein
as it deems appropriate. Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. On
roll call, Alderman Nelson, Alderman Barber, Alderwoman Hanneman,
Alderman Mayer, and Alderman Holpfer voted Aye; Alderwoman
Wilhelm was Absent. Motion carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm returned to her seat at 9:35 p.m.

Upon re-entering open session at 9:50 p.m. Alderman Nelson moved to
authorize staff to execute an amendment to the Tax Incremental
District No. 7, a Development Agreement between the City of Franklin
and Velo Village Apartments LLC, accepting a revised contingent
payment clause in which the City/TID #7 would receive a $4 million
payment, and directing staff to work with its outside legal counsel to:
( 1) draft an appropriate amendment to ensure that the funds are
available for City use only for eligible project costs and to protect the
taxpayers in the case any applicable TIDs are distressed, and (2)
establish a plan for the use of the funds to be approved by the Common
Council. Seconded by Alderman Barber. On roll call, all voted Aye.
Motion carried.

ADJOURNMENT J. Alderman Barber moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:52 p.m.
Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion carried.



ROLL CALL I.

CITIZEN COMMENT II.

CITY OF FRANKLIN
SPECIAL COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

JANUARY 25, 2022
MINUTES

The special meeting of the Common Council was held on January 25,
2022 and called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor Steve Olson in the
Franklin City Hall Hearing Room, 9229 W. Loomis Road, Franklin,
Wisconsin. On roll call, the following were in attendance: Alderman
Ed Holpfer, Alderman Dan Mayer, Alderwoman Kristen Wilhelm,
Alderwoman Shari Hanneman, Alderman Mike Barber, and
Alderman John R. Nelson. Also present were City Engineer Glen
Morrow, Director of Administration Peggy Steeno, City Attorney
Jesse A. Wesolowski, and City Clerk Sandra Wesolowski.

Citizen comment period was opened at 6:31 p.m. and closed at
6:31 p.m.

ADJOURNMENT IV.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to enter closed session at 6:32 p.m.
pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1)(g), to confer with legal counsel for
the Common Council who is rendering advice concerning strategy to
be adopted by the body with respect to the subject litigation, Franklin
Community Advocates, et al. v. City ofFranklin and Strauss Brands,
LLC, Milwaukee County Circuit Court, Case No. 20-CV-7031, and to
reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such
matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate. Seconded by
Alderman Holpfer. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

Upon reentering open session at 7:50 p.m., Alderwoman Hanneman
moved to proceed as discussed in closed session. Seconded by
Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to adjourn the special meeting at 7:50 p.m.
Seconded by Alderman Holpfer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

FRANKLINCOMMUNITY III.
ADVOCATES, ETAL V.
CITY OF FRANKLIN, AND
STRAUSS BRANDS, LLC



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Request to Purchase Replacement Inspection
Services Vehicle in the Amount of $28,467

MEETING
DATE

2/1/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.1.(a)

Background

Included in the 2022 Budget is funding for an Inspection Services vehicle to replace a 2011 Jeep
Liberty which is Vehicle #771 in the Department's fleet of vehicles.

Analysis

The purchase would be considered part of the regular ten-year replacement of vehicles, through
the Equipment Replacement Fund. Mileage on Vehicle #771 is currently 55,653. Staff has secured
a quote in the amount of $28,467 for a 2022 Ford Explorer, under the State of Wisconsin vehicle
purchase program, which offers advantageous pricing to the City. Delivery of the new vehicle is
unknown at this time and is not typically determined until the order is placed. Staff would
anticipate a delivery date 5 to 7 months after the order is placed.

Recommendation

Staff is recommending approval to purchase a 2022 Ford Explorer in the amount of $28,467 to
replace Vehicle #771 with funding provided by the 2022 Fund 42 Equipment Replacement Fund
(42.0231.5811 Inspection Services Auto Equipment).

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to approve the purchase of a 2022 Ford Explorer in the amount of $28,467 to replace
Vehicle #771 with funding provided by the 2022 Fund 42 Equipment Replacement Fund
(42.0231.5811 Inspection Services Auto Equipment).

Inspection-Scott



Ewald Automotive Group
Scott Kussow I 262-567-5555 I skfleet@ewaldauto.com

City of Franklin
Prepared For: Scott Satula

414-425-0084

ssatula@franklinw gov

Vehicle: [Fleet] 2022 Ford Explorer (K8B) Base 4WD



Ewald Automotive Group
Scott Kussow I 262-567-5555 I skfleet@ewaldauto com

Vehicle: [Fleet] 2022 Ford Explorer (K8B) Base 4WD ( Complete )

Quote Worksheet

Base Prce
Dest Charge
Total Options

Less Customer Discount

Trade-In

Sales Tax

Subtotal-~~~-=-=-===----- -_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_--_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_------------
Subtotal Pre-Tax Adjustments

Subtotal Discount

Subtotal Trade-In

Taxable Price

Subtotal Taxes

Subtotal Post-Tax Adjustments

Total Sales Price

MSRPl
·-·---· _j

$35,245 00
$1,295 00
$525 00

$37,065.00 /

$0.ooi

($8,598 00)
($8,598.00)]

$0 00
$o.oo]

$28,467.00/

$0 00
$0.00

$0.00

$28,467.00 !

Comments:

2022 Ford Explorer Base 4wd to your specs as detailed, (s1m1lar to '21 order) Reg1strat1on fees are not included Delivery can be estimated
mn 180-21 0 days from rece1 pt of your order

Dealer Signature/ Date Customer Signature / Date

This document conta ins 1nformat1on considered Confidentia l between GM and its Clients uniquely The information provided rs not intended for public disclosure Prices
spec1ficat1ons and ava1lab 1l1ty are subject to change without notice and do not include certa in fees, taxes and charges that may be required by law or vary by manufacturer or region
Performance figures are guidelines only and actual performance may vary Photos may not represent actual vehicles or exact configurations Content based on report preparer's
input ,s sub1ect to the accuracy of the input proVKled
Data Version 15537 Data Updated Jan 10 2022 10 2500 PM PST

Jan 11 2022 Page2



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

sh»
Reports and

Recommendations

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

A motion from the Director of Health and
Human Services authorizing proper officials
for the City of Franklin to sign the contract to
continue to administer the retail food and
recreation programs for the Wisconsin
Department of Agriculture, Trade, and
Consumer Protection.

MEETINGDATE
2/1/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.1.(b)

Background: Since 2007 Franklin Health Department (FHD) has been a local agent for
inspection services and maintained agreements with the WI Department of Health Services
and DATCP. The FHD environmental health program completed their Evaluation and
Standardization process with DATCP in late 2021 and is approved to continue as a State Agent
for the next three years.

DATCP has released their new three-year contracts beginning on July 1, 2022 which will run
through June 30, 2025. Without extension of the contract with DATCP, all licensing and
inspection services by FHD will cease on June 30, 2022

Analysis: Continuation of this contract ensures our licensed retail food and recreational
establishments continue to be inspected by a local inspector. These establishments also have a
local point of contact for questions and technical assistance in interpreting state and local
ordinances. FHD has been an agent city in good standing with DHS and DATCP for over 10
years. Local infrastructure has been created to license and inspect all permitted establishments.
In addition, FHD staff have completed all required trainings, self-assessments,
standardizations, and state mandated evaluations to continue in this program.

Options:
1. Authorize the Director of Health and Human Services to sign the DATCP contract.
2. Decline DATCP contract and end agent city inspection service agreement.

Fiscal Note: Local service is essentially unaltered. Required changes in policy and procedure
manual can be completed by existing staff and available resources. While there is no fiscal
impact to the City or our licensed establishments in 2022, this 3-year contract includes a 1 %
increase in 2023 and another 1 % in 2024 in reimbursement costs to DATCP which may
necessitate increasing license fees in those years.



COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

The Director of Health and Human Services requests a motion authorizing proper officials for
the City of Franklin to sign the contract to continue to administer the retail food and recreation
programs for the Wisconsin Department of Agriculture, Trade, and Consumer Protection.

Health Department: CD



MOA -RET - 2022-2025

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
BETWEEN

THE STATE OF WISCONSIN
DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, TRADE AND CONSUMER PROTECTION

AND
CITY OF FRANKLIN HEALTH DEPARTMENT

THIS MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT ("MOA'') is made and entered into for the period

07/01/2022 through 06/30/2025 ("Performance Period") by and between the Wisconsin Department of

Agriculture, Trade and Consumer Protection ("DATCP"), whose principal business address is 2811

Agriculture Dr., P.O. Box 8911, Madison, WI 53708-8911 and CITY OF FRANKLIN HEALTH

DEPARTMENT ("Agent"), whose service address is 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, WI 53132-

9630, for the purpose ofaddressing issues ofmutual interest to the parties regarding Wis. Stat. §§ 97.41

and 97 .615 and Wis. Admin. Code ch. ATCP 74. The Agent's jurisdiction under this MOA includes the

following geographic area(s): City ofFranklin. The Department shall issue a future MOA to the Agent

by January 1, ofthe last fiscal year ofthe current MOA. The Agent shall commit to continue as the

Department's Agent for the future MOA period, by signing and returning the MOA by March 1, of the

last fiscal year ofthe current MOA.

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, the issues ofmutual interest include an integrated food safety system and safe

operation of retail food, lodging, and recreational establishments within the State ofWisconsin; and

WHEREAS, the intention ofthis MOA is to provide a framework for the provision of services

for the inspection, licensing, complaint and foodborne illness investigation for retail food, lodging, and

recreational establishments as an Agent for the DATCP; and

WHEREAS, the primary outcome intended by this MOA is to improve the level of service and

consistency for providing inspections, licensing, complaint and foodborne illness investigations for retail

food, lodging, and recreational establishments; and

WHEREAS, the parties intend to clarify their relationship to establish a common understanding

Pagel of33



MOA -RET- 2022-2025

regarding their roles, responsibilities, and procedures that will facilitate the best provision of services

between our agencies; and

WHEREAS, the DATCP has authority under Wis. Stat.§§ 97.41 and 97.615 and Wis. Admin.

Code ch. ATCP 74, authorizing the DATCP to enter into a written contract designating a local health

department, defined in Wis. Stat.§ 250.01 (4), to act as the DATCP's local Agent to administer the

retail food, lodging, and recreational establishment program for the purpose of enforcing Wis. Stat. §

97.30 and Subchs. III and IV of ch. 97, and the applicable provisions of the Wisconsin Administrative

Code, and

NOW, THEREFORE, DATCP and the Agent hereby resolve and agree they will mutually

support and adhere to the following principles, and exert their best efforts in doing so.

I. PURPOSE.

The Agent hereby agrees to protect public health and safety, as the Agent of the DATCP under

Wis. Stat.§ 97.30 and Subchs. III and IV of ch. 97, and Wis. Admin. Code ch. ATCP 74, and the

terms and conditions of this MOA. The Agent agrees to issue licenses to, inspect, and regulate

retail food establishments, campgrounds, recreational and educational camps, public swimming

pools and water attractions, hotels, motels, tourist rooming houses, and bed and breakfast

establishments, as specified in this MOA, enforcing all applicable provisions of the Wisconsin

Statutes and Administrative Code and associated DATCP policies, interpretive memos and

procedures including, but not necessarily limited to, Wis. Stat. § 97.30 and Subchs. III and IV of ch.

97, and Wis. Admin. Code chs. ATCP 72 (Hotels, Motels, and Tourist Rooming Houses), 73 (Bed

and Breakfast Establishments), 74 (Local Agents and Regulation), 75 (Retail Food Establishments)

and its Appendix (Wisconsin Food Code), 76 (Safety, Maintenance, and Operation of Public Pools

and Water Attractions), 78 (Recreational and Educat10nal Camps), and 79 (Campgrounds). If the

Agent inspects mdividual vending machines, the Agent will receive reimbursement from the

DATCP.

The DATCP agrees to fulfill its responsibilities to the Agent required by Wis. Stat. § 97.30 and

Page 2 of33



MOA -RET - 2022-2025

Subchs. III and IV ofch. 97, Wis. Admin. Code ch. ATCP 74, and this MOA.

Pursuant to Wis. Admin. Code§ ATCP 74.06 (7), the DATCP shall whenever feasible provide

notice to an Agent program at least one fiscal year before making any changes to Department

policies and procedures not specified in the MOA that would adversely affect the budget of an

Agent program.

This MOA incorporates any amendments to the statutes or administrative rules cited in this

MOA, as well as any additional statutes or rules, related to retail food, lodging, and recreational

establishment licensing that may be enacted or adopted during the term ofthis MOA. The Agent

agrees that all of its obligations under this MOA include any ofthese amendments, enactments or

adoptions.

A. Meetings and Consultation. Both parties agree to meet as needed, to identify issues of

mutual concern and discuss strategies to address identified issues.

B. Designation ofContacts. The Agent agrees to identify its primary spokesperson to the

DATCP, and the DATCP agrees to do the same for discussion ofall topics identified in this

agreement.

II. SCOPE OFWORK.

A. DEFINITIONS

1. Agentmeans a local health department (LHD) as defined in Wis. Stat.§ 250.01 (4),

that has entered mto a MOA with the DATCP and is authorized under the terms ofthat MOA to

administer a retail food establishment, lodging, and recreational safety regulatory program, pursuant

to Wis. Stat.§§ 97.41 and 97.615 (2), in the local health department's area ofjurisdiction.

2. AgentProgram means the retail food establishment, lodging, and recreational safety

regulatory program operated by an Agent.

3. AgentProgram Plan means the plan developed by the Agent for the administration

ofthe Agent program and enforcement ofWis. Stat.§ 97.30 and Subchs. III and IV ofch. 97,

related provisions ofthe Wisconsin Administrative Code, and any applicable local ordinances or

Page 3 of33



MOA -RET- 2022-2025

regulations cited in its enforcement actions for the types of facilities for which the Agent has been

delegated Agent status.

4. Agent Standard means a member of the Agent's inspection staff, responsible for

leading standardization exercises, as prescribed in the DATCP's Standardization Manual, for the

environmental health inspection personnel in the Agent's jurisdiction, who has successfully

completed the initial standardization process, is current in their inspection standardization

maintenance exercises, and has received a letter of completion from the DATCP.

5. Complaint means an allegation, presented to an Agent or the DATCP, of a possible

public health hazard or violation of any provision of the Wisconsin Statutes and Administrative

Code indicated in this contract or a local public health ordinance or regulation.

6. Conflict of interest means a conflict between the private interests and the official

responsibilities of a person in a position of trust. As provided in Wis. Stat. § 19.59 (1), a conflict of

interest occurs when the exercise of a person's official responsibilities gives the person the

opportunity to obtain financial gain or anything of substantial value for the private benefit of

himself or herself, his or her immediate family, or an organization with which he or she is

associated.

7. DATCP means the Wisconsin Department of Agriculture, Trade and Consumer

Protection.

8. Enforcement Action means a statutorily-authorized action imposed on a licensee for

non-compliance with a provision of the Wisconsin Statutes or Administrative Code, or a local

public health ordinance or regulation. Enforcement actions include, but are not limited to, holding

orders, citations, forfeitures, temporary orders, license suspension, or revocation of a license.

9. Establishment or Facility means a retail food establishment, hotel, motel, tourist

rooming house, bed and breakfast establishment, food vending machine, camping resort or other

campground, recreational educational camp, public swimming pool or water attraction licensed

pursuant to Wis. Stat. ch. 97.

Page 4 0f33



MOA -RET - 2022-2025

10. Fiscal Year means July 1 of one year through June 30 of the next year.

11. Follow up Inspection means a non-mandatory inspection by the Agent to ensure

non-critical violations, cited in a routine inspection, have been corrected by a licensee.

12. Foodborne Disease Outbreak means the occurrence of two or more cases of a

similar illness of persons, resulting from the ingestion of a common food.

13. Inspection Fee means a fee charged by the Agent program, the amount of which is

reasonably related to the cost of performing an assessment of an establishment's compliance with

the statutes and rules, under which a license is granted, including the following:

a. An inspection in an establishment not under the DATCP's regulatory authority.

b. An Agent inspection in its jurisdiction of a DATCP licensed mobile or temporary

retail food establishment.

14. Inspector means any employee inspecting establishments for the DATCP, or the

Agent under the jurisdiction of an Agent program.

15. License means the legal authority granted by the DATCP or its Agent to operate an

establishment.

16. Licensee means the person or entity licensed to operate an establishment.

17. Local Public Health Ordinance or Regulation means an ordinance adopted by a

village, city or county, or a regulation adopted by a local board of health, as the DATCP's Agent,

pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 97.41 (7) or 97.615 (2) (g).

18. MOA means a signed, written agreement between a local health department and the

DATCP setting forth the obligations of each party in the operation of an Agent program.

19. Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) means an agreement between the DATCP

and another state agency for designating each agency's responsibilities in shared governance.

Examples include agreements with the department of public instruction and the department of

natural resources.

20. New Agent means an Agent that has entered into its first contract with the DATCP or

Page 5 of33



MOA -RET - 2022-2025

an Agent that has applied to reenter into a contract with the DATCP after termination of a previous

contract.

21. Person means an individual, married couple, legal entity of a partnership,

corporation, or limited liability company, municipality, county, town, or state or local agency.

22. Pre-licensing Inspection means an inspection that must be completed before a

license is granted and the licensee may begin operating an establishment.

23. Program Evaluation means an assessment by the DATCP of the Agent's adherence

to the provisions of this MOA.

24. Registered Environmental Health Specialist/Registered Sanitarian or REHS/RS

means a person who holds an REHS/RS credential awarded by the National Environmental Health

Association.

25. Registered Sanitarian or RS means an individual who is a Wisconsin-registered

sanitarian, pursuant to Wis. Stat. §440.98 and Wis. Admin. Code. chs. SPS 174 to 177, or is

recognized as a registered environmental health specialist/registered sanitarian.

26. Reimbursement means the portion of the license fee, collected by the Agent, that is

remitted to the DATCP, pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 97.41 (5) or 97.615 (2)(e).

27. Reinspection means a mandatory or administrative inspection to ensure that a

priority, critical or recurring violation has been corrected. A reinspection shall be conducted as soon

as possible, based on the scheduled date for correction(s). An applicable reinspection fee may be

required per Agent policy. A reinspection will be required as identified in the DATCP's

reinspection criteria for retail food and recreational facilities.

28. Routine inspection means the annual evaluation of a licensee's operation of its

establishment.

29. Sanitarian means a person who is qualified to conduct inspections as an Agent of the

DATCP and meets the requirements under Wis. Admin. Code § ATCP 74.08 (2).

30. Standard means a DATCP (state standard) or Agent employee (Agent standard) who

Page 6 of33



MOA -RET - 2022-2025

is certified as correctly interpreting and enforcing one or more of Wis. Admin. Code chs. ATCP 72,

73, 75 and its Appendix, 76, 78, and 79.

3 I. Standardization exercise means an evaluation conducted by a standard to determine

if a sanitarian is correctly interpreting and enforcing one or more of Wis. Admin. Code chs. ATCP

72, 73, 75 and its Appendix, 76, 78, and 79.

32. Standardization (initial) means a sanitarian's first successful completion of required

field standardization exercises by using risk based inspection methods, as specified in the DATCP's

Standardization Manual.

33. Standardization (maintenance) means a sanitarian's successful completion of field

standardization exercises by using risk based inspection methods, required every three years to

maintain standardization certification, as specified in the DATCP's Standardization Manual.

34. State Fees means the DATCP's fees in Wis. Stat.§§ 97.41 (5) and 97.615 (2) (e),

levied to recoup DATCP costs related to setting standards for, monitoring and evaluating the

activities of, and providing education and training to, Agent local health departments.

35. State License Fees means the license fees set by the DATCP, pursuant to Wis. Stat.

§§ 97.30 (3) and (3m), 97.613, and 97.67 (4).

36. Waterborne Disease Outbreak means the occurrence of two or more cases of a

similar illness of persons after the ingestion of drinking water from the same source, or after

exposure to water from the same source used for recreational purposes, and for which

epidemiologic evidence implicates water as the probable source of the illness.

B. ISSUING LICENSES

I. Any establishment that is selling, holding, or distributing food and exempt from the

requirement to hold a retail food establishment license, pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 97.30 (2) (b), is

under the regulatory authority of the DATCP and may not be licensed, charged a fee, or inspected

in any manner related to food, dairy, or meat processing, or wholesale or retail food operations by

the Agent.

Page 7 of33



MOA -RET - 2022-2025

2. The Agent shall require a person who applies for, or a licensee who requests renewal

of, a license to include, at a minimum, the following information:

a. Name ofthe Individual, Married Couple or Legal Entity who will hold the license

and a complete street address.

b. Doing business as name (DBA). Name and complete address ofthe establishment.

c. License number and expiration date of any current license.

d. Type ofEstablishment, for licensing purposes

e. Numbers ofunits, rooms, or sites and complexity, if applicable.

3. A license issued by the Agent shall expire on June 30 ofeach year, except that a new

license issued during the period beginning on April 1 and ending on June 30 shall expire on June 30

ofthe following year (IS-month license), except as follows: The Agent ofa city ofthe 1st class that

has entered into a Contract with the DATCP may issue a required license for a retail food

establishment or bed and breakfast establishment at any time during the year, which shall expire

one year from the date of its issuance.

4. The Agent, as required in Wis. Stat. § 97 .605 (4), shall allow for the holder of a

license to transfer the license to:

a. An individual who is an immediate family member ifthe holder is transferring

operation of a hotel, tourist rooming house, bed and breakfast establishment, or vending machine to

the immediate family member.

b. A sole proprietorship that reorganizes as a business entity or a business entity that

reorganizes as either a sole proprietorship or a different type ofbusiness entity may transfer a

license issued under this section for operation of a hotel, tourist rooming house, bed and breakfast

establishment, or vending machine commissary to the newly formed business entity or sole

proprietorship if the following conditions are satisfied:

i. The hotel, tourist rooming house, bed and breakfast establishment, or

vending machine commissary remains at the location for which the

Page 8 of33



MOA - RET - 2022-2025

license was issued.

ii. At least one individual who had an ownership interest in the sole

proprietorship or business entity to which the license was issued has

an ownership interest in the newly formed sole proprietorship or

business entity.

5. The Agent, as required in Wis. Stat. § 97 .67 (2) shall allow a license to be transferred

from an individual to:

a. An immediate family member, as defined ins. 97.605 (4) (a) 2., ifthe individual is

transferring operation ofthe campground, camping resort, recreational or educational camp, or

public swimming pool to the immediate family member.

b. A sole proprietorship that reorganizes as a business entity, as defined ins. 179.70

( 1 ), or a business entity that reorganizes as a sole proprietorship or a different type of business

entity may transfer a license issued under this section for a campground, camping resort,

recreational or educational camp, or public swimming pool to the newly formed business entity or

sole proprietorship ifall ofthe following conditions are satisfied:

i. The campground, camping resort, recreational or educational camp, or public

swimming pool remains at the location for which the license was issued.

ii. At least one individual who had an ownership interest in the sole proprietorship

or business entity to which the license was issued has an ownership interest in the newly formed

sole proprietorship or business entity.

6. The Agent, as required in Wis Admin. Code § ATCP 75.06 (1) and (5) shall require a

retail food establishment license upon any change ofoperator. The Agent shall waive the

preinspection fee under the following conditions:

a. The new license holder is an immediate family member, as defined ins. 97.605 (4)

(a) 2., 1f the individual is transferring operation ofthe retail food establishment to an immediate

family member.

Page 9 of33



MOA - RET - 2022-2025

b. A sole proprietorship that reorganizes as a business entity, as defined ins. 179.70

( 1 ), or a business entity that reorganizes as a sole proprietorship or a different type ofbusiness

entity to the newly formed business entity or sole proprietorship ifall ofthe following conditions

are satisfied:

i. The retail food establishment remains at the location for which the license was

issued.

11. At least one individual who had an ownership interest in the sole proprietorship

or business entity to which the license was previously issued has an ownership interest in the newly

formed sole proprietorship or business entity.

c. Initial inspection ofmicro-market. The DATCP or its agent may issue a license

for a new retail food establishment that is a micro-market before it inspects the new retail food

establishment that is a micro-market for compliance with this chapter. Before one year after the

date that the DATCP or its agent issues a license for a new retail food establishment that is a

micro-market, it shall inspect the new retail food establishment for compliance with this chapter.

7. The Agent shall notify the DATCP when, in the performance ofits duties, it

encounters an unlicensed establishment that falls under the DATCP's licensing and inspection

authority.

8. The DATCP shall notify the Agent when, in the performance ofits duties, it

encounters an unlicensed establishment that falls underthe Agent's licensing and inspection

authority.

9. The Agent shall honor, without issuing an additional license in its own jurisdiction, all

licenses issued by the DATCP or other Agent jurisdictions for a mobile retail food establishment.

The following shall also apply:

a. The mobile retail food establishment license and service base license shall be

issued by the jurisdiction where the service base is located or the address where the mobile unit is

stored, ifa service base variance is granted by the DATCP, or as specified in sub. b.

Page 10 of33



MOA -RET - 2022-2025

b. The Agent or the DATCP issuing the mobile retail food establishment service base

license may allow another jurisdiction to issue the mobile retail food establishment license, if the

mobile retail food establishment operates solely outside the jurisdiction where the mobile service

base is located.

c. Enforcement activities for all operations of the mobile retail food establishment

shall be conducted by the licensing entity, regardless of where the establishment may operate within

the State. Inspection reports generated by other jurisdictions may be used to support enforcement

activities.

d. The licensee shall immediately correct any violations posing an immediate danger

to public health found on site or the inspecting regulatory authority shall issue a temporary closure

order at time of inspection.

e. An inspection fee may be charged by any Agent program conducting an inspection

on a mobile retail food establishment unit licensed by another jurisdiction The fee shall be based

on the reasonable cost to conduct the inspection.

f. Current out-of-state mobile retatl food establishments shall continue to maintain a

DATCP-issued license unless the DATCP determines that the license should be held by another

jurisdiction.

10. An Agent shall honor, without issuing an additional license in its own jurisdiction, all

licenses issued by the DATCP or other Agent jurisdictions for a transient retail food establishment.

The following shall also apply:

a. The transient retail food establishment license shall be issued in the jurisdiction in

which the operator is located or the temporary event occurs.

b. Enforcement activities for all operations of the transient retail food establishment

shall be conducted by the licensing entity, regardless of where the establishment may operate within

the State. Inspection reports generated by other jurisdictions may be used to support enforcement

activities.

Page 11 of33



MOA - RET -2022-2025

c. The licensee shall immediately correct any violations posing an immediate danger

to public health found on site or the inspecting regulatory authority shall issue a temporary closure

order at time of inspection.

d. An inspection fee may be charged by any Agent program conducting an inspection

on a transient retail food establishment licensed by another jurisdiction. The fee shall be based on

the reasonable cost to conduct the inspection.

e. Current out-of-state temporary retail food establishments shall continue to

maintain a DATCP -issued license unless the DATCP determines that the license should be held by

another jurisdiction.

C. INSPECTIONS

The Agent Program sanitarians shall inspect all establishments covered in the contract

for compliance with Wis. Stat.§ 97.30, subchs. III and IV of Wis. Stat. ch. 97, and Wis. Admin.

Code chs. ATCP 72, 73, 75 and its Appendix, 76, 78, and 79.

1. The Agent Program shall follow standard inspection methods, procedures, policies

and gmdance documents as prescribed by the DATCP.

2. Each fiscal year the Agent shall conduct one routine inspection of each licensed

establishment under its jurisdiction, except for vending machines and transient retail food

establishments. The Agent may propose a different inspection frequency to the DATCP which may

only be implemented if approved by the DATCP in writing. Examples include:

a. Mirco-market inspections.

b. An inspection frequency based on risk, as long as the number of inspections

performed equals the number of licenses issued by the jurisdiction.

3. The Agent Program shall perform a pre-licensing inspection of a license applicant's

establishment for compliance with all applicable ordinances, rules, and statutes. The pre-licensing

mspection shall be conducted before the applicant is issued a license and conducts business, except

as specified for micro-markets in Wis. Stat. § 97.30 (2) (d).

Page 12 0f33



MOA - RET - 2022-2025

4. The DATCP may conduct inspections at an establishment in the Agent Program's

jurisdiction for all ofthe following purposes:

a. Training or standardization ofDATCP staff or Agent Program staff.

b. In response to an emergency.

c. For monitoring and evaluating the Agent Program's licensing, inspection, and

enforcement program.

d. At the request ofthe Agent Program.

5. Whenever feasible, the DATCP shall notify the Agent ofthe DATCP' s intent to

inspect an establishment in the Agent program's jurisdiction. The Agent may accompany the

DATCP during such inspections.

6. The Agent may elect, in writing to the DATCP, to inspect vending machines.

7. The Agent shall give priority to pre-licensing inspections, inspections involving

emergency complaints, food or waterborne illness investigations, and re-inspections.

8. A routine inspection shall be unannounced except when it is necessary that the owner

or operator be present for the inspection, or when the Agent is conducting a follow-up inspection,

reinspection or other activity where having the owner or operator present is important for continued

compliance.

9. Every effort shall be made to conduct inspection activities during times when normal

business practices and procedures can be observed to access active managerial control.

10. If a routine inspection is performed in conjunction with another investigation,

separate inspection reports shall be completed for the investigation and the routine inspection. Each

report shall be signed by the environmental health inspection staff and the licensee, or licensee's

designated person in charge.

11. The Agent shall perform inspection duties required by, and in compliance with, the

DATCP's MOU's. The DATCP will provide the Agent a copy ofeach MOU it executes.

12. The Agent may, with written approval from the DATCP, enter into written contracts

Page 13 of33



MOA -RET- 2022-2025

with other units ofgovernment or other persons to perform inspection activities related to

enforcement responsibilities under this MOA. The Agent assumes ultimate responsibility for the

performance and quality ofthe inspections and for the enforcement of all applicable provisions of

the Wisconsin Statutes and Administrative Code under this MOA.

13. The Agent shall not charge an inspection fee for a routine inspection ofany

establishment licensed by the Agent.

14. The Agent shall use the DATCP's electronic software program for conducting and

documenting inspections. If the Agent has been the DATCP's Agent before April 1, 2009, the

Agent may use the DATCP's electronic software program or the DATCP-approved paper forms for

conducting inspections. The DATCP will provide, maintain and support this software. The Agent

may be responsible for additional user licenses or development costs specific to the Agent's

program.

D. INSPECTION DOCUMENTATION

The Agent shall complete inspection activities and reports as outlined in the DATCP's

mspection documentation policy and procedure for retail, lodging, and recreational programs.

E. COMPLAINTS AND FOODBORNE DISEASE INVESTIGATIONS.

1. The Agent shall investigate every complaint that it receives against any licensee

under its jurisdiction. The Agent shall prioritize and investigate complaints according to the

procedures in this section and procedures adopted by the Agent program under the contract with the

DATCP. The complaints shall be addressed in decreasing order ofpriority as follows:

a. An allegation indicating a serious or imminent public health hazard is associated

with a licensee or establishment under the Agent Program's jurisdiction.

b. An allegation indicating a potential public health problem, that is neither a serious

nor an imminent public health hazard, is associated with a licensee or establishment under the

Agent Program's jurisdiction.

c. An allegation of a violation, not indicating a public health hazard, associated with

Page 14 of33



MOA - RET - 2022-2025

a licensee or establishment under the Agent Program's jurisdiction.

2. The Agent shall notify and consult with the DATCP and other affected agencies

having jurisdiction, as necessary, about complaints or foodborne or waterborne diseases that may be

of significant concern to those agencies. The Agent Program shall coordinate complaint

investigations, as necessary, with other agencies havingjurisdiction.

3 The Agent shall conduct an investigation if there is a complaint concerning a retail

food establishment exempt from the requirement to hold a license, as defined in Wis. Admin. Code

§ ATCP 75.063, within its jurisdiction, or upon DATCP request.

4. Each complaint, and documentation of a complaint investigation, shall be physically

or electronically linked with the establishment licensing and inspection information.

5. When the Agent receives information that indicates a foodborne or waterborne

disease outbreak has occurred, the Agent shall conduct an investigation. In conducting the

investigation, the Agent shall follow the criteria in Wisconsin's Foodborne and Waterborne Disease

Outbreak Investigation Manual. The Agent shall conduct an investigation of the facility linked to

the outbreak, as soon as epidemiological evidence links that facility with the outbreak. In addition:

a. The Agent shall notify the Department of Health Services' (DHS) Communicable

Disease Epidemiology Section (CDES.)

b. The Agent shall notify the DATCP via the Emergency Reponses mailbox.

datcpfoodcomplaintsemergencyresponse@wisconsin gov

c. Upon the Agent's request, the DATCP shall assist in the investigation.

d. In the event the outbreak becomes cross-jurisdictional, the DATCP, in

coordination with DHS CDES, will coordinate the activities of the Agent and other governmental

agencies in order to most quickly and effectively end the outbreak.

e. In order for the DATCP to share foodborne illness outbreak information with the

agent, the agent shall enter into a long term Food, Feed and Cosmetic 20.88 agreement with the US

Food and Drug Administration (FDA). This agreement allows FDA to share confidential

Page 15 of33



MOA - RET - 2022-2025

commercial information (CCI), personal privacy information (PPI), and pre-decisional information

(POI) during a foodborne illness outbreak investigation. These agreements shall be completed and

filed with FDA.

6. The Agent, ifrequested by the DATCP, shall conduct effectiveness checks pertaining

to product recalls or other situations in which food must be removed from sale or service.

7. Agent participation and involvement with the National Environmental Assessment

Reporting System (NEARS).

a. An Agent that has two or more foodbome illness outbreaks in its jurisdiction

during the previous MOA period shall provide a qualified and trained sanitarian to conduct NEARS

investigations in theirjurisdiction.

b. Any Agent is welcome to participate even ifnot meeting the criteria in par. a.

c. The DATCP shall assist in any NEARS investigation ifrequested by the agent.

d. The agent shall accompany the DATCP during a NEARS investigation in their

jurisdiction.

F. ENFORCEMENT

1. The Agent Program shall take necessary actions to enforce the provisions ofWis.

Stat. $ 97.30 and subchs. III and IV ofWis. Stat. ch. 97 and related administrative rules in Wis.

Admin. Code chs. ATCP 72, 73, 75 and its Appendix, 76, 78, and 79, and any local ordinances or

regulations, adopted pursuant to Wis. Stat.§§ 97.41 (7) and 97.615 (2) (g), for establishments over

which the Agent Program has been delegated authority under the MOA when an observation is

made including, but not limited to, the following:

a. An immediate danger to public health as required in Wis. Stat.§§ 97.12 and 97.65.

b. Noncompliance with written inspection orders.

c. Continued repeat violations noted on inspection reports.

d. Operating without a required establishment license.

2. Enforcement actions may include license revocation; license suspension; fines or

Page 16 of33



MOA -RET - 2022-2025

civil forfeitures; temporary or final orders to close; temporary or final hold orders on equipment,

food, processes, or establishments; and the placement ofconditions on licenses or the voiding ofa

license.

3. The Agent Program shall maintain a written enforcement policy that is distributed to

its inspection staff and shall make it available to the DATCP during evaluations, whenever it is

substantively changed, or upon request.

4. The Agent Program shall notify the DATCP, in writing within 10 days, after taking

any enforcement action against an establishment involving license suspension, license revocation,

or court or administrative actions.

5. The Agent Program shall be responsible for costs incurred in enforcement actions

taken in the Agent Program's jurisdiction.

6. If the DATCP has notified the Agent Program ofdeficiencies by any licensee, in

complying with the enforcement provisions ofthis chapter or any other rules or statutes applicable

under the contract, and the Agent Program does not act expeditiously or take effective action with

the licensee, the DATCP may act, pursuant to Wis. Stat.§§ 97.12, and 97.65, to enforce compliance

with this chapter.

7. The DATCP shall provide technical assistance to the Agent for enforcement activities

upon the Agent's request.

8. The Agent program may deny, suspend, or revoke a license or impose conditions on a

license, as provided in Wis. Stat.§ 93.06 (7) and (8). Except as otherwise provided by statute, rule,

or local ordinance, the suspension or revocation ofa license shall comply with the prior notice

requirements ofWis. Stat. § 227 .51.

G. SAMPLING

1. The Agent shall take samples requested by the DATCP for routine sampling

schedules or in association with a food or waterborne outbreak.

2. Routine sampling requested by the DATCP may include any ofthe following:

Page 17 of33



MOA -RET- 2022-2025

a. Monitoring sampling.

b. Surveillance sampling.

c. "For Cause" sampling.

3. The Agent Program may conduct any requested sample analyses in a laboratory

certified by the DATCP, pursuant to Wis. Admin. Code ch. ATCP 77 for those analyses. All costs

associated with collecting and analyzing these samples shall be assumed by the Agent Program.

4. The Agent Program shall share laboratory results with the DATCP.

5. If the Agent Program does not have the laboratory capability to perform required

analyses, or chooses not to perform those analyses, it shall submit samples to the DATCP's Bureau

ofLaboratory Services for analysis. The Agent Program shall assume the cost ofcollecting samples

and shipping them to the DATCP's laboratory. The DATCP shall assume the cost ofthe laboratory

analysis ofthose samples.

H. STAFFING

1. The Agent Program shall have sufficient employees to implement the program

according to the terms ofthis MOA.

2. Except as specified in Par. 4, each sanitarian employed by the Agent Program shall

meet one ofthe following requirements:

a. Is RS-eligible, which means having met one ofthe following criteria:

1. Holding a baccalaureate or higher degree in environmental health from an

accredited college or university and completing at least 30 semester or 45-quarter hour academic

credits in environmental, physical, biological, chemical, or environmental health courses.

ii. Holding a baccalaureate or higher degree in physical or biological sciences

from an accredited college or university and completing at least 30 semester or 45 quarter hour

academic credits in environmental, physical, biological, chemical, or environmental health courses.

iii. Holding a baccalaureate or higher degree from an accredited college or

university.

Page 18 0f33



MOA-RET-2022-2025

iv. Holding an associate degree from an accredited college, community college or

technical institute in environmental, physical, biological, or chemical sciences; or

b. Is an RS in training; or

c Holds a valid Wisconsin Registered Sanitarian or REHS/RS credential.

3. The Agent Program shall employ at least one Registered Sanitarian to conduct

mspections and supervise any inspectors or sanitarians who are not registered sanitarians. The

Agent Program shall only hire sanitarians who are Registered Sanitarians or will become Registered

Sanitanans within five years after the date ofhire. Inspectors or sanitarians who were employed by

the Agent Program prior to July 1, 2018, and are not eligible to become Registered Sanitarians

within five years, shall perform inspections under the supervision ofa Registered Sanitarian and

shall be deemed competent to perform inspections by passing standardization exercises.

4. Only Tourist Rooming House (TRH) inspections may be conducted by personnel

who either do not have an RS credential or will not be eligible to obtain the RS credential within

five years provided that:

a. A RS-credentialed employee supervises the non-credentialed employees; and

b. Each TRH license is inspected at least once every five years by an employee who

has the RS credential or will be eligible to obtain the RS credential within five years; and

c. A written plan of implementation and tracking for TRH inspections shall be

provided to the DATCP for review and approval; and

d. Each year, the TRH inspection tracking documentation shall be provided in the

self-assessment for review by the DATCP.

e The individual conducting the TRH inspections has met the minimum training

requirements for TRH inspections in the DATCP's training manual.

5. If an Agent Program loses its only Registered Sanitarian, the Agent Program shall

hire a Registered Sanitarian replacement within 120 days or, upon the Agent's written request, the

DATCP may allow the Agent additional time to hire a qualified replacement. A replacement who is

Page 19 of33



MOA - RET - 2022-2025

not a Registered Sanitarian may be hired, if approved by the DATCP, if the Agent has a signed

agreement with another Agent for a Registered Sanitarian to provide supervisory oversight and the

replacement hire shall become a Registered Sanitarian within six months of being hired. A copy of

the supervisory oversight contract shall be provided to the DATCP and shall include the amount of

time allotted for oversight activities and what specific duties the supervising Registered Sanitarian

will provide.

6. The Agent shall designate a sanitarian or Registered Sanitarian, as required by the

DATCP, to undergo the standardization exercise evaluating enforcement of Wis. Admin. Code ch.

ATCP 75 Appendix as prescribed in the DATCP's Standardization Manual. After successfully

completing the exercises, the staffperson shall be designated as the Agent Standard. As the

DATCP develops standardization processes for programs other than the retail food program, the

Agent will comply with the standardization process in those programs.

7. The Agent Standard shall perform DATCP-required exercises with the DATCP to

maintain his or her status as the Agent Standard, as prescribed in the DATCP's Standardization

Manual.

8. The Agent Standard shall perform standardization and maintenance exercises with

other sanitarians in their jurisdiction, using procedures specified by the DATCP's Standardization

Manual.

9. The Agent is required to send at least one sanitarian or Registered Sanitarian to attend

traming provided by the DATCP.

10. An employee of the Agent shall participate on DATCP rulemaking and policy

advisory committees when requested.

11. The Agent may not permit an employee to conduct an inspection in a situation in

which the employee, a member of his or her family, or an organization with which the employee is

associated or has a financial interest or where the employee's relationship with any person at the

inspected establishment could cause the employee not to be able to conduct an objective, unbiased

Page20 of33



MOA - RET - 2022-2025

inspect1on

12. The Agent Program is solely responsible for all employment-related issues

involving the persons it employs in the program and for the actions or omissions ofthe Agent

Program's employees, except as otherwise provided by law.

13. Upon the Agent's request, the DATCP shall provide technical assistance and

training to Agent staff.

I. EDUCATIONAL OUTREACH

The Agent will cooperate with the DATCP in conducting training programs for

licensees and employees ofestablishments located in its jurisdiction.

III. REPORTS ANDRECORDS.

A. If the Agent Program is not using the DATCP's electronic licensing and inspection

program, the Agent shall maintain current records for each licensed facility within its jurisdiction.

Records shall include the name, address, ID number and type ofestablishment or facility and

contain at least the latest three years of inspection reports, follow-up investigation reports, reports

of enforcement actions, confirmed complaint follow-ups and summaries, foodbome disease

outbreak and follow-up investigation information, and approvals ofvariance requests, Hazard

Analysis Critical Control Point ("HACCP") plans and waivers.

B. If the Agent is not using the DATCP's electronic inspection and licensing software, the

Agent shall use inspection report forms approved by the DATCP for all pre-licensing inspections,

routine inspections, re-inspections, and follow-up inspections.

C. The Agent shall submit reports as requested by the DATCP. The DATCP may review or

request a copy ofany inspection report, correspondence, or order served on any licensee within the

Agent's jurisdiction; annual program budget reports, projections, and any other report the DATCP

determmes it needs to monitor the Agent's performance, including, but not limited to, Center for

Disease Control and Prevention ("CDC") risk factor reports, self-assessments, or any other required

reports, pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 97.41 (7) or 97.615 (2) (g) or Wis. Admin. Code ch. ATCP 74.

Page 21 of33



MOA - RET - 2022-2025

D. The Agent Program shall accurately and completely document the cost of the Agent's

program that is administered under the contract with the DATCP. The cost may include direct costs

for licensing, inspection, complaint handling and investigation, enforcement, information

management, reportmg, and any other activities carried out within the limits ofthe MOA with the

DATCP. The costs may also include documented indirect costs normally associated with the

program. These costs may include staff, equipment, facilities, contract service, and other

documented costs allocated to the program. Upon request, the Agent shall provide copies of these

records to the DATCP.

E. By the 10th ofthe month immediately following the month in which the Agent issues a

license, or receives notification from a licensee of a change affecting its license, the Agent shall

provide a report ofall such license issuances and changes to the DATCP. This requirement also

applies to transient retail food establishments, as defined in Wis. Admin. Code ch. ATCP 75. This

reporting requirement is satisfied by the Agent's use ofthe DATCP's electronic licensing and

inspection software.

F. By September 30th of each year, the Agent shall give the DATCP a complete list of the

names and addresses ofthe licensees to whom licenses were issued by the Agent during the

previous fiscal year. This reporting requirement is satisfied by the Agent's use ofthe DATCP's

electronic licensmg and inspection software.

G. Within 10 days after the date on which it takes place, the Agent shall report to the

DATCP, in writing, any change in the assignment ofa supervisor ofthe environmental health

inspection personnel who are not currently Wisconsin Registered Sanitarians/REHS and any change

in the organization ofthe inspection staff, including authority line changes. If the Agent employs

only one or two sanitanans, the Agent shall report any change in assignment ofenvironmental

health inspection personnel who are providing services under this Contract.

H. The Agent shall submit a completed CDC Risk Factor Tracking Sheet annually to the

DATCP for the purpose ofenabling the DATCP to determine the types ofviolations found in

Page22 of33



MOA -RET - 2022-2025

facilities throughout the State of Wisconsin. This reporting requirement is satisfied by the Agent's

use of the DATCP's electronic licensing and inspection software.

I. As required by Wis. Admin. Code ch. ATCP 74, the Agent shall maintain and keep

readily available for use by inspection staffand review by the DATCP, a copy of its Agent Program

Plan. The plan shall include, at a minimum, all the components identified in Wis. Admin. Code ch.

ATCP 74 and any other information the DATCP requests in writing that it determines is necessary

or relevant for its review of the plan. The minimum components include:

1. Employee positions that will issue licenses or conduct investigations and inspections.

2. Staffing and budget plans for issuing licenses, conducting investigations and

inspections, providing technical assistance, and enforcing applicable state statutes and rules and

local ordinances.

3. A list of the licenses that may be issued by the Agent. A local ordinance may combine

and expand license categories, so long as those categories include all of the types of establishments

that shall be licensed under this MOA.

4. A list of the fees to be charged by the Agent to licensees. A local ordinance may

establish local license fees that differ from fees charged under Wis. Admin. Code chs. ATCP 72,

73, 75 and its Appendix, 76, 78, and 79, for licenses issued by the DATCP. All license fees shall be

based on the Agent's reasonable program costs, pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 97.41 (4).

5. A description of the inspection and enforcement program to be implemented by the

Agent, including a copy of applicable village, city, or county ordinances or regulations.

6. Procedures to ensure cooperation between the Agent and appropriate federal, state,

local, and tribal agencies in the event of a natural disaster or other emergency.

7. Procedures for investigating complamts concerning licensees under this Contract and

unlicensed activity that may require licensing and inspection.

8. Procedures for notifying the DATCP when the Agent receives information or a

complaint concerning an establishment that may need to be licensed or inspected by the DATCP

Page 23 of33



MOA -RET - 2022-2025

within the Agent's geographical area.

9. Procedures, including cooperation with the DATCP, for investigating reports of

suspected foodbome disease.

10. Procedures to ensure the time period within which the Agent will make a

determination on an application for a license does not exceed 30 days following receipt ofa

complete application.

11. Any other information that the DATCP may reasonably require for its review ofthe

Agent's program plan.

IV. REIMBURSEMENT TO THE DATCP FOR STATE FEES COLLECTED BY AGENT

A. The Agent shall reimburse the DATCP for the state fees from the license fees the Agent

collects, as provided under sub. B.

B. The state fees shall not exceed 20% ofthe state license fees the DATCP sets by

administrative rule for the types offacilities forwhich the Agent issues licenses. The calculation ofthe

state fees is based on state license fees only, not preinspection, reinspection and inspection fees.

C. As ofthe date ofthis MOA, the state fees are 10% ofthe state license fees. The DATCP may

increase the state fees up to 20% ofthe state license fees by announcing a change in the percentage one

year prior to the licensing year for which the change applies. Retail food, lodging, and recreational

establishment license fee reimbursement shall be:

1. A fee equal to 10% ofthe applicable state license fee, regardless ofthe license fee

actually charged by the local Agent, ifthe Agent prepares and submits to the DATCP, by September 3 0

ofthat year, an annual self-assessment as required by Wis. Stat.§§ 97.41 and 97.615.

2. Starting July 1, 2023, A fee equal to 11% ofthe applicable state license fee, regardless of

the license fee actually charged by the local Agent, ifthe Agent prepares and submits to the DATCP, by

September 30 ofthat year, an annual self-assessment as required by Wis. Stat.§§ 97.41 and 97.615.

Page 24 of33



MOA - RET - 2022-2025

3. Starting July 1, 2024, A fee equal to 12% ofthe applicable state license fee, regardless of

the license fee actually charged by the local Agent, ifthe Agent prepares and submits to the DATCP, by

September 30 ofthat year, an annual self-assessment as required by Wis. Stat.§§ 97.41 and 97.615.

4. A fee equal to 20% ofthe applicable state license, regardless ofthe license fee actually

charged by the Agent, if the Agent fails to submit the annual self-assessment as required under Section

VII, to the DATCP, by September 30 ofthat year. A fee payment under this paragraph does not exempt

the Agent from the duty to prepare and submit an annual self-assessment.

D. The DATCP shall provide the Agent with a reimbursement summary form to be used by the

Agent to identify all the facilities for which the Agent has issued licenses during the licensing year.

The summary shall be formatted by the Agent to include the complexity assessment rating assigned to

each retail food establishment licensed during the licensing year.

E. State fees for each licensee shall be based on the state license fee, determined by the license

category as follows:

1. Retail Food Establishments - using Wis. Admin. Code § ATCP 75.08 Table B.

2. Lodging and Recreation Facilities - using Wis. Admin. Code chs. ATCP 72, 73, 76, 78

and 79.

F. No later than September 30 ofeach year, the Agent shall return the completed summary form

and reimburse the DATCP for the state fees.

G. If the Agent Program has contracted with the DATCP, pursuantto Wis. Stat.§ 97.41 and

Wis. Admin. Code§ ATCP 74.06, for the DATCP to collect fees and issue licenses, the Agent Program

shall pay the DA TCP for the actual cost ofproviding these services.

V. REIMBURSEMENT BY THE DATCPFOR VENDING INSPECTIONS

A. The Agent shall submit a list ofvending machine inspections it conducted during the

previous fiscal year to the DATCP, no later than September 30 unless the DATCP in its sole discretion

extends the deadline for submission, to receive reimbursement from the DATCP for performing the

inspect1ons.

Page 25 of33



MOA -RET - 2022-2025

B. No later than September 30 ofthe next fiscal year, the DATCP shall reimburse the Agent for

inspections ofvending machines during the previous fiscal year, as required in Wis. Stat. § 97 .615 (1 ).

If the DATCP extends the deadline for submitting inspection information, the DATCP may reimburse

the Agent up to 30 days after receiving this information. The reimbursement amount for vending

machine inspections is the portion that remains after deducting the DATCP's clerical and automated

licensing processing costs from the license fee.

C. Fee reimbursements for the inspection ofvending machines moved from one Agent's

jurisdiction to another Agent's jurisdiction will be credited to the Agent making the first inspection

during the fiscal year.

VI. COSTS

The total license fees the Agent collects may not exceed the Agent's reasonable costs of issuing

licenses to, making investigations and inspections of, and providing education, training and technical

assistance to licensed establishments, plus the state fees.

VII. EVALUATION AND TRAINING

A. At least once each year, the Agent Program shall submit a self-assessment in a format

determined by the DATCP. The DATCP may waive the self-assessment requirement in a year where

the DATCP conducts an evaluation. The DATCP shall evaluate the Agent Program based on the

following required information in the self-assessment:

1. The Agent Program's compliance with the MOA terms.

2. The Agent Program's progress in meeting program standards adopted by the DATCP.

3. The Agent Program's records and reports required pursuant to Wis. Adm in. Code § ATCP

74 20.

B. The DATCP shall conduct an evaluation, at least once every three years, to assess the Agent's

compliance with the provisions ofthis MOA, program standards set by the DATCP, and applicable

statutes and administrative rules. The DATCP may conduct the evaluation process at any reasonable

time and shall give the Agent reasonable advance notice. The evaluation process shall include an office

Page26 of33



MOA - RET - 2022-2025

component and a field component. The office component shall include, but is not limited to, review of

ordinances, regulations, inspection reports, budget information, and other required documentation. The

field component shall include DATCP personnel performing maintenance standardization with the

sanitarian who is the Agent Standard, as well as evaluating other sanitarians, if applicable.

C In addition to the required evaluation, the DATCP may perform additional evaluations of the

Agent's performance at any reasonable time with reasonable advance notice.

D. The DATCP shall provide the Agent program with the DATCP's written findings based on

the review of the self-assessment or an evaluation. The DATCP may, as deemed necessary, increase

the evaluation frequency.

E. The Agent shall submit to the DATCP any required corrective action plan detailing how the

Agent will meet MOA requirements.

F. The DATCP shall review the corrective action plan and may make additional comments or

approve the corrective action plan if deemed acceptable.

G. The Agent shall document progress on the approved corrective action plan on their next one

or two yearly self-assessments as necessary.

H. The Agent shall incorporate the approved corrective action plan in its Agent Program Plan.

I. If the Agent fails to meet the conditions specified in the corrective action plan, the DATCP

shall:

1. Notify the Agent, in writing, of the deficiencies in meeting the corrective action plan and

place the MOA in a conditional status with a deadline for the Agent to meet the corrective action plan

conditions

2 Remove conditional status of the MOA if deficiencies are corrected within the conditional

time period

3. Notify the Agent of its intent to terminate the MOA and revoke Agent status, as provided

pursuant to Wis. Admin Code § ATCP 74.26, if deficiencies remain uncorrected after a conditional

deadline has passed.

Page27 of33



MOA -RET-2022-2025

4. The Agent may request a hearing on the termination in writing, as provided in Wis.

Admin. Code § ATCP 1.03 (3), with the request including the information required in Wis. Admin.

Code § ATCP 1.06. The DATCP shall hold a hearing, ifrequested by Agent, within 15 days after the

DATCP receives the request, unless the Agent agrees to a different date.

J. Notwithstanding these provisions, the DATCP may exercise its right to immediately suspend

a MOA, pursuant to Wis. Admin. Code § ATCP 74.26 (3), to protect public health or safety.

VIII. NONDISCRIMINATION

A. In connection with the performance ofwork under this MOA, the Agent agrees not to

discnminate against any employee or applicant for employment because ofage, race, religion,

color, handicap, sex, physical condition, developmental disability as defined in Wis. Stat. §

51.01(5), sexual orientation as defined in Wis. Stat. § 11 l.32(13m), or national origin. This

provision shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or

transfer; recru1tment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates ofpay or other forms of

compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. Except with respect to sexual

orientation, the Agent shall take affirmative action to ensure equal employment opportunities. The

Agent shall post in conspicuous places, available for employees and applicants for employment,

notices to be provided by the DATCP setting forth the provisions ofthe nondiscrimination clause.

B. Pursuant to s. 16.75(10p), Wis. Stats., Agent agrees it is not, and will not for the duration

of the contract, engage in a prohibited boycott ofthe State oflsrael as defined ins. 20.931(1 )(b).

State agencies and authorities may not execute a contract and reserve the right to terminate an

existing contract with a organization that is not compliant with this provision. This provision

applies to contracts valued $100,000 or over.

C. Pursuant to 2019 Wisconsin Executive Order 1, Agent agrees it will hire only on the basis

ofmerit and will not discriminate against any persons performing a contract, subcontract or grant

because ofmilitary or veteran status, gender identity or expression, marital or familial status,

genetic information or political affiliation.

Page 28 of33



MOA -RET- 2022-2025

D. The DATCP assumes no liability for the job safety or welfare of the Agent employees, or

for the actions or omissions of the Agent employees relating to the administration of the retail food

and recreational program, except as otherwise provided by law.

IX. PRIVACY AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

A Definitions: The following definitions apply to this section.

1. "Confidential Information" : means all tangible and intangible information and

materials, including all Personally Identifiable Information, being disclosed in connection with this

MOA, in any form or medium (and without regard to whether the information is owned by the State

or by a third party), that satisfy at least one of the following criteria:

a. Personally Identifiable Information as defined in sub. 2;

b. Information not subject to disclosure under Wis. Stat. ch. 19, subch. II, Public

Records and Property, that is related to the DATCP's employees, customers, technology (including

data bases, data processing and communications networking systems), schematics, specifications,

and all information or materials derived therefrom or based thereon; or

c. Information expressly designated as confidential in wnting by the DATCP.

2. "Personally Identifiable Information" means an individual's last name and the

individual's first name or first initial, in combination with, and linked to, any of the following

elements, if the element is not publicly available information and is not encrypted, redacted, or

altered in any manner that renders the element unreadable:

a. The individual's Social Security number;

b. The individual's Driver's License number or state identification number,

c. The number of the individual's financial account, including a credit or debit card

account number or any security code, access code, or password that would permit access to the

individual's financial account;

d. The individual's DNA profile, or

e. The individual's unique biometric data, including fingerprint, voice print, retina or

Page 29 of33



MOA -RET- 2022-2025

iris image, or any other unique physical representation, and any other information protected by state

or federal law.

3. "Corrective Action Plan" means a plan, developed by the Agent and approved by the

DATCP, that the Agent must follow in the event ofany threatened or actual use or disclosure of any

Confidential Information not specifically authorized by this MOA, or in the event that any

Confidential Information is lost or cannot be accounted for by the Agent.

B. Duty ofNon-Disclosure and Security Precautions

1. The Agent shall not use Confidential Information for any purpose other than the

limited purposes set forth in this MOA and all related and necessary actions taken in fulfillment of

the obligations thereunder. The Agent shall not disclose such Confidential Information to any

persons other than those Agent Representatives who have a business-related need to have access to

such Confidential Information in furtherance of the limited purposes ofthis MOA and who have

been apprised of, and agree to maintain, the confidential nature of such information in accordance

with the terms ofthis MOA. The Agent shall be responsible for the breach ofthis MOA by any said

Representatives.

2. The Agent shall institute and maintain such security procedures as are reasonable to

maintain the confidentiality ofthe Confidential Information while in its possession or control

including transportation or transmission, whether physically or electronically.

3. The Agent shall insure that all indications ofconfidentiality contained on or included

in any item ofConfidential Information shall be reproduced by the Agent on any reproduction,

modification, or translation of such Confidential Information. If requested by the DATCP, Agent

shall make a reasonable effort to add a proprietary notice or indication ofconfidentiality to any

tangible materials within its possession that contain Confidential Information ofthe DATCP, as

directed.

4. The Agent shall return to the DATCP all Personally Identifiable Information it

maintains, possesses or controls, collected on behalf ofthis MOA, upon termination of this MOA and

Page30 of33



MOA -RET - 2022-2025

shall destroy all copies.

C. Legal Disclosure. IfAgent or any of its Representatives shall be under a legal obligation

in any administrative, regulatory or judicial circumstance to disclose any Confidential Information,

the Agent shall give the DATCP's Office of Legal Counsel prompt notice thereof (unless it has a legal

obligation to the contrary) to allow the DATCP to inspect the Confidential Information and seek a

protective order or other appropriate remedy. In the event that such protective order or other remedy

1s not obtained, Agent and its Representatives shall furnish only that portion of the information that is

legally required and shall disclose the Confidential Information in a manner reasonably designed to

preserve its confidential nature. Agent or its representatives shall not be obligated to wait on any

action or inaction by the DATCP, under this section, at any time when Agent is required to release

information under other authority of law.

D. Unauthorized Use, Disclosure or Loss

1. Immediately upon becoming aware of any threatened or actual use or disclosure of

any Confidential Information that is not specifically authorized by this MOA, or that any Confidential

Information has been lost or is unaccounted for, the Agent shall notify the DATCP's Office of Legal

Counsel of the problem. Such notice shall include, to the best of the local Agent's knowledge at that

time, the persons affected, their identities and the Confidential Information disclosed.

2. The Agent shall take immediate steps to mitigate any harmful effects of the

unauthonzed use, disclosure or loss. The Agent shall cooperate with the DATCP's efforts to seek

appropriate injunctive relief or to otherwise prevent or curtail such threatened or actual breach, or to

recover the Confidential Information, including complying with a Corrective Action Plan.

X. TERM, TERMINATION, REVOCATION OR SUSPENSION OFAGENT MOA

A. The term of this MOA shall be a period of three years, commencing on the effective date

set forth above.

B. TERMINATION. The DATCP or the Agent may terminate this MOA upon 90 days

written notice to the other party. The notice shall specify the reasons for termination and the last

Page 31 of33



MOA-RET-2022-2025

day the Agent will have Agent status. By such termination, no party may nullify obligations

mcurred prior to the effective date oftermination. The 90 days' notice requirement may be waived

by mutual written consent ofthe parties.

B. REVOCATION. If the DATCP finds that the Agent has failed to comply with the

requirements for Agent status under Wis. Stat.§§ 97.41(2) or 97.615 (2) (b), Wis. Admin. Code ch.

ATCP 74, or the terms and conditions ofthis MOA, the DATCP may revoke Agent status, as

provided by statute, upon 90 days written notice to the Agent. The notice shall specify the reasons

for revocation and the last day that the Agent will have Agent status.

C. SUSPENSION. If the DATCP finds that suspension ofthis MOA is necessary to protect

the public's health or safety, the DATCP may immediately suspend this MOA upon notice to the

Agent. The Agent may request a hearing on the suspension in writing, as provided in Wis. Admin.

Code § ATCP 1.03 (3), including the information required in Wis. Admin. Code § ATCP 1.06. The

DATCP shall hold a hearing, ifrequested by Agent, within 15 days after the DATCP receives the

request, unless the Agent agrees to a different date. The suspension shall remain in effect until the

final hearing decision is issued.

D REIMBURSEMENT UPON TERMINATION OR REVOCATION:

1. Vending: If this MOA is terminated or revoked, the Agent shall receive

reimbursement for inspections ofvending machines performed under the MOA up to and including

the date oftermination or revocation.

2. Other Licenses: If this MOA is terminated or revoked, the Agent shall reimburse the

DATCP for the prorated amount, for the remainder ofthe fiscal year, of all license fees received by

the Agent. The reimbursement shall be based on this formula: Days left in fiscal year/365 times the

state license fees for all the establishments the Agent has licensed.

E. TRANSFER OF RECORDS. Upon termination or revocation ofthis MOA, the Agent

shall transfer all inspection and enforcement records to the DATCP.

Page 32 0f33



MOA-RET - 2022-2025

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, DATCP and CITY OF FRANKLIN HEALTH DEPARTMENT

have executed this MOA as of the date this MOA is signed by DATCP. This MOA may be executed in

multiple originals, which together shall constitute a single agreement. The parties agree to accept a

handwritten s1gnature or an electronic signature that complies with Wis. Stat. ch. 137 to execute this

MOA.

CITY OF FRANKLIN HEALTH DEPARTMENT

BY:
[Name ofSignatory]

TITLE: _

BA'T;

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE,
TRADE AND CONSUMER PROTECTION

BY:
Amy Millard

TITLE: Deputy Administrator

DATE: _

Page33 of33



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

sbo
REPORTS AND

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Polling Location Facility Usage/Indemnity
Agreement With St. Martin of Tours Church

MEETING
DATE

2/01/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.1.(c)

Since 2008, the City has used St. Martin of Tours Church as a polling location for Aldermanic
District 6. Attached is a Facility Usage/Indemnity Agreement with St. Martin of Tours Church
for 2022 elections to be held on February 15 (Whitnall School District Primary), April 5 (Spring
Election), August 9 (Partisan Primary), and November 8 (General Election). Staff is requesting
approval of the Agreement, subject to review by the City Attorney.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to approve the Facility Usage/Indemnity Agreement with St. Marin ofTours Church for use of
their location as a polling site on February 15, April 5, August 9, and November 8, 2022, subject to
review by the City Attorney.

CITY CLERK'S OFFICE-slw



FACILITY USAGE/INDEMNITY AGREEMENT

The Facility Usage/Indemnity Agreement must be used when non-parish sponsored or
affiliated groups use parish facilities on a short-term basis such as one day or a week. The
following groups are examples of non-parish sponsored or affiliated groups that must sign the
Facility Usage/Indemnity Agreement:

1. Knights of Columbus, American Legion or other similar organizations that use
parish facilities for meetings or fundraisers.

2. AAU sport teams or non-parish sponsored sport classes/clinics.
3. Parishioner and non-parishioner families that rent or use parish facilities for

wedding receptions, family reunions, anniversary parties or other similar
activities. (In lieu of signing the Facility Usage/Indemnity Agreement, a
parishioner or non-parishioner family would be eligible to purchase "special event"
liability coverage through your parish via Catholic Mutual.) Please note that
funeral luncheons are parish sponsored events.

4. Any other organization, municipality or county organization that uses parish
facilities for a meeting or function that is non-parish sponsored.

The Facility Usage/Indemnity Agreement requires the facility user to provide the parish
with a certificate of insurance documenting general liability coverage in the amount of
$1,000,000 per occurrence. This certificate of insurance must name your parish as an additional
insured. It is not adequate to obtain a certificate of insurance that names the parish as a
"certificate holder."

It is often asked what criteria an organization must meet to be parish sponsored or
affiliated. In the event of an insurance claim involving a potential non-parish sponsored activity,
the following questions would be asked to further determine if a group was parish sponsored and
eligible for insurance coverage:

1. Did the parish have full control over the group or function?
2. Did any costs or fees associated with the function flow through parish accounts?
3. Was the function or group open to all parish members?
4. Was the purpose of the function or group to facilitate learning, raise revenue for

the parish or provide a social service on behalf of the parish?
5. Was the teacher or leader of the group a parish volunteer or employee?

In general, a group that does not meet the definition of an affiliated organization or is
unable to answer the above five questions in the affirmative would not be parish sponsored.
Accordingly, that group must sign the Facility Usage/Indemnity Agreement and supply the
parish with the necessary insurance documentation.

1
Rev 02/24/2021



FACILITYUSAGE/INDEMNITYAGREEMENT

PARISH: St. Martin ofTours

FACILITY USER:CityofFranklin

DATES OF FACILITY USAGE: February 15, 2022,April 5, 2022, August 9, 2022 &
November 8 2022.

TYPE OF FACILITY USAGE:Elections

The above named FACILITY USER agrees to defend, protect, indemnify and
hold harmless the above named PARISH against and from all claims or causes of action arising
from the use of the facility and operations of the above named FACILITY USER including
claims initiated by third parties or claims arising from the actions of its employees, agents,
family members, officers, volunteers, partners, organizational members or associates.

FACILITY USER agrees to provide a certificate of insurance to the PARISH
which provides evidence of general liability coverage of not less than One Million Dollars
($1,000,000) per occurrence. FACILITY USER also agrees to have the PARISH named as an
"Additional Insured" on its general liability policy for the DATES OF FACILITY USAGE in
relationship to the TYPE OF FACILITY USAGE for claims which arise out of FACILITY
USER'S operations or are brought against the PARISH by FACILITY USERS' employees,
agents, partners, family members, students, customers, function attendees, guests, invitees,
organizational members or associates. FACILITY USER also agrees to ensure that its liability
insurance policy will be primary in the event of a covered claim or cause of action against
PARISH.

Ifand only if FACILITY USER fails to comply with the above (second) paragraph,
then the above named FACILITY USER agrees to protect, defend, hold harmless and fully
indemnify the above named PARISH for any claim or cause of action whatsoever arising out
of or related to the usage which takes place during the above identified DATE(S) OF
FACILITY USAGE that is brought against the PARISH by the above named FACILITY USER
or its employees, agents, partners, family members, students, customers, function attendees,
guests, invitees, organizational members or associates, whether such claim arises from the alleged
negligence of the PARISH, its employees or agents, or the negligence of the FACILITY USER.

SIGNED BY: _
Must be an official agent of FACILITY USER)

NAME AND TITLE: _

DATE: _

2
Rev 02/24/2021



EXHIBIT A TO FACILITYUSAGE/INDEMNITYAGREEMENT
COVID-19 LIABILITYRELEASE ANDHOLD HARMLESS

AGREEMENT

CityofFranklin(Unaffiliated Organization) in consideration of being

granted permission on February 15, 2022, April 5, 2022, August 9, 2022 & November 8, 2022

(date/s) to use real property owned by St. Martin of Tours Parish during the Coronavirus

Pandemic, does hereby promise to forever protect, defend, hold harmless and fully indemnify

the above named Parish and its employees, agents, volunteers, officers, directors, parent

corporations, subsidiaries, and insurers/third party administrators from any and all claims or

causes of actions in any way related to COVID-19, brought by any person or entity, arising

out of or related to the use of Parish property, including but not limited to all claims and causes

of action based on the alleged negligence of the Parish, the negligence of its employees, agents,

and volunteers or other third parties, or my own negligence.

Authorized Representative ofUnaffiliated Organization

CITY OF FRANKLIN

BY----------
Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

BY------------
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

BY------------
Brian Tomczak, Director of
Finance and Treasurer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

BY------------
Jesse A. Wesolowski, City
Attorney

Rev 02/24/2021
3

Dated:-----

Dated:-----

Dated:-----

Dated:-----



EXHIBIT B TO FACILITY USAGE/INDEMNITY AGREEMENT
COVID-19 PROTOCOLS

1. Safety Protocols, Unaffiliated Organization hereby agrees to adopt thorough and detailed

COVID-19 safety protocols for any and all of its activities in the facility.

2. leaning. Upon request of the Parish as indicated in the checkboxes below, Unaffiliated

Organization hereby agrees to clean and sanitize the areas of usage in the facility after the

conclusion of the dates of facility usage, and further agrees to be solely responsible for all costs

and materials necessary to complete said cleaning and sanitizing. In the event that no boxes are

checked below, it shall be deemed that cleaning was not requested by the Parish.

D Cleaning requested by Parish

~ Cleaning NOT requested by Parish

Authorized Representative ofUnaffiliated Organization

CITY OF FRANKLIN

BY----------
Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

BY------------
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

BY------------
Brian Tomczak, Director of
Finance and Treasurer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

BY------------
Jesse A. Wesolowski, City
Attorney

Rev 02/24/2021
4

Dated:-----

Dated:

Dated:-----

Dated:-----



ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I DATE (MMIDDNYYY)

-" 12/27/2021
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER ]"' Karl1e Davis
R & R Insurance Services, Inc PHONE (262) 574-7000 I FAX (262) 574-7080AIC No Ex»., (A/C,Nol
N14 W23900 Stone Ridge Drive {aKarlie.pavaserrins.com

INSURERISI AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Waukesha WI 53188 INSURERA LWMMI
INSURED INSURERB United Heartland - LWMMI
City of Frankl1n INSURERC

9229 W Loomis Rd INSURERD

INSURERE

Franklin WI 53132 INSURERF

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 22/23 REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TOTHE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDINGANY REQUIREMENT TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENTWITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TOALL THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS

INSR ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE , t arot iaarr POLICY NUMBER (MMDDNYYYY I IMM/DDNYYYI LIMITS

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 10,000,000~D CLAIMS-MADEA [loss DAMAGETO RENTED 500,000PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $
40226 1/1/2022 1/1/2023 MED EXP (Any one person) $ 10,000~

s PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 10,000,000

GEN'LAGGREGATE LIMITAPPLIES PER GENERAL AGGREGATE $

R □PRO- Jc.POLICY JECT PRODUCTS COMP/OPAGG $

OTHER $
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $ 10,000,000(Ea accident)~
X ANYAUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $A ~ -ALL OWNED SCHEDULED 40226 1/1/2022 1/1/2023 BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $a AUTOS ,___ AUTOS
X X NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)~ ,___

Medical Payments $ 10,000
UMBRELLA LIAB HOCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $he
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

OED I I RETENTION $ $
WORKERS COMPENSATION 1,%% I I OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ER

Y/N
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE (5] E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 100,000OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N/A

B (Mandatory in NH) 0900065376 1/1/2022 1/1/2023 EL. DISEASE EA EMPLOYEE $ 100,000
If yes describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below EL. DISEASE POLICY LIMIT $ 500 000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101,Additional Remarks Schedule may be attached if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
+For Informational Purposes Only+ THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

I S Hu1bregtse/AP691 rLa..t-
ACORD 25 (2014/01)
INS025 (21401

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Approve a Three-Year Property Assessment Services
Contract with Accurate Appraisal, LLC

MEETING
DATE

2/1/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.2.
BACKGROUND

The City of Franklin has been under contract with its current Property Assessment Services Provider, Tyler
Technologies, for quite a few years, as records have been found on the same dating back to 2001. The
contracts in place between 2001 and 2021 have varied in duration, from one-year agreements to three-year
agreements, with the existing agreement being a three-year agreement, expiring on December 31, 2021. As
such, staff initiated a Request for Proposals (RFP) in late 2021.

Two qualified companies responded to the RFP, and interviews were held regarding the same.

Tyler Technologies currently provides: (1) Assessor Services, meaning the company performs the role of the
City's Statutory Assessor; (2) Annual Maintenance Services, meaning the company performs all necessary and
required assessment maintenance services, including clerical staffing in the Assessor's Office during the
City's normal business hours which began in 2016; and (3) Revaluation Services, meaning the company
performs an Interim Market Update Revaluation of all taxable real property in the City on an annual basis.

ANALYSIS

The services currently provided are as follows:

1. Assessor Services, meaning the company performs the role of the City's Statutory Assessor;
2. Annual Maintenance Services, meaning the company performs all necessary and required assessment

maintenance services, including clerical staffing in the Assessor's Office during the City's normal
business hours which began in 2016; and

3. Revaluation Services, meaning the company performs an Interim Market Update Revaluation of all
taxable real property in the City on an annual basis.

The City believes this is the strongest assessment services model, and wishes to continue in this manner.
However, there will be a renewed effort to help Franklin property owners better understand the process and
its relation to property taxes paid moving forward.

The goals that staff set out to achieve through the RFP process are as follows:

• A change to the timing of future agreements to better align with the timing of the typical annual State
and local assessment processes.

• A change to bring the timing of the assessment process more in line with the State's formal process,
ensuring that the City meets the statutory deadlines with regard to reporting, so that there are less
adjustments over the years due to the timing of information received by the State. While this may not
be able to be accomplished in the first year of a new agreement due to the timing of the expiration of
the existing agreement, it is goal to achieve by the end of the agreement period.

• A review of pricing and a possible recalibration of fees.



In regard to the existing agreement, the City currently paid an annualized fee of $213,500 for these services in
2021, broken down as follows: Assessor Services - $88,500; Annual Maintenance Services - $91,200; and
Revaluation Services - $33,800. In addition, the City is responsible for the assessment software and
maintenance, computers, printers, office supplies, and postage with regard to assessment services, for a total
of approximately $230,000 annually when new equipment is not needed. The funding source for this
agreement is the City's General Fund.

Throughout the RFP process, staff accepted proposals, conducted interviews, and checked references of the
responding firms. Working through that process, it became evident that both responding firms were
qualified and capable to partner with the City over the next three-year period to provide these services to the
community. However, there were a few distinctions between the firms that made one firm stand out over the
other as determining factors in this decision:

• An established education and communication plan regarding assessment services;
• A strong base to provide back-up coverage if/when needed, on an ongoing basis;
• The ability to meet statutory deadlines so that there are not subsequent year corrections which affect

the City's Tax Increment Financing Districts;
• The ability to change the timing of the agreement to better match the assessment process to preserve

flexibility for future agreements; and
• The ability to provide stronger web presence.

In addition, the cost comparison of the two firms, over the next three-year period is as follows:

• Accurate Appraisal, LLC
• Tyler Technologies-

3-Year Agreement
$611,600
$672,100

5-Year Agreement
$1,031,600
$1,181,900

As the above noted priorities were contemplated and confirmed through the interview and reference checks,
it was determined that Accurate Appraisal, LLC would be the most prudent choice to partner with the City to
provide these important services over the next three-year period.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff is recommending partnering with Accurate Appraisal, LLC, to provide assessment services for the
community over the next three-year period, with the contract commencing in the near future and runnin g
through August 31, 2024, with the potential of two, one-year extensions.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to approve a three-year property assessment services contract with Accurate Appraisal, LLC, with the
contract commencing in the near future and runnin g through August 31, 2024, with the potential of two, one
year extensions; and to authorize the Director of Admini stration to execute an agreement for the same using
the City's standard contract form.

DOA-PAS



INTRODUCTION
We appreciate the opporturn1y to serve the Ci1y of Franklin!

For over 21 years, Accurate Appraisal has continuously improved the assessment experience
through innovation, education, and technology. We understand your communi1y 1s unique,
therefore we provide assessment solutions tailored to fit your commurn1y's needs

We firmly believe that every property owner comes first. They should be part of the
assessment process and not Just an end result. We work hard to make sure everyone is treated
fairly and equitably.

TRANSPARENCY
is our core principle in educating and empowering those we serve.

OUR CORE VALUES:
1 .WE ARE FAMILY
We have an unwavenng loyalty to each other and our
customers We Respect & Encourage each other and
appreciate uniqueness We value and support each
other's health safety and work/life balance

2. ALWAYS TRANSPARENT
We are Open & Honest 1n ALL 1nteract1ons. shanng our
data processes informahon mstakes, and vctones
We hold each other accountable Our avrnlabil1ty to
our customers and family members 1s abundant

4. BE ADMIRABLE
We guard our integrity by doing the right thing-ALWAYS We stnve
for qualify and prec1s1on 1n our work, our products and our
services We act hke owners and honor our word and
commitments We choose candor respect and kindness

5.WE ARE A BOATLOAD OF FUN!
Posrtvrty is our attitude ofchoice We have mnfectous
spurts bnngng enthusiasm and excitement to all we
do We are passionate and value drverstty and
1nclus1on Theres no reason too small to celebrate

3. EMBRACE GROWTH & INNOVATION
We are comfortable being uncomfortable while strvng to
get better every day We foster and enhance customer
relationships while seeking to learn and develop We offer to
teach and mentor customers and family members

Our Mission:
Engaging our employees to collaborate. educate, and deliver the most reliable and transparent
assessment solutions innovation, communication and technology.

ifoaccurreassessor.com [ 920.749.8098 [ 1.800.770.3927 \ accurateassessor.com



OUR HISTORY
Accurate was founded 21 years ago on complete Transparency and Communication.

For many years It was common practice for assessors to suppress 1nformat1on from the public This
resulted mn a lack of understanding and mistrust w1th1n the community The founders of Accurate
recognized these short comings and began p1oneenng new innovative assessment standards.

Over the years we have developed web-based digital property record cards, created web based
scheduling options, and built our own CAMA to update data digitally mn the field.Ith a
combined expenence of over 180 years

2000- 2005
20 municipalities
Building digital data online
New Website
Full Value Service Options
Blend Options mare affordable
and budget friendly

II I I
75 municipalities
Built online scheduling
Moved to new location on
Midway Rd
Growing added new employees

2010-2015
90 Municipalities
Started building proprietary
CAMA

added more

100+ municipalities
Digital in the field
CAMA software Prolorem launches
live assessor certified customer service
Intentional community education pion

At Accurate we make a concerted effort to connect and learn the nuances of each community.
There Is no "cookie-cutter" way to assess unique communities.We tailor our services to fit the
needs of everyone we serve. Here is a small sample:

UNIQUE ASSESSMENTS
Views of the Capital Building-Dane County
Views of the lake - Fontana
Bayshore Mall - Glendale
Access to the Chain of Lakes -Dayton
All of Menominee County
Dock-O-Miniums - Fontana

CORPORATE BUSINESS
Secura - Fox Crossing
Johnson Controls -Glendale
Foth - De Pere
Miron Fox Crossing
Cleary Building -Greenville
Humana Insurance -De Pere

TAX EXEMPT EXPERIENCE
St Norbert College - De Pere
Drvne Savor Hospital Portage
Skaalen Retirement Services - Stoughton

DISTRIBUTION/WAREHOUSING
WALMART Distribution center Beaver Darn
Amazon -Greenville
TARGET -Oconomowoc

ASSESSMENT EXPERIENCE

ALL INCLUSIVE SERVICES
ul open book to keep waifing lo a rinirnur

cerifi! cunt Manager
lo)lionsl ral:rials



EDUCATION IS KEY
Your community matters to US. We provide the best community education plans through customized
content that educates and puts property owners first!

Our #1 priority is transparency. We share ourprocess and inform your community to reduce
stress and give property owners the freedom and flex1b1hty to communicate with us on their time

Most assessors will do the bare minimum and send notices, then wart for the community to contact them with
questions and concerns This one-way channel of communication is not transparent and leaves property
owners scrambling to figure out what 1s going on Often times this creates a nft between property owners, the
munic1pailty and the assessor

Our education plan puts your community first. Wewill use every avenue social media, board
meetings, newsletters, post card mrnhngs, custom videos. you name rt,we do rtl

1 . SOCIAL MEDIA

E»
Utilize your channels of social media to educate o
the process of assessments We mix this with a
schedule of postings over the coming year to let
property owners know what to expect and the
status of the current market Involving the
community ensures we have two-way
communication through theassessment process

Your community will inevitably have questions about
the how assessments work We will attend council
meetings to educate your members arming them
with the knowledge they need to explain the annual
revaluation assessment process wth property owners

■
t@it

· ..·' r-.
s #4

""a
'- I.. £ +

- .. 10

6. OPEN BOOK & BOR
Wewill offer over the phoneOpen Book
appointments as well as in person options For 1n
person Open Book property owners will be
greeted with aT/ sldeshow wrth assessment
videos ploying We provide computers for
property owners to review the roll and ~---
for find their record cards

Updating your websitewth a custom video helps
explain what a revaluation is and what to expect
We can build links to property record cords and
education FAQ for the annual revaluation The
communrty utilizes your websrte as a resource we
serve them best by keeping them up to dote

4. WEBSITE

A notice of new value will be mailed to every
property owner Insertedwith the notice will be
an UnderstandingYour Assessment mformaton
shee1 explaining the assessment process with
QR codes links to videos an onllne
appointment scheduler and access to our
customer service team

Writing articles that address assessments what to
expect and the schedule of social media postings
keep your community engaged Wecan 1nvrte
readers to sign up for text alerts or email updates
throughout the year

5. NOTICES

3. NEWSLETTER



SOFTWARE

Our assessors are trained to assess properties on their tablet
in the field, elmnatng errors from re-entering data There Is
no need to take hand written notes back to the office to
update and value on a property Our CAMA 1s the only
software that updates property record cards 1n real time

9?
Ga#

Scan QR to check out a live example!

There are no costs to use our software and convert
your current dgrtal data We have 3 IT specialists that
will review and convert data quickly and easily.

All property card has images and detailed
information about each parcel. They are available
on our website FREE to you and your community
24/7.

Our proprietary CAMA system is
completely CLOUD BASED.

Accurate has converteddata into Prolorem from multiple forms of CAMA systems 1nclud1ng Market
Drive, Tyler Technologies, GVS, TC Win, and many more. Our on staff IT integrates multiple platforms
like GIS, Apex Sketching Tool, iWorQ, etc to streamline our process Because our software 1s proprietary
we have the ability to add or remove features you request at no additional cost.

PR@ORM A REVOLUTION IN
ASSESSING SOFTWARE

SOFTWARE COST: $0.00
LICENSING/MAINTENANCE: $0.00
SOFTWARE:

INTEGRATION ABILITY: YES, $0.00
CONVERSION ABILITY: YES, $0.00

There are never addhonal costs for conversions
updates lcensmng Integrahons additions etc



PORTFOLIO OF WORK
We serve a variety of muncipalrhes across the state From small towns to large crhies No matter the
size of the community or the number of parcels there Is one thing that matters most to us. Our focus IS
on one thing Putting property owners first.

»I,A IIs ranru ho mu4aI'"
nTO O Crtv 0.--, l 1 1. BLEND
De Pere Ci#y 24,893 , 18,168,000 7,664 FULL VALUE

Fox Crossina Village 18,892 1,198,650,600 6,246 FULL VALUE
Onalaska City 18,712 1.405,385,500 5,895 BLEND
Cudahv Citv 18,200 904,066,900 UI U

Oconomo itv 7, l I u LVALUE. .
B V r II Crtv 16,476 .557,5 5,545 FULL VALUE
River Falls City 15,800 934,801.400 1,368 BLEND
Whitewater Cy 14,517 433,367,500 2.607 FULL L
Shorewood Villaae 13,338 1.418,231,600 . JLL II

toual ton itv 1,1 1 . .4 F LL VALUE
n le City 12,779 1,065,226,500 5,030 BLEND

Platteville Citv 12,537 390,522.000 2,820 BLEND
Brown Deer Village 11,964 674,445,400 4,264
Greenville Town 11,874 1,218,445, , 4 UL E
Harrison VI 1a 11, 2 1 7 I ,307 BLEND
url ato tty 10,668 ,648,100 3,435 FULL VALUE
Oreaon Villaoe 10,390 1,121,101,700 3,634 FULL VALUE
Portaae Crlv 10,365 408,028,900 l l F J II E

Scan QR to for
full list of the
communities
we serve.

BLEND
Years of maintenance
with a market revaluation
at least one year of the
contract

FULLVALUE
A market revaluation
performed every year

MAINTENANCE
Review of permits new
construction splits etc

Maintenance:
Accurate inspects all permits, new construction and any demolrhons Every sale will be entered and
revtewed. lf there are changes to condrt1on or mussing informaton we will update the data to reflect
Any request for 1nspect1on from your community will also be visited. We also perform discovery,
therefore If we see a property mn the crty that comes to attention we wll flag rt for a field vsrt.

Annual Market Revaluation (Full Value):
During the annual market revaluation we will complete all of our maintenance Inspections, check
permits, and review sales We will then break down each property by neighborhood, style, age,
location etc. Each will be evaluated and re-assessed to rt's new fair market value. A notice of new
value will be mailed to the property owners along with an understanding your assessment flyer. It 1s
important that we start our education for each new assessment year many months before notices
are mailed. This ensures everyone knows what to expect and they can ask us questions early mn the
process. Please see (Education Is Key page) In this proposal for our plan.

ccu]



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION

AMOTION TO RESCIND ORAMEND RESOLUTION
2017-7318 A RESOLUTIONTO WAIVEWATER

EXTENSION TO SERVE ALOT ON 5000 BLOCK OF
W. MINNESOTAAVENUE

MTG.DATE
February 1, 2022

ITEM NO.

G.3.
BACKGROUND
On November 7, 2017, Common Council passed Resolution 2017-7318 that allowed a 3-lot
Certified Survey Map to be created without the need to connect to public water, provided that
when water is available, the home would have one-year to connect. The developer/owner is in the
process of constructing the home.

Currently, there is consideration ofa watermain project that would trigger the need to connect and
the property owner is requesting that the City rescind the requirements stipulated in the resolution.

ANALYSIS
The previous Council Action is attached for review of the issues. There are three options for
consideration of how to address the current request regarding Resolution 2017-7318.

1. Common Council could rescind the previous resolution. If a watermain project is
constructed, this property would be treated like any other property under consideration for
special assessment charges.

2. Common Council could amend the previous resolution to modify terms of the resolution.
For example, instead of a one-year timeframe, connection might be required within ten
years.

3. Common Council could take no action on the request and enforce the requirements
stipulated therein. The current owner is the same person that made the commitments in
2017. One could note that he understood the conditional approval to develop a lot and
construct a home on that lot, and proceeded with that understanding.

Of note, Staff met with the property owner, Mr. Gudgeon. He prefers to rescind the previous
resolution. Furthermore, he is agreeable to participate in the W. Minnesota Avenue watermain
project like the rest of the benefited properties.

OPTIONS:
A) Rescind
B) Reconsider
C) No Action

FISCAL NOTE
This decision will have an impact on an anticipated special assessment report.

RECOMMENDATION
(Option A) Motion to rescind Resolution 2017-7318 a resolution to waive water extension to serve
a lot on 5000 block ofW. Minnesota Avenue.

Department ofEngmeermg GEM



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-7318

A RESOLUTION TO WAIVE WATER EXTENSION TO SERVE A LOT IN THE 5000 BLOCK
OF W. MINNESOTA AVENUE AT THIS TIME AND REQUIRE THE PROPERTY OWNERS OF
THIS LOT TO CONNECT TO PUBLIC WATER WITHIN ONE YEAR OF CONSTRUCTION OF

A PUBLIC WATER MAIN EXTENDED TO THE PROPERTY

WHEREAS, David Gudgeon and James L. Loudon have been working on a 3-lot land
division on the property ofthe northeast corner of S. 51st Street and W. Minnesota Avenue; and

WHEREAS, Common Council approved the CSM with a condition that the applicant shall
request that the City extend public water facilities to serve Lot 3. If rejected, Lot 3 may be developed
with a private well-water system. A statement shall be added to Sheet 1 of the Certified Survey Map
to indicate whether the land is being served by public sanitary sewer and water or public sanitary
sewer only; and

WHEREAS, staff has determined that extension of the public water supply system to loop it
through the neighborhood is burdensome for development ofone created lot; and

WHEREAS, the owner, and its successors will be required to connect to public water within
one year of construction ofa public water main extended to the created lot.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the City of
Franklin that it would be in the best interest of the City to waive water extension a lot in the 5000
block ofW. Minnesota Avenue at this time.

FURTHERMORE BE IT RESOLVED that the property owners of lot 3 be required to
connect to public water withm one year of construction of a public water main extended to the
property.

Introduced at a regular meeting ofthe Common Council ofthe City ofFranklin the 8" day of
November, 2017, by Alderman Wilhelm.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City ofFranklin on the 7th day of
November, 2017.

Stephen

ATTEST:

4e.au.ti
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES 6 NOES0 ABSENT0



fqrkh

it ii

MlLWAUKEECOUNTY CERTlt'IE.DSURVEY MAP NO, _
!If.IN(,,\_ l>IVIS10N 01' I.OT 8, D.LOCICJ, IN SMOl.ltN'8 llAWSON MANOlt NO '2 ANl>"l"llltl(,\S'I TWEN I\ lil\'I(
FEEI O M 'I VACATE ERV" RoAll ,\!)JOINING ON' nm WIIS'F, IN l'IIE NtiR1'lll!,\S "i" IN OF SR<''l'ION 11,
TOWN 5 NOl!TII, RANGI'. 21 l!AST, IN 1 IIE CITYOI• ll_llANlq.1N, MIi WAIIICKll C'OIJNTY, WISCONSIN

$MEET 1 OF a

,w..~--.=----!,,.". .,
Ill[ lldi)l n;(_:, I (1;/ll(li

RT3"CGllt l'DI. MIil 00,\!i~ UP
II J-CO,-lill,ll .
r 1.:.n.tif:JS

A uo:mnxr
0 w?4?'1'
C J(l"IJ'l'JO"

D in7'54"
E 90110"0()"

tURl!tiol lll!ltlG ·11-G 0,S_lnl,I
.!i'.!l\l,i/!L',l;.!l!tt!ti.
IKONJ YAIIO JH[[l
gg[ Y/Jlll 10 fl[)
R(AR YARD JO r'cn

:PROPERTYOWNERS
<l/lME8.L LOUDON
~~~~~~AVENUE
TAX Kl;Y'N(;>. 75000 24000
R-6Z0NililO

DAVID QIOOEON
·BARBARA illioOEON
7270 8. 5stsiEr
FRAM.N, W, 53132
TAX l<EY NO. 71190025000
R-G ZGNlNO

_ITERoR AGL.rs

WU JAM J KA!ll' EN h r L S
663 W13007 , I/INF..8VRJ.E ROAD
MU6KEGO, -Wf 53150 -
CELL (4!4) 469-2149.
EMAIL • bkliu.-.eyOJllrn,iLcom

'";;
"

io ., I% eID.,, :4
+-0
3

iii

I

-\
L-...

f
sou"

DENOTi=S FOUND f D_IA..IRON PIPE
- DENOTES SET 1" blA. X Iii' LONO

IRONPIPEWEIOHff\'G L5 LBS,
PER LIHEAL FOO'(
ALL BEAHINC',S ARE: REFEftENCED TO
1llE WEST UN6bF THE NORTHEASY
!{ii <;>F SEC'llON 11-5-2\ WHICH IS
ASSUMED TO BEAR 8 OO'l3'11l' W,
STATE PLANE-CCOflDINATE: SYSTEM
BOU11-l ZOHE JANUARY 2016 DATUM.

16l2ll"--·y-1
% »I

s «rot-s ;l}
¼:;J'-!-,

LOCATION SKETCH
JH'llt111£A.'-"T J/4 ?a:c110N I l-!i-21

I ::: IOIIP'

IOIAl /,RCA (Jr f!\l!lODICiS L'II !OJ 1- • l.481.D SQ. fl
Alll'A or LOT ? s 2<>,1~.? SQ. fT
LOI ACo (01 ? = G 79z

WILLIAM ,I KARPENINSTRUMENT DRAFTED BY

J:lCD'

IL Sutt1 CY.+rr mr U~TIIUSf 1/J,
t:r· gcJK:"1 II S 2.1
Cut. CI WM 8Ra Ci
II' })7769.1~
[ 1~,11.) U,.18



--,,.------------------------------------

la»
I

:a,aaJ:).S tSts ·s
r{£

3:
QJz

!JI

b «> 'q'
CX) 0

0

lO

~r-...,

C



BACKGROUND
On April 16, 2019, Common Council directed Staff to have an adjacent developer prepare cost estimates for
design, permitting and construction of water main along S. 50th Street to W. Minnesota Avenue and to S. 51 st
Street and further to survey properties in the vicinity of S. 50th Street and W. Minnesota Avenue and S. 51st
Street for interest in public water service.

Staffworked with the Alderwoman of the District on the attached survey to the residents.

The letter was sent out the following addresses.
4932 Minnesota - Return Surveyfor/agamst new water man, subject to assessment
4939 Minnesota - ReturnSurveyfor/agaunst new water man, subject to assessment
495] Minnesota - Return Surveyfor/aganst new water mamn, subject to assessment
5003 W Minnesota - Return Surveyforlagamnst new water man, subject to assessment

5050 W Minnesota - (Some confusion- they are a current water customer)
5055 WW Minnesota - Survey not requred, water available on 5I", no assessment

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

NCILA

D

' ' 'ON W. MINNESOTA AV
(TAX KEY NOS: 759 0023 000, 759 0038 000, 759 003

000, 759 0034 000, AND 759 0024 003)

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

New Lot on W. Minnesota - Survey not required, must connect fextended, subject to assessment

As directed, Staff discussed the project budget with the adjacent developer. The cost for design in 2019 would
be below $20,000 as Franklin would ask the developer of Oakridge to provide the design in conjunction with
their project located northeast of Marquette Avenue and S. 51st Street. The cost for extension of the water main
to be constructed 111 2020 is estimated to be approximately $120,000. Five property owners would be assessed
in 2020 for an estimated $86,000. Repayments over multiple years are likely.

ANALYSIS
Note that although the survey was sent out to seven properties, only four responses were expected. The
expected responses were as follows:

2 NOT interested in having water service from the City of Franklin
4932 W. Minnesota Avenue
4939 W. Minnesota Avenue

0 May be interested in having water service available, please provide more information
1 Definitely interested in having Franklin water service

5003 W. Minnesota Avenue
No Response

4951 W. Minnesota Avenue

Note that under a private agreement, there is a shared well at 5003 W. Minnesota that also serves 4939, 4951,
and 5055 W. Minnesota. The property with the well that has to maintain the well should be given more weight
in the survey With the other construction activity in the neighborhood, including the reconstruction of S. 59""
Street, this is an ideal time to extend the water to these homes and eliminate well system(s) for the area.



The Capital Improvement

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
(Option A) Direct Staff to develop a w main extensionproject along S. 50" Street and W. Minnesota
Avenue and an Engineer's Report in a rdance with Municipal Ce e Section 207-15 for special assessment of
4932, 4939, 4951, 5003 and empt ot on W. Minnesota Avenue (Tax ey Nos: 759 0023 000, 759 0038 000,
759 0039 ooo, 759 0034 ooo a 759 0024 003)

Dire Staff to develop engineer's report and other processes to develop a water extens·
special a ss affected properties.

B. Decide not to ·oceed with a City-led water main project at this time.
C. Refer back to Sta 1th further direction.

FISCAL NOTE
The Utility Development Fund has re: rces to fund a water mai
fund has a $500,000 appropriation for wate





BLANK PAGE



APPROV~

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

A PRELIMINARY RESOLUTION DECLARING INTENT TO
EXERCISE SPECIAL ASSESSMENT POWERS GRANTED BY
SECTION 207-15 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE AND SECTION

66.0701 OF THE STATE STATUTES FOR INSTALLATION OF A
WATER MAIN ON S. 50TH STREET FROM THE INTERSECTION
OF W. MINNESOTA AVENUE TO A POINT OF CONNECTION
APPROXIMATELY 250 FEET SOUTH ON S. 50TH STREET AND
ALSO ALONG W. MINNESOTA AVENUE FROM A POINT OF

CONNECTION AT THE INTERSECTION OF S. 51 ST STREET TO
THE INTERSECTION OF S. 49TH STREET AND THEN TO A

POINT OF TERMINATION APPROXIMATELY 50 FEET NORTH
OF W. MINNESOTA AVENUE AND SETTING THE PUBLIC

HEARING DATE FOR APRIL 4, 2022 AT 6:30 P.M.

MTG.DATE
February 1, 2022

ITEM NO.

G.4.

BACKGROUND
On January 18, 2022, Common Council discussed a preliminary resolution declaring intent to
exercise special assessment for a watermain project in the vicinity of S. 50th Street and W.
Minnesota Avenue- item G.12. Common Council directed Staff to survey/resurvey property
owners as appropriate to see if the project should be extended.

ANALYSIS
Staff passed out a letter to 22 properties along W. Minnesota Avenue and S. 49th Street to solicit
input in an accelerated manner. Input was received with in-person meetings, telephone calls,
and/or emails. The attached exhibit graphically shows the responses. An updated exhibit will be
presented at the Common Council meeting if additional responses are received prior to the
meeting. The responses received as of9:00 a.m. January 28, 2022, are as follows:

Address
5003 W. Minnesota Ave
5000 W. Minnesota Ave
4951 W. Minnesota Ave
4939 W. Minnesota Ave
4932 W. Minnesota Ave
4913 W. Minnesota Ave
7267 S. 49 Street
7244 S. 49 Street
4909 W. Minnesota Ave
7300 S. 49 Street
7308 S. 49 Street
7311 S. 49 Street
7314 S. 49 Street
7333 S. 49 Street
7350 S. 49 Street
7353 S. 49 Street
7370 S. 49 Street
7371 S. 49 Street
7390 S. 49 Street
7393 S. 49" Street
7411 S. 49 Street
4870 W. Madison Ave

Name
Kennedy
Gudgeon
Distefano
Petrie
Turner
Sunset Bank
Petrie
Wimmer
Bangart
Kimlicka
Crimmins
Gidlund
Fiel
Howell
Call
Keller
Czarnik
Simcic
Ratleiff
Grunze
Kwiatkowski
Brockel

Comment
Y- Wants water
Y- Wants water/ depends*
--- no response
Y- Wants water
N- Does not want water
* * * no response
--- no response
Y- Wants water
--- no response
N- Does not want water
N- Does not want water
* * * * no response
N- Does not want water
--- no response
Y- Wants water**
N- Does not want water
* * * no response
N- Does not want water
N- Does not want water
--- no response
N- Does not want water
N- Does not want water

* 5000 W. Minnesota Aveune gave a mixed response that he was infavor oftheproject,
but depends on what the neighbors desire. This is the property that is discussed
elsewhere on the agenda regarding aprior resolution to connect within one year should
a watermain be constructed



+ 7350 S. 49' Street was infavor ofwater but wanted to confirm with a call back. No
call received at the time ofpublishing.

kS9me properties are reported to be owned by a bank, are rentals, or are undergoing
severe personal issues and understandably, no responses were received

Note that neighbors across W. Minnesota Avenue (4932 and 4939) have conflicting votes. Any
decision to serve / not serve one of these two properties will comply the other neighbor to abide
against their will. Considering that 4939 will need water since they are on a shared well provided
by a property (5003) that will receive water, Staff suggests that the need for water should outweigh
the desire not to have water. Thus, extending the watermain to the property line of 4932 W.
Minnesota Avenue and 7267 S. 49 Street is appropriate and consistent with the overall need of
the neighborhood.

The owner of 7244 S. 49" Street was enthusiastically in favor ofwater and the owner of 7300 S.
49 Street was not in favor ofwater service. So, ifthe intersection is served without service to the
south, it is suggested that a stub north be constructed. This does not assist in looping, but does
work towards the overall goal of the city of providing public water to all homes.

Considering the responses, Staff suggests that an appropriate watermain project include:
• the system previously proposed to loop S. 50 Street and S. 51 st Street (solid blue line

shown in the exhibit),
• extension ofwatermain along W. Minnesota Avenue to S. 49 Street (dotted yellow line),
• stub north along S. 49" Street approximately 50 feet from W. Minnesota Avenue (dotted

white line)

If a decision to proceed with any special assessment is made, a consulting agreement is anticipated
to appear at the next Common Council meeting so that the project may be finalized and bid.

FISCAL NOTE:
Per the previous estimate, there is $140,000 in the 2022 budget for this project and an additional
$200,000 for miscellaneous water extension projects.

The project would also include roadway improvements for S. 50th Street that would not be part of
the special assessment, per past practice.

OPTIONS:
A. Proceed with special assessment process to prepare engineering report and notify five

property owners as identified at the January 18, 2022 Common Council meeting. Or
B. Modify the previous resolution to reflect a project as recommended by Staff. Or
C. Other direction to Staff.

RECOMMENDATION
(Option B) Motion to adopt Resolution 2022-a preliminary resolution declaring intent to
exercise special assessment powers granted by Section 207-15 of the Municipal Code and Section
66.0701 of the State Statutes for installation of a water main on S. 50" Street from the intersection
of W. Minnesota Avenue to a point of connection approximately 250 feet south on S. 50 Street
and also along W. Minnesota Avenue from a point of connection at the intersection of S. 51 st Street
to the intersection of S. 49 Street and then to a point of termination approximately 50 feet north
of W. Minnesota Avenue and setting the Public Hearing date for April 4, 2022 at 6:30 p.m.



Q)...
V'Iu s::Q)
0.....

0 o.I,..
I,..

V'IQ)
Q. Q)...
I,.. or-rtl ... Q)

0s u ....... Q) rtl zI,.. Q) ..... s "'O >00 Q)
I,.. s::- I,..

a- ... 0 .c> ....
I,.. s:: o. rtl

Q) V)
rtl "'O> ..c:: Q) > V'I s::

I,.. .... ...
Q)

rtl
3 0 rtl or-z ... ...o 0 ... V'I"'O ........ s:: 0 I,..V'I

s:: Q)
Q) rtl ... V'I

"'O
.... s:: Q)

...
0

"'O s::
rtl rtl 0 5 :::,

!::: I,.. V'I z oQ) Q)co s::
:::c Q) s::u

5 <(X u -LI <£
z



APPROVk

Reports &
Recommendations

REVISED
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

A PRELIMINARY RESOLUTION DECLARlNG INTENT TO
EXERCISE SPECIAL ASSESSMENT POWERS GRANTED BY
SECTION 207-15 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE AND SECTION

66.0701 OF THE STATE STATUTES FOR INSTALLATION OF A
WATER MAIN ON S. S07H STREET FROM THE INTERSECTION
OF W. MINNESOTA AVENUE TO A POINT OF CONNECTION
APPROXIMATELY 250 FEET SOUTH ON S. 5OT STREET AND
ALSO ALONG W. MINNESOTA AVENUE FROM A POINT OF

CONNECTION AT THE INTERSECTION OF S. 51 ST STREET TO
A POINT OF TERMINATION APPROXIMATELY 250 FEET

EAST OF S. 5O STREET AND SETTING THE PUBLIC
HEARlNG DATE FOR APRIL 5, 2022 AT 6:30 P.M.

BACKGROUND
On August 20, 2019, Common Council directed Staff to develop a water main extension project
along S. 50th Street and W. Minnesota Avenue and an Engineer's Report in accordance with
Municipal Code $207-15. for special assessment of 5003 W. Minnesota Avenue and vacant lot
(now 5000 W. Minnesota Avenue) (Tax Key Nos: 795-0034-000 and 759-0024-003).

This issue was interwoven in related work of two developments, now one, and the
design/construction of W. Marquette Avenue. The related work is at a point such that it is now
appropriate to complete the widening/improvement of S. 50th Street and the looping and extension
of the watermain to homes along W. Minnesota Avenue.

Pursuant to Municipal Code Section 207-15, it is necessary to adopt a preliminary resolution with
intention to exercise special assessment powers for the project. A Public Hearing must be
conducted after an Engineer's Report is prepared.

ANALYSIS
Thisneighborhood hasalreadybeensurveyedanda personalmeeting with the residentsand
AlderwomanWilhelm expanded thenumberofpropertiespreviously in favorofthis projeet
This neighborhood was surveyed prior to August 20, 2019 direction to Staff. After August
20, 2019,a personal meeting with the affected residents andAlderwomanWilhelm was held.
As a result of that personal meeting, two property owners who voted "no" changed their
mind and expressed a desire to be included in the project, thus the number of properties
previously in favor of this project has been expanded.

The five benefited properties include 4932, 4939, 4951, 5000 and 5003 W. Minnesota Avenue.
Other properties are believed to be existing water utility customers or have access to the water
distribution system. These five property owners would be notified of a public hearing.

There is a dated estimate for the water improvements. Considering the volatility of recent
construction costs, it is advisable that a new estimate be prepared. A contract for a consultant to
finalize the plans and specifications, bid and administer the construction is expected to be ready
for authorization at the February 2, 2022, Common Council meeting. To facilitate the new
estimate, an Engineer's report for this project should be ready by the March l, 2022 Common
Council meeting.

It is recommended that a public hearing for this project be established for the Common Council
meeting on March l, 2022, at 6:30 p.m.

Pursuant to past practice, it is recommended that these property owners also will be offered an
optional 10-year interest free deferment if they don't wish to connect at this time, then a 6%, 12
year payment that starts when deferment ends or connection occurs, whichever is earliest.



One could note that it has been a few years since the previous survey was conducted. There may
be other properties that are interested in public water service. Common Council may consider
delaying this projectprocess long enough to resurveythe neighboringproperties to the east. Note
that 1) a survey is notabinding commitment andnotanobligation for Common Council to do/not
do aproject. And 2) a long delay in the process may put ability to construct this project in 2022.

FISCAL NOTE:
Per the previous estimate, there is $60,000 $140,000 in the 2022 budget for this project and an
additional $500,000 $200,000 for miscellaneous water extension projects.

The project would also include roadway improvements for S. 50" Street that would not be part of
the special assessment, per past practice.

OPTIONS:
A. Proceed with special assessment process to prepare engineering report and notify affected

property owners
B. Resurvey- or Survey additional properties.
C. Other direction to Staff

RECOMMENDATION
(Option A) Motion to adopt Resolution 2022-a preliminary resolution declaring intent to
exercise special assessment powers granted by Section 207-15 ofthe Municipal Code and Section
66.0701 of the State Statutes for installation of a water main on S. 50" Street from the intersection
of W. Minnesota Avenue to a point of connection approximately 250 feet south on S. 50" Street
and also along W. Minnesota Avenue from a point ofconnection at the intersection of S. 51 st Street
to a point of termination approximately 250 feet east of S. 50th Street and setting the Public
Hearing date for April 5, 2022 at 6:30 p.m.



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2022---

A PRELIMINARY RESOLUTION DECLARING INTENT TO EXERCISE SPECIAL
ASSESSMENT POWERS GRANTED BY SECTION 207-15 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE AND

SECTION 66.0701 OF THE STATE STATUTES FOR INSTALLATION OF A WATER MAIN
ON S. 50TH STREET FROM THE INTERSECTION OF W. MINNESOTA AVENUE TO A

POINT OF CONNECTION APPROXIMATELY 250 FEET SOUTH ON S. 5TH STREET AND
ALSO ALONG W. MINNESOTA AVENUE FROM A POINT OF CONNECTION AT THE

INTERSECTION OF S. 51 sT STREET TO A POINT OF TERMINATION APPROXIMATELY
250 FEET EAST OF S. 50"H STREET AND SETTING THE PUBLIC HEARING DATE FOR

APRIL 5, 2022 AT 6:30 P.M.

WHEREAS, the Common Council has determined that it is expedient and necessary for the
best interests of the City, its people and the property affected thereby that the following permanent
improvements be made as described in this preliminary resolution.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the City of
Franklin.

1. The Common Council declares its intent to exercise police powers granted to it by
law and adjudge that it is necessary for the health, safety and welfare of the public
and affected property owners that a public work of improvement be made for the
installation of water main on S. 59h Street from the intersection of W. Minnesota
Avenue to a point of connection approximately 250 feet south on S. 50"" Street and
also along W. Minnesota Avenue from a point of connection at the intersection of S.
51 st Street to a point of termination approximately 250 feet east of S. 50 Street.

2. The Common Council in this process exercises its power to levy special assessments
under its police power as authorized in Section 207-15 of the Municipal Code and
Section 66.0701 of the Wisconsin Statutes.

3. The Common Council further declares that all assessments may be paid in one ( 1)
payment when the work is completed, or in the next succeeding tax roll, or in the
number of annual installments as determined by the Common Council.

4 The Common Council further declares that the amount assessed against any property
for this improvement shall be upon a reasonable basis as determined by the Common
Council.

5. That the City Engineer and/or his authorized representative is directed to prepare the
report as described in Section 207-15.E. of the Municipal Code for the installation of
a water main in the location described above.

6. Upon completion of such report the City Engineer and/or his authonzed
representative is directed to file a copy thereof in the Office of the City Clerk for
public inspection.



7. That the City Clerk is directed to schedule and give notice of a Public Hearing to be
conducted by the Mayor and Common Council in accordance with the provisions of
Section 207-15.I. of the Municipal Code.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of , 2022 by Alderman _

Passed and adopted at a regular meetmg of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT-- --



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

STANDARDS, FINDINGS AND DECISION
OF THE CITY OF FRANKLIN COMMON
COUNCIL UPON THE APPLICATION OF
STEPHEN R. MILLS, PRESIDENT OF

BEAR DEVELOPMENT, LLC, APPLICANT,
FOR A SPECIAL EXCEPTION TO CERTAIN
NATURAL RESOURCE PROVISIONS OF

THE CITY OF FRANKLIN UNIFIED
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE

MEETING
DATE

02/01/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.5.

The applicant's Natural Resource Special Exception (NRSE) request is for impacts to
wetland setback and buffer for the development of duplex homes. The initial request
was for temporary impacts to 23,970 square feet of wetland buffer and an unspecified
quantity ofwetland setback, and for permanent impacts to 1,350 square feet ofwetland
buffer and 3,586 square feet of wetland setback. On January 12, 2022 the applicant
amended this request to allow for 25,320 square feet of temporary buffer impact (an
additional 1,350 square feet) and provided information about impacts proposed if a
reduced front yard setback was approved by the Board ofZoning and Building Appeals
(BZBA). (See attachment: "Applicant Impact Request").

At their meeting on January 12, 2022, the Environmental Commission reviewed this
Special Exception to natural resource provisions of the Unified Development
Ordinance. The Commission recommended approval of with conditions as set forth in
the attached City of Franklin Environmental Commission document.

At their January 19, 2022 meeting, the BZBA approved a request by the applicant to
allow for a reduction in the required front yard setback for this development from 25
feet to 20 feet. This reduction likewise allowed for a reduction in the degree of
permanent impacts to natural resources.

The public hearing for this item was opened at the regular meeting of the Plan
Commission on January 20, 2022. Members of the public spoke at the public hearing
with concerns related to flooding on neighboring properties. Following a properly
noticed public hearing, the following action was approved: motion to recommend
approval of the revised request by Stephen R. Mills, president of Bear Development,
LLC Natural Resource Features Special Exception, to allow for only temporary impacts
to wetland setback and buffer, pursuant to the Standards, Findings and Decision
recommended by the Plan Commission and Common Council consideration of the
Enviromnental Commission recommendations.

In addition, the Plan Commission adopted a motion to "to add conditions of approval to
require that the applicant provide for repair of the pond drainage tile/pipe between the
pond edge and the outlet at Ryan Road, subject to a revised conservation easement; and
for the removal ofbuckthorn with a minimum expenditure of $10,000."



The Plan Commission's recommendations have been reflected in the Decision section
of the attached draft Standards, Findings, and Decision document.

On March 14, 2018, the applicant received permission to place 37,500 cubic yards of
fill on the site under City of Franklin Permit 120180438. Fill was placed in the wetland
setback and buffer. The Standards Findings and Decision item 3.b requires a finding
that the NRSE will "Not effectively undermine the ability to apply or enforce the
requirement with respect to other properties (§UDO-15-10.0208B2.c.ii)." Section 2,
item 5, requires a finding by the Common Council as to the "degree of noncompliance"
under §UDO-15-10-10.0208B2.d.v. that this NRSE would allow (See Plan Commission
Staff Report section on "Ability to Enforce" for further information).

As set forth, the draft Standards, Findings and Decision does not include a finding for
these items. Direction is needed from the Council to decide if this NRSE:

A) DOES undermine the City's ability to enforce natural resource protections; or,
B) DOES NOT undermine the City's ability to enforce natural resource protections.

Staff notes that the Standards, Findings, and Decision of the Common Council is set
forth as an approval.

The Staff Report to Plan Commission and related materials are attached for further
information on the nature of the natural resource impact request.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Adopt a finding that this special exception does [does not] allow for a degree of
noncompliance under §UDO-15-10-10.0208B2.d.v. that will effectively undermine the
ability of the City of Franklin to apply or enforce the requirement with respect to other
properties (§UDO-15-10.0208B2.c.ii).

AND

Adopt the standards, findings and decision of the City of Franklin Common Council
upon the application of Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC,
applicant, for a special exception to certain natural resource provisions of the City of
Franklin Unified Development Ordinance.

Department of City Development: MX



Boomtown LLC NRSE - 12000 W. Loomis Rd.
Applicant Impact Request in Square Feet

Original

Wetland
Wetland Buffer
Wetland Setback

1/12/2022

25' Front Yard Setback
Permanent Temporary

0 0
1,350 23,970
3,586 ?

Revised
25' Front Yard Setback 20' Front Yard Setback

Requires BZBA Approval
Permanent Temporary Permanent Temporary

Wetland
Wetland Buffer
Wetland Setback

0 0
1,350 25,320
3,586 2?

0 0
0 25,320

1,105 ?

Recommended by Plan Comission
20' Front Yard Setback
Permanent Temporary

Wetland
Wetland Buffer
Wetland Setback

0 0
0 25,320
0 0



Redraft 1/25/22

Standards, Findings and Decision
of the City of Franklin Common Council upon the Application of Stephen R. Mills,

President of Bear Development, LLC, applicant, for a Special Exception
to Certain Natural Resource Provisions of the City of Franklin

Unified Development Ordinance

Whereas, Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC, applicant,
having filed an application dated September 3, 2021, for a Special Exception pursuant
to Section 15-9.0110 of the City of Franklin Unified Development Ordinance
pertaining to the granting of Special Exceptions to Stream, Shore Buffer, Navigable
Water-related, Wetland, Wetland Buffer and Wetland Setback Provisions, and
Improvements or Enhancements to a Natural Resource Feature; a copy of said
application being annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A; and

Whereas, the application having been reviewed by the City of Franklin
Environmental Commission and the Commission having made its recommendation
upon the application, a copy of said recommendation dated January 12, 2022 being
annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B; and

Whereas, following a public hearing before the City of Franklin Plan
Commission, the Plan Commission having reviewed the application and having made
its recommendation thereon as set forth upon the report of the City of Franklin
Planning Department, a copy of said report dated January 20, 2022 being annexed
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit C; and

Whereas, the property which is the subject of the application for a Special
Exception is located at 12000 West Loomis Road, zoned R-8 Multiple-Family
Residence District and C-I Conservancy District, and such property is more
particularly described upon Exhibit D annexed hereto and incorporated herein; and

Whereas, Section 15-10.0208B. of the City of Franklin Unified Development
Ordinance, as amended by Ordinance No. 2003-1747, pertaining to the granting of
Special Exceptions to Stream, Shore Buffer, Navigable Water-related, Wetland,
Wetland Buffer and Wetland Setback Provisions, and Improvements or
Enhancements to a Natural Resource Feature, provides in part: "The decision of the
Common Council upon any decision under this Section shall be in writing, state the
grounds of such determination, be filed in the office of the City Planning Manager
and be mailed to the applicant."

Now, Therefore, the Common Council makes the following findings pursuant
to Section 15-10.0208B.2.a., b. and c. of the Unified Development Ordinance upon
the application for a Special Exception dated September 3, 2021, by Stephen R.



Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC, applicant, pursuant to the City of
Franklin Unified Development Ordinance, the proceedings heretofore had and the
recitals and matters incorporated as set forth above, recognizing the applicant as
having the burden of proof to present evidence sufficient to support the following
findings and that such findings be made by not less than four members of the
Common Council in order to grant such Special Exception.

1. That the condition(s) giving rise to the request for a Special Exception were not
self-imposed by the applicant (this subsection a. does not apply to an application to
improve or enhance a natural resource feature): but rather, the applicant notes that
the site s already impacted byfill Wetland delineations from 2014 show the existing
wetland complexes n the same general locations as 2021; the development cannot
proceed as designed without impacts to wetland setback and buffer.

2. That compliance with the stream, shore buffer, navigable water-related, wetland,
wetland buffer, and wetland setback requirement will:

a. be unreasonably burdensome to the applicant and that there are no reasonable
practicable alternatives: The applcant notes that the site is already impacted by fill
The zoning classification (R-8 Multifamily) and allowable ste intensity for the
property allowfor greater intensity ofuse, however the ste access and
configuration, and required setbacks create constraints on the placement ofbuldings
and other infrastructure; or

b. unreasonably and negatively impact upon the applicant's use of the property and
that there are no reasonable practicable alternatives: The applzcant notes that the ste
zs already zmpacted byfill. The parcel is currently vacant; the proposed use has been
affirmed through a rezoning to R-8 Multifamily (ORD 2021-2480), and the applicant
has completed a Concept Review and Certified Survey Map approval in seekzng thzs
development approval.

3. The Special Exception, including any conditions imposed under this Section will:

a. be consistent with the existing character of the neighborhood: the proposed
development with the grant ofa Specal Exception as requested wll be consstent
with the exsting character ofthe neghborhood, and the applicant states that "The
proposed impact and resultng development wll be consistent wth the neighborhood
and consstent wth the existng zoning and Comprehensive Plan" Surrounding
propertzes includefuture industral and developzng residential uses; and

b. not effectively undermine the ability to apply or enforce the requirement with
respect to other prope1ties: The applzcant states that "The situaton and condtons
related to ths project are unique as the affectedproperty was a properlypermitted to
mpact the wetland buffer/setback Applyng the wetland setback/buffer at this pont

2



serves no purpose and does not protect the actual wetland resources Other
propertzes seeking the same reliefwould need to meet similar standards "

Placement offill on ste was at the request ofBear Development to "razse the sites
and help withfuture developmentplans (Ruffing, A 2018, January 14). "

Accordzng to the Natural Resource Protection Plan (NRPP) submitted on January 10,
2022, fill was placed in the wetland setback and buffer under City ofFranklin Permit
120180438 Fill permits for Wisconszn DOT project were approved by the Czty of
Engineermng Department. Cty approvals for fill impacts to wetland setback and
buffer were not sought by the applzcant at that time.

The limits ofmpacts proposedfor thzs Special Exception algn wth mpacted areas
under thefill permit

The site has since experienced significant degradation and mpacts by invasive
species. Fill permits for Wisconsin DOT project were approved by the City of
Engineering Department.

c. be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the prov1s1ons of this
Ordinance proscribing the requirement: Applicant represents that the unique
circumstances nvolved wth ths request is what the NRSEprocess was ntendedfor;
and

d. preserve or enhance the functional values of the stream or other navigable water,
shore buffer, wetland, wetland buffer, and/or wetland setback in co-existence with the
development: (this findzng only applying to an applcation to improve or enhance a
natural resourcefeature): not applzcable.

The Common Council considered the following factors in making its
determinations pursuant to Section 15-10.0208B.2.d. of the Unified Development
Ordinance.

1. Characteristics of the real property, including, but not limited to, relative
placement of improvements thereon with respect to property boundaries or otherwise
applicable setbacks: The applicant states that "The mprovements wll not negatively
affect surroundng propertes " Proposed impacts will occur wthin the site and do
not extendpast the property lne

2. Any exceptional, extraordinary, or unusual circumstances or conditions applying
to the lot or parcel, structure, use, or intended use that do not apply generally to other
properties or uses in the same district: The applzcant states that "The exceptzonal,
extraordnary or unusual crcumstance is that the resource being mpacted has
already been impacted and the property has been included n a TID Project Plan

3



whereby the resulting improvements are necessary to generate tax zncrement " Tax
Increment Dzstricts must include a residential component

3. Existing and future uses of property; useful life of improvements at issue;
disability of an occupant: The proposed use has been affirmed through a rezoning to
R-8 Mulfamly (ORD 2021-2480), and the applicant has completed a Concept
Revzew and Certified Survey Map approval n seekang this development approval

4. Aesthetics: The applzcant states that "There will be no negative zmpact to
aesthetics The resulting development will be a residential neighborhood with
requzred street trees and significant green space."

5. Degree of noncompliance with the requirement allowed by the Special Exception:
The applzcant states that "Consdering the that the area of impact was prevzously
dzsturbed, the NRSE is not over-reachng "

Placement offill on site was at the request ofBear Development to "raise the sztes
and help wthfuture developmentplans (Ruffing, A 2018, January 14)"

Accordzng to the NRPP submitted on January 10, 2022, fill was placed in the wetland
setback and buffer under Cty of Franklin Permit 120180438 Fll permits for
Wisconsin DOTproject were approved by the City ofEngineering Department City
approvals for fll mpacts to wetland setback and buffer were not sought by the
applicant at that time.

The limzts of zmpacts proposedfor this NRSE alzgn with impacted areas under the fill
permt.

The site has sznce experzenced szgnificant degradatzon and impacts by znvaszve
species.

6. Proximity to and character of surrounding property: Proposed impacts will occur
withzn the ste and do not extend past the property lzne The applicant notes that
"Applicant owns the adjacent properties to the east and south W Ryan Road
separates neighborzng land to the north, a WE Energes RO separates nezghborzng
land to the west and a remnant WDOTparcel s located to the west "

7. Zoning of the area in which property is located and neighboring area: Surroundmng
zonzng conszsts of Szngle and Multfamly Resdental There is an area of M-I
Lmited Industral Distrct to the southeast

8. Any negative affect upon adjoining property: No negative affect upon adjonng
property s perceived Proposed impacts will occur wthin the ste and do not extend
past the property lzne.

4



9. Natural features of the property: The applicant does not propose mpacts to
natural resourcefeatures beyond those zncluded in this request

10. Environmental impacts: The applicant states that "There are no other
environmental impacts associated with the NRSE. "

11. A recommendation from the Environmental Commission as well as a review and
recommendation prepared by an Environmental Commission-selected person
knowledgeable in natural systems: The Emvronmental Commisson recommendation
and zts reference to the report ofJanuary 12, 2022 is incorporated herezn

12. The practicable alternatives analysis required by Section 15-9.01 l0C.4. of the
Unified Development Ordinance and the overall impact of the entire proposed use or
structure, performance standards and analysis with regard to the impacts of the
proposal, proposed design solutions for any concerns under the Ordinance, executory
actions which would maintain the general intent of the Ordinance in question, and
other factors relating to the purpose and intent of the Ordinance section imposing the
requirement: The Plan Commisson recommendaton and the Environmental
Commssion recommendation address thesefactors and are incorporated herein

Decision

Upon the above findings and all ofthe files and proceedngs heretofore had
upon the subject applzcation, the Common Council hereby grants a Special Exception
for such relzefas is describedwithin Exhibit C, upon the condztzons·

1) that the natural resourcefeatures and mitgaton areas upon the properties to
be developed be protected by a perpetual conservation easement to be
approved by the Common Councl pror to any development withn the areas
for which the Special Exception zs granted prior to the issuance of any
Occupancy Permts;

2) that the applicant obtain all other necessary approval(s) from all other
applicable governmental agenczes prior to any development withzn the areas
for whch the Specal Excepton s granted;

3) that all development within the areas for whch the Specal Excepton is
granted shall proceed pursuant to and be governed by the approved Natural
Resource Protectzon Plan and all other applzcable plansfor Stephen R Mlls,
Preszdent of Bear Development, LLC, applicant, and all other applicable
provzszons ofthe UnifiedDevelopment Ordinance.

4) that the applzcant shall provde plansfor management ofwetland setback that
conforms to the standards of §15-4 01021 for appropriate plantings. Turf
grasses are prohbited. Other grasses or native plantings are acceptable Non
vegetatve cover s permitted in areas subject to erosion. Management and
implementation nformaton shall be ncluded on developmentplans including
landscape plans subject to the revew ofthe Department ofCity Development

5



5) that the applicant shall place boulders or other markers to demarcate the
wetland setback on the property

6) that the applicant shall make requred techncal correctons (UDO $I5-4.0102
and $15-7.0200) to Natural Resource Protection Plans including information
about the limts of.fill and related gradingfrom fill permit 120201541, subject
to staffapproval, prior to the commencement ofany land disturbance.

7) that the applcant shall clarfy the amount oftemporary grading impacts
8) that the applcant ncur only temporary impacts to wetland setback and buffer,

which shall be restored to the standards of UDO §15-4 01021 for wetland
setback and UDO $15-4.0103B5for wetland buffer.

9) That the applicant provide for repar ofthe pond drainage tle/pipe between
the pond edge and the outlet at Ryan Road, subject to a revsed conservation
easement; andfor the removal ofbuckthorn with a mimmum expendzture of
$10,000

The duratzon ofthis grant ofSpecial Exception s permanent

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of,2022.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of 2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---

6



TO:
DATE:
RE:
APPLICATION:

City of Franklin Environmental Commission

Common Council
January 12, 2022
Special Exception application review and recommendation
Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC,
Applicant, dated: September 3, 2021
(12000 West Loomis Road)

I. §15-9.0110 of the Unified Development Ordinance Special Exception to
Natural Resource Feature Provisions Application information:

1. Unified Development Ordinance Section(s) from which Special Exception is
requested: The applcant s requestng an excepton from $15-4.0101 Natural
Resource Protection Standards, and $15-4 0102 Natural Resource Features
Determination which requre that identified natural resources features be
protectedfrom impacts ofdevelopment.

2. Nature of the Special Exception requested (description of resources,
encroachment, distances and dimensions): The Special Exception s being
requested to allow for mpacts to wetland buffer, consstng of23,979 SF of
temporary grading impact and 1,350 SF ofpermanent buildingfootprznt; and
to 3,586 ofpermanent wetland setback impact related to buldingfootprint.

3. Applicant's reason for request· To allow buildzng footprints to be located
within the WetlandBuffer andSetback

4 Applicant's reason why request appropriate for Special Exception: The
applicant states that "The City ofFranklin Plan Commisson and City Council
has approved a zonng classificaton and Certified Survey Map for thus
property The mntended use oftheproperty s condomnium neighborhood.

The applzcant has completed a wetland delzneation for the property It was
dscovered that the property includes wetlands that have expanded due to the
fill operaton that occurred n 2018 The expanson of the wetlands,
artfically, has mpacted the buldable area ofthe ste

Please note that the permtted fill was placed mn the wetland setback and
buffer, before a developmentplan was drafted The fill was placed wthn the
gudelines ofa permtgranted by the City ofFrankln

The dsturbance wthmn the Wetland Buffer and Setback already exzsts The
Applcant s not proposing any impact to the wetland resource, but szmply



requestzng that buddings be places within the Buffer and Setback whch has
already been mpacted

No permitsfrom either the Wisconsin Department ofNatural Resources or the
US Army Corps ofEngneers are requred, as no mpact to the wetlands will,,occur

II. Environmental Commission review of the §15-9.0ll0C.4.f. Natural Resource
Feature impacts to functional values:

1. Diversity of flora including State and/or Federal designated threatened and/or
endangered species: The wetland buffer and setback consist of commerczal
landscape seed mix used to restore the property after the fllng operaton
Restoraton was done as a permit condition In 2014 pror to the fillzng
operaton, Wetland I, WW-I, a SEWRPC Islolated Natural Resource Area, was
described as "predominantly natve sedge meadow and shallow marsh
communities." Subsequently in 2021 a new delineatzon finds that that this
wetland has been impacted by nvasve speces

2. Storm and flood water storage: The property s not zn a deszgnatedfloodplazn
orfloodway.

3. Hydrologic functions: The applzcant states that "the wetland setback/buffer
does not have a hydrologc functon " Cty ofFranklzn ordinances protect
these areas ofnatural resources as essentzal to the health ofa wetland

4. Water quality protection including filtration and storage of sediments,
nutrients or toxic substances: The applzcant states that "the szte wzll be fully
restored and stablzed after project gradng We antcpate the area between
the wetland andfuture home will be left natural, as t includes a significant
slope "

5. Shoreline protection against erosion: Not applcable, mpacts to shorelzne or
shorelne buffer are notproposed

6. Habitat for aquatic organisms: Not applzcable

7. Habitat for wildlife: The applcant states that "wldlfe habtat wll not be
mpacted The mpact to the wetland buffer/setback was an agricultural field
before thefillzng operatzon occurred " In 2014 pror to thefillzng operatzon,
Wetland I (-I), whch contazns SEWRPC Isolated Natural Resource Area,
was described as "predominantly natrve sedge meadow and shallow marsh
communtes " Subsequently mn 202l a new delzneatzon finds that that thzs
wetland has been zmpacted by nvasve speces

2



8. Human use functional value: The applzcant states that "the proposed areas of
mpacts are not beng used for any type of human use" At ths tme, the
property s vacant

9. Groundwater recharge/discharge protection: The applcant states that
"Groundwater and surface water wzll continue to dram to the perzpheral
wetlands " As part of the development proposal stormwater detentzon
facltes meetng the standards ofthe UDOll be required

10. Aesthetic appeal, recreation, education, and science value: The applzcant
states that "there s no educatonal or scentfic functon to the impacted
areas There is no aesthetic appeal " The current ste condtion is a vacant
site impacted byfill

11. State or Federal designated threatened or endangered species or species of
special concern: The applicant states that the "owners are not aware ofany
State or Federal designated threatened or endangered speces on our site "
Wetland delzneatzon reports do not provde mnformaton about endangered
speczes

12. Existence within a Shoreland: Not applzcable, impacts to shorelne buffer are
notproposed

13. Existence within a Primary or Secondary Environmental Corridor or within an
Isolated Natural Area, as those areas are defined and currently mapped by the
Southeastern Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission from time to time:
The wetland identified as Wetland 1 (W-1), also contains SEWRPC Isolated
Natural Resource Areas ndcatng the presence of important habztat and
speces Impacts to the IsolatedNatural Resource Area are notproposed

III. Environmental Commission review of the §15-10.0208B.2.d. factors and
recommendations as to findings thereon:

l. That the condition(s) giving rise to the request for a Special Exception were not
self-imposed by the applicant (this subsection a. does not apply to an application
to improve or enhance a natural resource feature): The applicant notes that the
site s already impacted byfill Wetland delineations from 2014 show the exsting
wetland complexes mn the same general locatzons as 2021, the development cannot
proceed as designedwthout mpacts to wetland setback and buffer

2. That compliance with the stream, shore buffer, navigable water-related, wetland,
wetland buffer, and wetland setback requirement will:

a. be unreasonably burdensome to the applicants and that there are no reasonable
practicable alternatives: The applicant notes that the site zs already zmpacted by

3



fill The zonzng classification (R-8 Multifamily) and allowable ste ntenstyfor
the property allowfor greater ntensty ofuse, however the ste access and
configuratzon, and required setbacks create constraints on the placement of
buildings and other infrastructure.
, or

b. unreasonably and negatively impact upon the applicants' use of the property
and that there are no reasonable practicable alternatives: The applicant notes
that the site zs already impacted by fill The parcel s currently vacant; the
proposed use has been affirmed through a rezoning to R-8 Multifamily (ORD
2021-2480), and the applzcant has completed a Concept Revew and Certified
SurveyMap approval zn seekzng thzs development approval

3. The Special Exception, including any conditions imposed under this Section will:

a. be consistent with the existing character of the neighborhood: The applicant
states that "The proposed impact and resulting development will be consistent
wth the neighborhood and consistent wth the existing zoning and Comprehenszve
Plan" Surrounding propertes nclude future ndustral and developmng
resdental uses; and

b. not effectively undermine the ability to apply or enforce the requirement with
respect to other prope1iies· The applicant states that "The situation and condtons
related to ths project are unque as the affected property was a properly
permitted to mpact the wetland buffer/setback Applying the wetland
setback/buffer at thus pont serves no purpose and does not protect the actual
wetland resources Other properties seeking the same reliefwould need to meet
smnlar standards", and

Placement of.fill on szte was at the request ofBear Development to "rase the stes
and help wzthfitture developmentplans (Ruffing, A. 2018, January 14) " The szte
has since experienced sgnficant degradaton and mpacts by nvasve species
Fillpermtsfor Wsconsn DOTproject were approved by the Cty ofEngneering
Department Approvals for fill mpacts to wetland setback and buffer were not
sought by the applzcant at that tme

It s not possible to determne the extent ofmpact to wetland setback or buffer
without complete nformaton about the lmts offill on the property, which the
applzcant has notprovided as ofJanuary 6, 2022.

$UDO-15-10 0208B2 c u requres that an exceptzon, ifgranted "Not effectzvely
undermmne the abilty to apply or enforce the requirement wth respect to other
propertzes "

4



c. be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the provisions of this
Ordinance proscribing the requirement: Applcant represents that the unque
czrcumstances znvolved with this request is what the NRSE process was
zntendedfor, and

d. preserve or enhance the functional values of the stream or other navigable
water, shore buffer, wetland, wetland buffer, and/or wetland setback in co
existence with the development (this finding only applyzng to an applcation to
zmprove or enhance a natural resourcefeature): not applicable

IV. Environmental Commission review of the 15-10.0208B.2.a., b. and c.
factors and recommendations as to findings thereon:

1. Characteristics of the real property, including, but not limited to, relative placement
of improvements thereon with respect to property boundaries or otherwise
applicable setbacks: The applzcant states that "The zmprovements wzll not
negatively affect surroundngpropertes." Proposed impacts wll occur wthn the
site and do not extendpast the property line

2 Any exceptional, extraordinary, or unusual circumstances or conditions applying to
the lot or parcel, structure, use, or intended use that do not apply generally to other
properties or uses in the same district: The applicant states that "The exceptwnal,
extraordinary or unusual circumstance is that the resource being zmpacted has
already been mpacted and the property has been included n a TID Project Plan
whereby the resulting improvements are necessary to generate tax increment "
Tax IncrementDstrcts must include a resdental component

3. Existing and future uses of property; useful life of improvements at issue; disability
of an occupant: The proposed use has been affirmed through a rezoning to R-8
Multzfamzly (ORD 2021-2480), and the applzcant has completed a Concept Revew
and Certified SurveyMap approval in seeking thzs development approval

4. Aesthetics: The applzcant states that "There wzll be no negatzve zmpact to
aesthetes The resulting development wll be a resdental neghborhood wth
requred street trees and sgnficant green space."

5. Degree of noncompliance with the requirement allowed by the Special Exception

The applcant states that "Consderng the that the area of zmpact was prevously
disturbed, the NRSE s not over-reachng "
Placement offill on site was at the request ofBear Development to "rase the sztes
and help withfuture developmentplans (Ruffing, A 2018, January I4) " The site has
since experienced sgnficant degradaton and mpacts by nvasve speces Fill
permts for Wisconsmn DOT project were approved by the Cty of Engneerng

5



Department Approvalsforfill zmpacts to wetland setback and buffer were not sought
by the applzcant at that tme

It s not possible to determzne the extent of impact to wetland setback or buffer
wzthout complete nformaton about the lmts offill on the property, whch the
applcant has notprovded as ofJanuary 6, 2022

6. Proximity to and character of surrounding property: Proposed mpacts wll occur
wthin the ste and do not extend past the property line The applicant notes that
"Applicant owns the adjacent propertes to the east and south W Ryan Road
separates neghborng land to the north, a WE Energes ROWseparates neghborng
land to the west and a remnant WDOTparcel s located to the west "

7. Zoning of the area in which property is located and neighboring area: Surrounding
zoning conssts ofSmngle and Multfamly Resdental There s an area ofM-I
LamtedIndustrialDstrct to the southeast

8. Any negative affect upon adjoining property: Proposed impacts will occur wzthzn
the ste and do not extendpast theproperty line

9. Natural features of the property: The applcant does not propose impacts to
natural resourcefeatures beyond those ncluded n thsrequest

I 0. Environmental impacts: The applcant states that "There are no other
environmental mpacts associatedwth the NRSE "

V. Environmental Commission Recommendation:

The Environmental Commission has reviewed the subject Application pursuant to
$15-10.0208B. of the Unified Development Ordinance and makes the following
recommendation:

1. The recommendations set forth in Sections III. and IV. Above are incorporated
herein.

2. The Environmental Commission recommends [approval] [denial] of the
Application upon the aforesaid recommendations for the reasons set forth
therein.

3. The Environmental Commission recommends that should the Common
Council approve the Application, that such approval be subject to the
following conditions·

a) The applicant shall submit conservation easements for areas of
preserved natural resources ($15- 4.0103.B.1.d, $15-7.0201.H) for

6



Common Council review and approval, prior to any land disturbing
activities.

b) The applicant shall obtain all necessary approvals from Federal and
State regulatory agencies, (§15-10.0208.8.3) prior to any land
disturbing activities.

c) The applicant shall provide plans for management of wetland setback
that conforms to the standards of $15-4.0102I for appropriate
plantings. Turf grasses are prohibited. Other grasses or native
plantings are acceptable. Non-vegetative cover is permitted in areas
subject to erosion. Management and implementation information
shall be included on development plans including landscape plans
subject to the review of the Department ofCity Development.

d) The applicant shall place boulders or other markers to demarcate the
wetland setback on the property.

e) The applicant shall make required technical corrections (UDO $15
4.0102 and §15-7.0200) to Natural Resource Protection Plans
including information about the limits of fill and related grading
from fill permit 120201541, subject to staff approval, prior to the
commencement of any land disturbance.

f) The applicant shall clarify the amount of temporary grading impacts are
greater under a reduced setback option.

The above review and recommendation was passed and adopted at a regular meeting
of the Environmental Commission of the City of Franklin on the 12" day of January,
2022.

Dated this [(_day ofJanuary, 2022.

Linda Horn, Chairman
Attest:

7



CITY OF FRANKLIN
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of January 20, 2022

Natural Resource Special Exception

RECOMMENDATION: Recommended conditions ofapproval ofare incorporated into the
decisions section ofthe draft Standards, Findings, and Decision ofthe Common Council
Project Name: 12000 W Loomis Road NRSE

Item C.1.

Project Location:

Property Owner:

Applicant:

Agent:

Current Zoning:

2025 Comprehensive Plan:

Applicant's Action Requested:

Planner:

12000 W Loomis Road
(Tax Key No: 891 9011 000 & 891 9011 000)

Boomtown LLC

S.R. Mills, Boomtown LLC

Dan Szczap, Boomtown LLC

R-8-Multiple-Family Residence District

Commercial, Residential-Multifamily and Areas ofNatural
Resources

Recommendation to the Plan Commission for approval of
the Natural Resource Special Exception Application.

Marion Eeks, Associate Planner

On September 3, 2021, the applicant submitted an application requesting approval ofa Natural
Resource Special Exception to allow for grading and construction related to the development ofa
residential neighborhood consisting ofsingle-story duplexes. Data about the extent/amount of the
request was provided on October 27, 2021. The request is for impacts to wetland setback and
buffer; impacts to wetlands and Isolated Natural Resource Area on the site or other natural
resources are not proposed at this time.

Project_Description:

This site is part ofa complex ofdevelopments located in the southwest quadrant ofthe City of
Franklin, in Tax Increment District 6. The area includes a new industrial park and single-family
residential subdivision. It is generally identified in the Comprehensive Master Plan as a
"Business Park;" the specific property is identified for future land use ofmultifamily residential
and commercial uses, with areas ofnatural resources.

The applicant proposes 13 building pads on this 15.61-acre property to accommodate 13 single
story buildings and a total of26 homes with attendant parking facilities (garages). The
development will be located on a new cul-de-sac with a single access point on Ryan Road, and
stormwater facilities in roughly the southwest corner ofthe lot. Site Intensity calculations have
been prepared (§15-3.0500), and the proposed development meets specifications regarding
density and "site intensity" or the balance ofdeveloped land to open space. The applicant has
stated that feedback from a Concept Review of the development with the City ofFranklin
Common Council encouraged a single-story home type. The proposed development will be



served by municipal water and public sanitary sewer. The property is also adjacent to the future
City of Franklin 116" Street Trail which makes up the northwest property line.

The property is currently vacant; the proposed use has been affirmed through a rezoning of the
entire property to R-8 Multifamily (ORD 2021-2480), to remove C-1 Conservancy zoning. The
applicant has completed a Concept Review and Certified Survey Map approval in seeking this
development approval.

A Natural Resource Protection Plan (NRPP) has been completed for the development as part of
these approvals. The property contain wetlands, a portion of a pond, young woodlands, and
Southeastern Wisconsin Regional Plan Commission (SEWRPC) designated "Isolated Natural
Resource Area" indicating the presence of significant wildlife and natural resources
communities. Wetland delineations were completed by assured delineators in 2014 by R.A.
Smith National Inc. (R.A. Smith National Inc. RASN Project No. 1140273), and in 2021 by
Heartland Ecological Group Inc. (Heartland Ecological Group Inc. Project No. 20180093).

Variance Application
The applicant has submitted a request for a Variance from the Unified Development Ordinance
(UDO) Table 15-3.0209A, which describes required setbacks of the R-8 Multiple-Family
Residence District, to allow for a reduced front yard setback of 20 feet for the entire development.
The minimum required front yard setback for single-family and two-family homes is 25 feet. The
item is scheduled for the January 19, 2022 meeting of the Board of Zoning and Building Appeals
(BZBA); information about the decision of the BZBA will be provided at the Plan Commission
meeting on January 20, 2022.

If approved, the variance will allow for a reduction in proposed permanent wetland buffer impacts
to zero. The applicant has provided two versions of the Natural Resource Protection Plan for
Commission review reflecting this alternative. At their January 12, 2022 meeting, the
Environmental Commission adopted a motion to recommend approval of the reduction of front
yard setbacks to a 20 foot setback to the BZBA.

Fill Permit
On March 14, 2018, the applicant received permission to place 37,500 cubic yards of fill on the
site under City of Franklin Permit 120180438, as part of a road project for the redevelopment of
S. 108 St. The placement of fill on site was at the request of Bear Development to "raise the
sites and help with future development plans (Ruffing, A. 2018, January 14)." The applicant
obtained appropriate approvals from the WI Department of Natural Resources at that time, and
fill permits were approved by the City of Franklin Engineering Department. According to the
NRPP submitted on January 10, 2022, fill limits are the same as the limits of impacts proposed
for this NRSE. Fill was placed in the wetland setback and buffer, but City approvals for fill
impacts to wetland setback and buffer were not sought by the applicant at that time.

NATURAL RESOURCE SPECIAL EXCEPTION REQUEST
The applicant has provided the attached Natural Resource Special Exception Application,
Questionnaire, Project Description, and associated information.

2



The requested Natural Resource Special Exception is for property bearing Tax Key No. 891 9011
000 & 891 9011 000. The NRSE request is to allow for impacts to wetland buffer, and setback of
Wetland 1 (W-1) and Wetland 2 (W-2). Wetland 1 is 69,696 square feet (1.60 acres) located on
the west side of the property an includes SEWRPC Isolated Natural Resource Area. Wetland 2 is
97,138.8 square feet (2.23 acres) and located on the east site of the property. Only a portion of this
wetland is on the property. On January 12, 2022, the applicant provided a revised request.
Specifically, the request is for impacts to:

25' Option 20' Option
Requres BZBA Approval

Permanent Temporary Permanent Temporary
Wetland 0 0 0 0

Wetland Buffer 1,350 25,320 0 25,320
Wetland 3,586 0 1,105 0Setback

Staff recommends that the applicant clarify whether any temporary impacts to the wetland
setback are proposed.

The applicant has obtained verification from the Army Corps of Engineers that the parcel does
not contain waters of the United States.

Conservation easements must be submitted for all natural resources to be protected. Staff further
recommends that wetland setbacks shall have conservation signage or boulders placed to delineate
the area(s) as protected and unbuildable. Restoration is proposed for areas of disturbance in
accordance with §15-4.01021 for appropriate plantings.

Ability to Enforce
The UDO requires that an exception, if granted "Not effectively undermine the ability to apply or
enforce the requirement with respect to other properties ($UDO-15-10.0208B2.c.ii)," and that
the Common Council make a determination as to the "degree of noncompliance" under §UDO-
15-10-l 0.0208B2.d.v. that the exception will allow.

The applicant states in their NRSE questionnaire responses that "The situation and conditions
related to this project are unique as the affected property was a properly permitted to impact the
wetland buffer/setback. Applying the wetland setback/buffer at this point serves no purpose and
does not protect the actual wetland resources. Other properties seeking the same relief would
need to meet similar standards."

Placement of fill on site was at the request of Bear Development to "raise the sites and help with
future development plans (Ruffing, A. 2018, January 14)." Fill permits for Wisconsin DOT
project were approved by the City of Engineering Department. Approvals for fill impacts to
wetland setback and buffer were not sought by the applicant at that time. According to the NRPP
submitted on January 10, 2022, fill limits are the same as the limits of impacts proposed for this
NRSE. Fill was placed in the wetland setback and buffer.

3



The applicant is seeking approval for impacts related to this current residential development on a
site they describe as "previously impacted;" however, the prior impacts were at their behest, with
their permission and in the interest of forwarding their development goals by creating a graded
site condition.

The site has experienced infestation by invasive species during the applicant's ownership. W-1, a
SEWRPC Isolated Natural Resource Area, is described in the 2014 wetland delineation provided
by the applicant as "predominantly native sedge meadow and shallow marsh communities (R.A.
Smith National Inc. RASN Project No. 1140273)."

In NRSE questionnaire responses, the applicant describes these wetlands as "low-quality" and
stated this area is "previously impacted" by fill, in particular noting the presence of invasive
species (Page 2). In 2021 the new wetland delineation finds that that this wetland has been
impacted by invasive species such as purple loosestrife (Heartland Ecological Group Inc. Project
No. 20180093 Pg. 9).

Invasive species gain a foothold in areas of disturbed soils. The Wisconsin DNR notes that
"There is no better opportunity for invasive plants to establish themselves than on newly
disturbed soil following construction (Thompson et al., 2010)." In addition, invasive species
spread through the transportation of soils and other materials.

Approval of this NRSE without consideration of these facts would set a precedent that other
developers may emulate, to circumvent local ordinances. Should the City choose to grant
approval of this exception, Staff recommends that the applicant provide for removal of invasive
species and restoration of native wetland species in Wetlands 1 and 2 as remedy. The
Environmental Commission recommended an alternative condition that the applicant provide an
invasive species management plan for the wetland setback and buffer. Their recommendation is
reflected in the draft Standards, Findings, and Decision.

Alternative Site Configurations
In evaluating the request, UDO requires an analysis of alternative designs of a site, and allows
for an exception ifthere are "no reasonable practicable alternatives(§ 15-10.0208B2.b.i and .ii)."

Per the staff report for the Variance application:

"The applicant could accommodate duplex homes on the side of the cul-de-sac road without
the need of this variance by reducing the building footprint. In the R-8 zoning district, the
minimum living area set by the UDO for a single-story dwelling unit is 1,250 sf, therefore
2,500 sf for a duplex, while the proposed building pads range from 4,200 sf to 6,000 sf (from
70x 60 feet to 80 x 75 feet).

The building footprint may be reduced even more with two-story duplexes, the minimum
first floor living area for these is 1,900 sf (950 sf per unit). In this case, the proposed building
footprint is more than 2 times the minimum living area."

Applicant responses in the NRSE questionnaire regarding possible alternatives that "The
compliance with the wetland buffer/setback cannot be achieved. This is an "after the fact"
situation. Fill was permitted to be placed in this area and the impacts to the wetland

4



setback/buffer already exists (Page 8)." The applicant states in responses to staff comments that
"proceeding with a multi-story apartment plan was not supported by the Common Council
during Concept Plan discussions (Page 5).

Natural Resource Protection Plan
A few technical corrections to the Natural Resource Protection Plans are required including
clarification to the amount of each requested impact, and inclusion of required basic information
(§15-7.0201, §15-7.0200, etc.). The NRPP for the reduced setback should also include complete
information about temporary impacts to due to grading or clarify if they are no longer necessary.

Environmental Commission Review and Reccomendation
Pursuant to Section 15-10.0208 of the Umfied Development Ordinance (UDO), all requests for a
Natural Resource Spec1al Exception shall be provided to the Environmental Comm1ssion for its
review and recommendation. The Environmental Commission reviewed this request for a Natural
Resources Special Exception at their January 12, 2022 meeting. At that meeting, they adopted the
attached Environmental Commission Special Exception Review and Recommendation.
Recommended conditions are also incorporated into the draft Standards, Findings and Decision

Prior to the meeting of the Environmental Commission, staff recommended a condition that "the
applicant shall provide for removal of invasive species and restoration of native wetland species
in Wetlands 1 and 2," and that "the applicant shall provide for financial sureties for
implementation ofrestoration, as permitted by §15-4.0103.D." These conditions were deleted.
The proposed condition C regarding restoration and maintenance of wetland setback and buffer
was amended to allow for grasses or native plantings, and to require that management and
implementation information be provided to staff.

Recommended conditions of approval have also been incorporated into the draft Standards,
Findings and Decision of the Common Council.

CONCLUSION

Staff and Environmental Commission recommendations for proposed conditions of approval are
incorporated into the decisions section of the draft Standards, Findings, and Decision of the
Common Council as recommended conditions of approval.

Per Section 15-10 0208 of the Unified Development Ordmance (UDO), the applicant shall have the
burden of proof to present evidence sufficient to support a Natural Resource Special Exception
(NRSE) request. The applicant has presented evidence for the request by answering the questions
and addressing the statements that are part of the Natural Resource Special Except10n (NRSE)
application The applicant's responses to the application's questions and statements are attached for
your review.

Also attached 1s a copy of the document titled, "City of Franklin Environmental Commission" that
reflects the review of the Environmental Commission which must be forwarded to the Common
Council. The questions and statements on thus document correspond with the Natural Resource
Special Exception (NRSE) application questions and statements that the apphcant has answered and
addressed

5



References

Thompson, A. L., Luthin, C. S., A., G. M. P., & Watermolen, D. J., Wetland Restoration
Handbook for Wisconsin Landowners60 (20 I 0). Madison, WI; Bureau of Integrated
Science Services, Wisconsin Dept. ofNatural Resources.

6



12000 W. Loom is Road
TKNs 891 9011 000 & 891 9012 000

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0

R-2

345 690

M-1

1,380 Feet

R-6

A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approximate relative location ofproperly
boundaries but was not prepared bya professional land surveyor
This map is providedfor informational purposes only
and maynot be sufficient or appropriatefor legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.



12000 W. Loomis Road
TKNs 891 9011 000 & 891 9012 000

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 345 690 1,380 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approximate relative location ofproperty
boundaries but was not prepared bya professional land surveyor.
This map is providedfor informational purposes only
and may no/ be sufficient or appropriatefor legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.



Draft 1/20/22

Standards, Findings and Decision
of the City of Franklin Common Council upon the Application of Stephen R. Mills,

President of Bear Development, LLC, applicant, for a Special Exception
to Certain Natural Resource Provisions of the City of Franklin

Unified Development Ordinance

Whereas, Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC, applicant,
having filed an application dated September 3, 2021, for a Special Exception pursuant
to Section 15-9.0110 of the City of Franklin Unified Development Ordinance
pertaining to the granting of Special Exceptions to Stream, Shore Buffer, Navigable
Water-related, Wetland, Wetland Buffer and Wetland Setback Provisions, and
Improvements or Enhancements to a Natural Resource Feature; a copy of said
application being annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A; and

Whereas, the application having been reviewed by the City of Franklin
Environmental Commission and the Commission having made its recommendation
upon the application, a copy of said recommendation dated January 12, 2022 being
annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B; and

Whereas, following a public hearing before the City of Franklin Plan
Commission, the Plan Commission having reviewed the application and having made
its recommendation thereon as set forth upon the report of the City of Franklin
Planning Department, a copy of said report dated January 20, 2022 being annexed
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit C; and

Whereas, the property which is the subject of the application for a Special
Exception is located at 12000 West Loomis Road, zoned R-8 Multiple-Family
Residence District and C-I Conservancy District, and such property is more
particularly described upon Exhibit D annexed hereto and incorporated herein; and

Whereas, Section 15-10.0208B. of the City of Franklin Unified Development
Ordinance, as amended by Ordinance No. 2003-1747, pertaining to the granting of
Special Exceptions to Stream, Shore Buffer, Navigable Water-related, Wetland,
Wetland Buffer and Wetland Setback Provisions, and Improvements or
Enhancements to a Natural Resource Feature, provides in part: "The decision of the
Common Council upon any decision under this Section shall be in writing, state the
grounds of such determination, be filed in the office of the City Planning Manager
and be mailed to the applicant."

Now, Therefore, the Common Council makes the following findings pursuant
to Section 15-10.0208B.2.a., b. and c. of the Unified Development Ordinance upon
the application for a Special Exception dated September 3, 2021, by Stephen R.

I



Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC, applicant, pursuant to the City of
Franklin Unified Development Ordinance, the proceedings heretofore had and the
recitals and matters incorporated as set forth above, recognizing the applicant as
having the burden of proof to present evidence sufficient to support the following
findings and that such findings be made by not less than four members of the
Common Council in order to grant such Special Exception.

1. That the condition(s) giving rise to the request for a Special Exception were not
self-imposed by the applicant (this subsection a. does not apply to an application to
improve or enhance a natural resource feature): but rather, _

2. That compliance with the stream, shore buffer, navigable water-related, wetland,
wetland buffer, and wetland setback requirement will:

a. be unreasonably burdensome to the applicant and that there are no reasonable
practicable alternatives._, or

b. unreasonably and negatively impact upon the applicant's use of the property and
that there are no reasonable practicable alternatives.

3. The Special Exception, including any conditions imposed under this Section will:

a. be consistent with the existing character of the neighborhood: the proposed
development with the grant ofa Special Exception as requested will be consistent
with the existng character ofthe neighborhood, and

b. not effectively undermine the ability to apply or enforce the requirement with
respect to other properties:_, and

c. be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the provisions of this
Ordinance proscribing the requirement., and

d. preserve or enhance the functional values of the stream or other navigable water,
shore buffer, wetland, wetland buffer, and/or wetland setback in co-existence with the
development: (this findng only applymng to an application to mprove or enhance a
natural resourcefeature)

The Common Council considered the following factors in making its
determinations pursuant to Section 15-10.0208B.2.d. of the Unified Development
Ordinance.

1. Characteristics of the real property, including, but not limited to, relative
placement of improvements thereon with respect to property boundaries or otherwise
applicable setbacks:-------------------------

2



2. Any exceptional, extraordinary, or unusual circumstances or conditions applying
to the lot or parcel, structure, use, or intended use that do not apply generally to other
properties or uses in the same district: _

3. Existing and future uses of property; useful life of improvements at issue;
disability of an occupant:-----------------------

4. Aesthetics:----------------------------

5. Degree of noncompliance with the requirement allowed by the Special Exception:

6. Proximity to and character of surrounding property:

7. Zoning of the area in which property is located and neighboring area: Resdential

8. Any negative affect upon adjoining property: No negative affect upon adjonng
property is perceived

9. Natural features of the property: -------------------

10. Environmental impacts:----------------------

11. A recommendation from the Environmental Commission as well as a review and
recommendation prepared by an Environmental Commission-selected person
knowledgeable in natural systems: The Envronmental Commission recommendation
and its reference to the report of is incorporated herein.

12. The practicable alternatives analysis required by Section 15-9.01 lOC.4. of the
Unified Development Ordinance and the overall impact of the entire proposed use or
structure, performance standards and analysis with regard to the impacts of the
proposal, proposed design solutions for any concerns under the Ordinance, executory
actions which would maintain the general intent of the Ordinance in question, and
other factors relating to the purpose and intent of the Ordinance section imposing the
requirement: The Plan Commsson recommendaton and the Environmental
Commsson recommendaton address thesefactors and are incorporated heren

Decision

Upon the above findzngs and all ofthe files and proceedzngs heretofore had
upon the subject applcaton, the Common Councl hereby grants a Specal Exception
for such relefas s descrbed wthn Exhbit C, upon the condtons
1) that the natural resource features and mitgaton areas upon the properties to be
developed be protected by a perpetual conservation easement to be approved by the

3



Common Council pror to any development wthin the areas for which the Specal
Exceptzon is grantedprior to prior to any land disturbing actrvites ,
2) that the applicant obtmn all other necessary approval(s) from all other applicable
governmental agencies prior to any development withun the areas for whch the
Special Exception s granted,
3) that all development within the areas for which the Specal Exception s granted
shall proceed pursuant to and be governed by the approved Natural Resource
Protection Plan and all other applicable plans for Stephen R Nlills, Preszdent of
Bear Development, LLC, applzcant, and all other applicable provisions ofthe Unified
Development Ordinance
4) that the applicant shall provide plans for management of wetland setback that
conforms to the standards 0f$15-4 01021for appropriate plantings Turfgrasses are
prohibited Other grasses or natve plantings are acceptable Non-vegetative cover zs
permitted in areas subject to eroson Management and implementaton nformaton
shall be included on development plans mncludmng landscape plans subject to the
revew ofthe Department ofCatyDevelopment
5) that the applicant shallplace boulders or other markers to demarcate the wetland
setback on theproperty
6) that the applicant shall make required technical corrections (UDO $15-4 0102 and
$15-7 0200) to Natural Resource Protecton Plans includng informaton about the
lmits offill and related gradingfromfillpermit /20201541, subject to staffapproval,
prior to the commencement ofany land disturbance
7) that the applcant shall clarify the amount oftemporary grading impacts

The duration ofthus grant ofSpecal Excepton s permanent

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of> 2022.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of> 2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---

4



TO:
DATE:
RE:
APPLICATION:

City of Franklin Environmental Commission

Common Council
January 12, 2022
Special Exception application review and recommendation
Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC,
Applicant, dated: September 3, 2021
(12000 West Loomis Road)

I. $15-9.0110 of the Unified Development Ordinance Special Exception to
Natural Resource Feature Provisions Application information:

1. Unified Development Ordinance Section(s) from which Special Exception is
requested: The applicant is requesting an exception.from §15-4 0101 Natural
Resource Protection Standards, and $15-4 0102 Natural Resource Features
Determination whch requre that identified natural resources features be
protectedfrom impacts ofdevelopment

2. Nature of the Special Exception requested (description of resources,
encroachment, distances and dimensions): The Special Exception is bezng
requested to allow for impacts to wetland buffer, consistmng of23,979 SF of
temporary grading impact and 1,350 SF ofpermanent buildzngfootprint, and
to 3,586 ofpermanent wetland setback impact related to buildingfootprint

3. Applicant's reason for request: To allow buildzng footprints to be located
wthin the Wetland Buffer and Setback.

4 Applicant's reason why request appropriate for Special Exception: The
applicant states that "The City ofFranklPlan Commssion and Cty Councl
has approved a zoning classification and Certified Survey Map for this
property The intended use oftheproperty s condominium neghborhood

The applzcant has completed a wetland delneaton for the property It was
discovered that the property includes wetlands that have expanded due to the
fill operaton that occurred mn 2018 The expansion of the wetlands,
artificially, has mpacted the buildable area ofthe site

Please note that the pernutted fill was placed mn the wetland setback and
buffer, before a development plan was drafted The fill was placed wthmn the
guidelines ofapermt granted by the Cty ofFranklin

The disturbance wthmn the Wetland Buffer and Setback already exists The
Applcant s not proposing any mpact to the wetland resource, but smply



requesting that buildings be places within the Buffer and Setback whch has
already been impacted

No permts from either the sconsmn Department ofNatural Resources or the
US Army Corps ofEngineers are required, as no impact to the wetlands wll,,

II. Environmental Commission review of the §15-9.0llOC.4.f. Natural Resource
Feature impacts to functional values:

1. Diversity of flora including State and/or Federal designated threatened and/or
endangered species: The wetland buffer and setback consist of commercial
landscape seed mix used to restore the property after the filling operation.
Restoraton was done as a permt condtion. In 2014 prior to the filling
operation, Wetland I, W-I, a SEWRPC Islolated Natural Resource Area, was
described as ''predominantly native sedge meadow and shallow marsh
communites " Subsequently in 2021 a new delineation finds that that this
wetland has been impacted by invasive species

2. Storm and flood water storage: The property is not n a designatedfloodplamn
orjloodway

3. Hydrologic functions: The applicant states that "the wetland setback/buffer
does not have a hydrologic function " City ofFranklin ordinances protect
these areas ofnatural resources as essential to the health ofa wetland

4 Water quality protection including filtration and storage of sediments,
nutrients or toxic substances: The applicant states that "the sue will be fully
restored and stabilized after project grading We anticipate the area between
the wetland andfuture home will be left natural, as it includes a significant
slope "

5. Shoreline protection against erosion: Not applzcable, impacts to shoreline or
shoreline buffer are notproposed

6. Habitat for aquatic organisms: Not applicable

7. Habitat for wildlife: The applcant states that "wildlife habitat will not be
impacted The impact to the wetland biiffer/setback was an agricultural field
before the filling operation occurred " In 2014 pror to the filling operaton,
Wetland 1 {W-1), whzch contains SEWRPC Isolated Natural Resource Area,
was descrbed as "predominantly native sedge meadow and shallow marsh
communes " Subsequently in 2021 a new delineatwn finds that that thzs
wetland has been impacted by nvasve species

2

occur



8. Human use functional value: The applicant states that "the proposed areas of
mpacts are not bezng used for any type of human use " At ths tune, the
property s vacant

9. Groundwater recharge/discharge protection: The applicant states that
"Groundwater and surface water will continue to dran to the peripheral
wetlands " As part of the development proposal stormwater detention
facilities meeting the standards ofthe UDO will be required

10. Aesthetic appeal, recreation, education, and science value: The applzcant
states that "there is no educational or scientific function to the impacted
areas There is no aesthetic appeal " The current ste condition s a vacant
ste impacted byfill

11. State or Federal designated threatened or endangered species or species of
special concern: The applicant states that the "owners are not aware ofany
State or Federal designated threatened or endangered species on our site "
Wetland delineation reports do not provde nformaton about endangered
species

12. Existence within a Shoreland: Not applicable, impacts to shoreline buffer are
not proposed

13. Existence within a Primary or Secondary Environmental Corridor or within an
Isolated Natural Area, as those areas are defined and currently mapped by the
Southeastern Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission from time to time:
The wetland identified as Wetland 1 (-I), also contains SEWRPC Isolated
Natural Resource Areas ndicatmng the presence of important habitat and
species Impacts to the IsolatedNatural Resource Area are notproposed

Ill. Environmental Commission review of the 15-10.0208B.2.d. factors and
recommendations as to findings thereon:

1. That the condition(s) giving rise to the request for a Special Exception were not
self-imposed by the applicant (this subsection a. does not apply to an application
to improve or enhance a natural resource feature): The applzcant notes that the
site s already impacted byfill Wetland delmneatons from 2014 show the existing
wetland complexes n the same general locatons as 2021, the development cannot
proceed as designed wthout impacts to wetland setback and buffer

2. That compliance with the stream, shore buffer, navigable water-related, wetland,
wetland buffer, and wetland setback requirement will:

a. be unreasonably burdensome to the applicants and that there are no reasonable
practicable alternatives: The applcant notes that the ste is already impacted by

3



fll The zoning classificaton (R-8 Multifamily) and allowable site intenstyfor
the property allowfor greater intensity ofuse, however the ste access and
configuration, and required setbacks create constraints on the placement of
buldings and other infrastructure
, or

b. unreasonably and negatively impact upon the applicants' use of the property
and that there are no reasonable practicable alternatives: The applcant notes
that the site is already impacted by fill The parcel is currently vacant, the
proposed use has been affirmed through a rezoning to R-8 Multifamily (ORD
2021-2480), and the applcant has completed a Concept Review and Certified
SurveyMap approval in seeking this development approval

3. The Special Exception, including any conditions imposed under this Section will:

a. be consistent with the existing character of the neighborhood: The applcant
states that "The proposed impact and resulting development will be consistent
with the neighborhood and consistent with the existing zonng and Comprehensive
Plan" Surroundng properties nclude future industrial and developing
residential uses, and

b. not effectively undermine the ability to apply or enforce the requirement with
respect to other properties: The applcant states that "The situation and conditions
related to this project are unique as the affected property was a properly
permitted to impact the wetland biif.fer/setback. Applying the wetland
setback/buffer at this point serves no purpose and does not protect the actual
wetland resources Other properties seeking the same reliefwould need to meet
similar standards", and

Placement offill on ste was at the request ofBear Development to "ratse the stes
and help withfuture developmentplans (Ruffing, A 2018, January 14)" The site
has since experienced significant degradaton and impacts by invasive species
Fll permitsfor Wisconsin DOTproject were approved by the Cty ofEngineering
Department Approvals for fill impacts to wetland setback and buffer were not
sought by the applcant at that tme

It s not posszble to determine the extent of zmpact to wetland setback or buffer
without complete information about the limits offill on the property, wh,ch the
applicant has notprovided as ofJanuary 6, 2022

$UDO-15-10 0208B2 c u requires that an exception, if granted "Not effectvely
undermine the ablty to apply or enforce the requirement wth respect to other
propertes "

4



c. be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the provisions of this
Ordinance proscribing the requirement: Applicant represents that the unque
circumstances involved with this request is what the NRSE process was
intendedfor, and

d. preserve or enhance the functional values of the stream or other navigable
water, shore buffer, wetland, wetland buffer, and/or wetland setback in co
existence with the development (this finding only applying to an applzcation to
improve or enhance a natural resourcefeature): not applicable

IV. Environmental Commission review of the §15-10.0208B.2.a., b. and c.
factors and recommendations as to findings thereon:

1. Characteristics of the real property, including, but not limited to, relative placement
of improvements thereon with respect to property boundaries or otherwise
applicable setbacks: The applicant states that "The improvements will not
negatively affect surroundingproperties " Proposed impacts will occur within the
site and do not extendpast the property line

2. Any exceptional, extraordinary, or unusual circumstances or conditions applying to
the lot or parcel, structure, use, or intended use that do not apply generally to other
properties or uses in the same district: The applicant states that "The exceptional,
extraordinary or unusual circumstance s that the resource being impacted has
already been impacted and the property has been mncluded in a TID Project Plan
whereby the resulting improvements are necessary to generate tax increment "
Tax Increment Districts must include a residential component

3. Existing and future uses ofproperty; useful life of improvements at issue; disability
of an occupant: The proposed use has been affirmed through a rezoning to R-8
Multifamzly (ORD 2021-2480), and the applicant has completed a Concept Review
and Certified SurveyMap approval n seekang this development approval

4. Aesthetics: The applzcant states that "There will be no negatve mpact to
aesthetics The resulting development wll be a resdental neighborhood wth
requred street trees and significant green space "

5. Degree of noncompliance with the requirement allowed by the Special Exception:

The applcant states that "Considering the that the area of impact was previously
dzsturbed, the NRSE is not over-reaching "
Placement offill on szte was at the request ofBear Development to "raise the sites
and help withfuture developmentplans (Ruffing, A 2018, January 14) " The site has
smnce experienced significant degradaton and mpacts by invasive speces Fill
permts for sconsmn DOT project were approved by the Caty of Engineering

5



Department Approvalsfor fill mpacts to wetland setback and buffer were not sought
by the applicant at that time

It is not possible to determine the extent of impact to wetland setback or buffer
without complete formation about the limits offill on the property, whch the
applicant has not provided as ofJanuary 6, 2022

6. Proximity to and character of surrounding property: Proposed impacts wll occur
wthin the site and do not extend past the property line The applicant notes that
"Apphcant owns the adjacent propertes to the east and south. W. Ryan Road
separates neghboring land to the north, a WE Energies ROW separates neighborng
land to the west and a remnant WDOTparcel is located to the west "

7. Zoning of the area in which property is located and neighboring area: Surrounding
zoning conssts of Sngle and Multifamly Residental There s an area of M-I
Limited Industral District to the southeast

8. Any negative affect upon adjoining property: Proposed unpacts will occur within
the site and do not extendpast the property line

9. Natural features of the property: The applcant does not propose impacts to
natural resourcefeatures beyond those included in this request

10. Environmental impacts: The applicant states that "There are no other
environmental mpacts assocated wth the NRSE, "

V. Environmental Commission Recommendation:

The Environmental Commission has reviewed the subject Application pursuant to
§ 15-10.0208B. of the Unified Development Ordinance and makes the following
recommendation:

1 . The recommendations set forth in Sections III. and IV. Above are incorporated
herein.

2. The Environmental Commission recommends [approval] [denial] of the
Application upon the aforesaid recommendations for the reasons set forth
therein.

3. The Environmental Commission recommends that should the Common
Council approve the Application, that such approval be subject to the
following conditions:

a) The applicant shall submit conservation easements for areas of
preserved natural resources (§15- 4.0103.B.1.d, §15-7.0201.H) for

6



Common Council review and approval, prior to any land disturbing
activities.

b) The applicant shall obtain all necessary approvals from Federal and
State regulatory agencies, (§ 15-10.0208.B.3) prior to any land
disturbing activities.

c) The applicant shall provide plans for management of wetland setback
that conforms to the standards of §15-4.01021 for appropriate
plantings. Turf grasses are prohibited. Other grasses or native
plantings are acceptable. Non-vegetative cover is permitted in areas
subject to erosion. Management and implementation information
shall be included on development plans including landscape plans
subject to the review of the Department of City Development.

d) The applicant shall place boulders or other markers to demarcate the
wetland setback on the property.

e) The applicant shall make required technical corrections (UDO § 15-
4.0102 and §15-7.0200) to Natural Resource Protection Plans
including information about the limits of fill and related grading
from fill permit 120201541, subject to staff approval, prior to the
commencement of any land disturbance.

f) The applicant shall clarify the amount of temporary grading impacts are
greater under a reduced setback option.

The above review and recommendation was passed and adopted at a regular meeting
of the Environmental Commission of the City of Franklin on the 12" day of January,
2022.

Dated this day of January, 2022.

Linda Horn, Chairman
Attest:

Jamie Oroark, Vice-Chairman

7



Planning Department
9229 West Loomis Road
Franklin, Wisconsin 53132
Email: genera lplanning(cilfranklinwi .gov

City of Franklin
M A

Phone: (414) 425-4024
Fax: (414) 427-7691

Web Site: www.franklinwi.gov

Date of Application: _

NATURAL RESOURCE SPECIAL EXCEPTION APPLICATION
Complete, accurate and specific Information must be entered. Please Print.

Applicant (Full Legal Name[s]):
Name: S.R. Mills
Company: Boomtown, LLC
Mailing Address: 4011 80th Street
City / State: Kenosha, WI
Phone: (262) 949-3788
Email Address: dan@beardevelopment.com

Zip: 53142

Applicant Is Represented by (contact person) (Full Legal Name[s]):
Name: Daniel Szczap
company: Bear Development
Malling Address: 4011 80th Street
City; state: Kenosha, WI Zip: _5_3_14_2 _
Phone: (262) 949-3788
Email Address: dan@beardevelopment.com

Project Property lnformotlon:
Br@r[y ]re,S,
Property Owner(s)y:boomtown.LL

Mailing Address: 4011 80th Street
City/ state: Kenosha, WI
Email Address: dan@beardevelopment.com

Zip: 53142

Tax Key No4. 891-9993-000, 891-9996-000 and 891-997-000

Existing Zoning:TU
Existing Use: Agriculture~~-------------------
Proposed Use: Two Family Ranch Condominiums
Future Land Use Identification Cwa,Mr Ruaor4 was ttakual Rsaur»

'The 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan Future Land Use Map ls available at: http://www.franklinwi.gov/Home/ResourcesDocuments/Maps.htm

Natural Resource Special Exception Application submlttals for review must include and be accompanied by the following:
(See Section 15-10.0208 of the Unified Development Ordinance for review and approval procedures.)

http://www.frankllnwl.gov/Home/Plannlng/UnlfledDevelopmentOrdlnanceUOO.htm
Iii This Application form accurately completed with original signature(s). Facsimiles and copies will not be accepted.
[I Application Filing Fee, payable to City of Franklin: ii $500
[ii Legal Description for the subject property (WORD.doc or compatible format).
[ii Seven (7) complete collated sets of Application materials to Include:

Iii One (1) original and six (6) copies of a written Project Narrative.
Ii] Three (3) folded full size, drawn to scale copies (at least 24" x 36") of the Plat of Survey (os required by Section 15-9.0110/8) of the Unified

Development Ordinance).
Iii! Three (3) folded full size, drawn to scale copies (at least 24" x 36") of the Natural Resource Protection Plan (See Sections 15-4.0102 and 15-7.0201
far Information that must be denoted on or Included with the NRPP).

Ii] Four (4) folded reduced size (11"x17") copies of the Plat of Survey and Natural Resource Protection Plan.
Iii Three copies of the Natural Resource Protection report, If applicable. (see Section 15-7.01030 of the UDO).
ii One copy of all necessary governmental agency permits for the project or a written statement as to the status of any application for each such permit.
Iii Email (or CD ROM) with all plans/submittal materials. Plans must be submitted in both Adobe PDF and AutoCAD compatibleformat (where applicable).

• Upon receipt of a complete submittal, staff reviewwill be conducted within ten business days.
• Natural Resource Special Exception requests require review by the Environmental Commission, public hearing at and review by the Plan Commission, and Common Council approval prior to

recording with Milwaukee County Register of Deeds.

The applicant and property owner(s) hereby certify that: (1) all statements and other information submitted as part of this application are true and correct to the best
of applicant's and property owner(s)' knowledge; (2) the applicant and property owner(s) has/have read and understand all information in this application; and (3)
the applicant and property owner(s) agree that any approvals based on representations made by them in this Application and its submittal, and any subsequently
issued building permits or other type of permits, may be revoked without notice If there is a breach of such representation(s) or any condition(s) of approval. By
execution of this application, the property owner(s) authorize the City of Franklin and/or its agents to enter upon the subject property(ies) between the hours of 7:00
a.m. and 7:00 p.m. daily for the purpose of inspection while the application Is under review. The property owner(s) grant this authorization even if the property has
been posted against trespassing pursuant to Wis. Stat. $943.13.

{The applicant's signature must be from a Managing Member If the business Is an LLC, or from the President ar Vice President If the business Is a corporation. A
signed app/lcant's authorization letter may be provided In lieu of the applicant's signature below, and a signed property owner's authorization letter may be
provided In lieu of the ro ' slgnature[s] below. Ifmare than one, all of the owners of the r st sf n this Application).

Name & Title (PRINT) 7//4I

Signa

Nam

[)ale"

..•7/lt
Signature - Property Owner

sore-grey-ry9s"((g?he.a Its•ami.term



BER
DEVELOPMENT

December 29, 2021

Ms. Marion Eeks
Associate Planner
City offranklin
9229 W. Loomis Road
Frankl in, Wisconsin 53132

RE: Boomtown, LLC NRSE Response

Dear Ms. Eeks:

Providing Creative Real Estate Solutions to Build Better Communities

We are in receipt ofyour Review Letter dated December 15, 2021, regarding the Boomtown, LLC
application for Natural Resource Special Exception. Please accept this letter and the enclosed materials as
our formal response.

Project Narrative
Boomtown, LLC is seeking a Natural Resource Exception for a property located between W. Ryan Road
and STH 36 bearing Tax Key Number 891-9011-000. The purpose and need of the NRSE is to except
certain natural resource protection standards found in the Unified Development Ordinance to accommodate
a residential condominium project and a proposed City of franklin multi-use trail.

Boomtown, LLC is respectfully requesting approval of the NRSE for lands defined as Wetland Setback and
Wetland Buffer in the UDO. The subject request does not include any impacts to delineated wetlands.
Further, the areas ofNRSE request have been previously impacted with lawful and permitted filling and
grading.

Unified Development Ordinance Requirements

1.) Conservation Easements

Per City approved and recorded Certified Survey Map Number 9338:

Note 5: Conservation Easements to be recorded via separate documents.
Note 8: Recording ofconservation easementsforprotected natural resources present on Lots I
and 2 are required prior to the issuance ofbuilding or land disturbance permits.

During the approval process ofCertifiedSurveyy Map #9338, the City recognized that the NRSE as
required tofacilitate theproposed development. Accordingly, the City approved the CSM with the
requirement that Conservation Easements be recorded after the limits oftheNRSE ere defined and
before building/grading permits are issued.

\. Phone: 262.694.2327 beardevelopment.com

A BER,2 cow
RE ts1Ar

? 4011 80" Street, Kenosha, WI 53142



BER
DEVELOPMENT Providing Creative Real Estate Solutions to Build Better Communities

Further, the City ofFranklin recognized that the Conservation Easement limits would need to exclude
theproposed trail. The alignment ofthe trail has not been finalized.

Enclosed, pleasefind the Revised Natural Resource Protection Plan which depicts theproposed
Conservation Easement Limits. It is our intent to include all open spaces within the Conservation
Easements to maximize the Preservation/Mitigation Area.

Natural Resource Protection Plan (NRPP)

2) Please include proposed name of the development on the NRPP map(§ 15-7.0201.A).
The NRPP has been labeled Ryan Road Condominiums

3) Include the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of the owners and/or developer(s) of the property
and of the designer of the plan(§ 15-7.0201.C.)
The NRPP has been revised to include the Owner and Designer contact information.

4) The NRPP map must include information about all impacts and proposed mitigation. Pursuant to
§15-4.0102.K and §15-7.0201.J ofthe UDO, clearly indicate the amount and type of natural
resource features to be impacted on the NRPP maps. Please include the following information in
the table on the NRPP map (§15-7.0201 and §15-4.0102):

a. The total site area (§ 15-7.0201.E). Total Site Area is 15. 60 Acres
b. The amount and type of any areas of overlapping natural resource features (§ 15-4.0102.K).

Overlapping Natural Resource Area have been identified on the NRPP Exhibit and the
most restrictive natural resource has been used in the calculations.

c. Indicate any areas of the site where natural resources are to be mitigated (§ 15-7 .020 l .J).
The applicant will agree to dedicate portions of remaining open space as
preservation/mitigation areas. Please see revisedNRPP Exhibit.

5) Indicate preservation and mitigation areas to be included in conservation easements on the NRPP
map (§ 15-7 .020 l .K and § 15-7 .020 l .J ). Please see revisedNRPP Exhibitfor proposed
Conservation Easements and Preservation Mitigation Areas.

6) Please clarify the amount and uses of dedicated land in Step 2 of table 15-3.0502 of Site Intensity
calculations - what foci! ities are being counted? 0.19 acres pfproper(y is being dedicated as Ryan
Road Right-of-Way.

Natural Resource Special Exception (NRSE)

7) Please provide a rough estimate of increment that would be provided to the Tax Increment District
by the development, as described in the response to NRSE questionnaire question 4.C.vii (§ 15-
9.011 0.C.4.b.vi) The applicant projects a total increase oftaxable value of$9,100,000.00.

Phone 262.694.2327 beardevelopment.com

BER3 co»we
it tsar

2 4011 80 Street, Kenosha, WI 53142



BER
DEVELOPMENT Providing Creative Real Estate Solutions to Build Better Communities

8) Please revise response to NRSE questionnaire question 4.D.i. through iv. and 4.E to include
information about the current variance request under review ($15-9.011 0.C.4.c and $15
9.011 0.C.4.d).
Please see enclosedNRSEquestionnaire that has been revised.

9) Please provide information about any temporary impacts to wetland setbacks due to grading and
construction, and plans for restoration of these areas. Restoration ofwetland setback must conform
to the standards of§ 15-4.01021 for appropriate plantings. Turfgrasses are prohibited. Non
vegetative cover is permitted in areas subject to erosion.

Please note that the Applicant has not initiated detailed civil engineering design efforts. The
extent ofNatural Resource impacts, at this time, is based offprofessional opinion ofprobable
impacts. Thefeasibility ofthe project is completely dependent on the approval ofthe NRSE.

Much ofthe requested impacts to Wetla11dBuffer and WetlandSetbacks will be temporary in
nature. The applicant seeks approval toperformgrading and underground utility installation
within these areas. Upon completion the temporary disturbance, the areas will be restored with
existing earth materials andstabilized with permanent vegetation.

It is important to note that the areas where impacts are proposed have already impacted by
previously permittedfilling/grading. The area which impacts are requested are not natural and
consist ofcompactedJill.

I 0) Is mitigation or restoration proposed? Please provide information seed mixes and soils for
restoration and mitigation areas. Note that plants and soils must be of superior qua! ity to areas of
disturbance ($15-4.0103.B.5 and $15-4.0103.B.5).

The Applicant will restore, mitigate, andpreserve any areas ofthe site that are notproposed as
buildingpad, yard, public right-of-way or detention basins.

11) Please provide copies ofall necessary governmental agency permits for the project or a written
statement as to the status of any application for each such permit ($15-10.0208.B.3.).

DNR NOI- Application due uponfinal engineering approvalfromCity ofFranklin.
WDNR Sanitary Sewer Extension-Application due uponfinal engineering approvalfrom City of
Franklin.
WDNRPublic Water Main Extension-Application due uponfinal engineering approvalfrom
City ofFranklin.

12) No other impacts are proposed to other categories of resources this time. Please note that future
impacts in excess of the standards of UDO Part 4 would require an NRSE.

\,. Phone: 262.694.2327 beardevelopment.com

A BER? co»wew+swr'

9 4011 80th Street, Kenosha, WI 53142



BER
DEVELOPMENT Providing Creative Real Estate Solutions to Build Better Communities

Additional Planning Comments:

I. Conceptual site plan dated 02/10/2021 shows a proposed design without requiring impacts. What
changed?
The Concept Plan dated 2/10/21 would indeed require an NRSEfor grading within the Wetland
Setback, however, encroachment into the Wetland Setbacks were not needed. The City of
Franklin required the Applicant to update the Wetland Delineation.

From 2014 to 2021 the existing wetland limits expanded to an extent where impacts to Wetland
Setbacks are now required. Please note that the expanded wetlands are likely artificial as they
formed due to grading activities andfarming has ceased on the subject property.

2. Fill permits were approved by Engineering without additional review for impacts to setback and
buffers but not wetland. Was restoration provided for the fill permit guaranteed or subject to
maintenance requirements?
The site has been completely stabilized and restored in accordance with the City Permits. No
maintenance requirements were imposed.

3. Please continue to label the wetland setback "no build" and the buffer "no touch." This labeling
should also be used when indicating wetland areas on any future Site Plan or landscape plan.
Noted.

4. Note that $15-4.0103D allows for financial sureties to be required for restoration. Plan Commission
may choose to impose this requirement on landscape and restoration plans.
Noted.

5. Staff recommends that boulders or other markers be placed to demarcate the wetland setback on the
property.
TheApplicant willprovide boulders and/or signage to delineate the wetland setback. Upon
approval ofthe Condominium Plat, a Declaration ofRestrictive Covenants, Restrictions and
Easements will be recorded that will restrict the use ofthe wetland setback and buffer, including
the prohibition ofany additional buildings within these areas.

6. What is the slope of the existing limits of the fill pile?
The slope ofthe existingfill varies, but generally are at a 3:1 slope.

7. Staff recommends that the applicant reconfigure the proposal to minimize impacts to areas of W-1,
clue to the presence of SEWRPC natural resource areas.
No impact to the IsolatedNatural Area is proposed. Theproposed buildings and associated
grading have been shifted asfar east as possible to create distance between the proposed grading
and wetland.

Phone 262.694.2327 beardevelopment.com

A BER, cowewv
Rt tsTr'

Q 4011 80" Street, Kenosha, WI 53142



BER
DEVELOPMENT Providing Creative Real Estate Solutions to Build Better Communities

8. Can building pad depths be reduced? Staff suggests increased building heights to minimize impacts
while maintaining floor area.
The proposed buildingpads are designed to accommodate a residential building product that is
marketable and endorsed by the Common Council. Based on the existing Multi-Family zoning on
the site, the site could accommodate 48 residential units. Proceeding with a multi-story apartment
plan was not supported by the Common Council during Concept Plan discussions.

9. Staff suggests moving building pads around the bulb of the cul-de-sac towards the west, to minimize
impacts to W-2.
Please see revised Conceptual Plans. The cul-de-sac has been shifted west to minimize impacts to
-2.

10. Staff notes that the applicant currently has a variance under review in the department. It is
recommended that, subject to this approval, the applicant reconfigure site design to minimize
proposed wetland buffer impacts.
The Applicant appreciates the suggestion by City Staff to incorporate a reducedfront yard
setback to reduce impacts. The Variance is being pursued. A Conceptual Plan has been provided
that minimizes wetland buffer/setback impacts.

Also included is a NRPP with the original site plan with the typical 25 'fi·ont yard setbac!,. The
variance significantly reduced the wetland setbacl, impacts.

11. Can the cul-de-sac dimensions be reduced to allow for a reduction in impact?
The cul-de-sac shown in the Concept Plan includes the standard City of Franklin specification.
The Applicant would be open to suggestions on reducing the size of the cul-de-sac and
eliminating the landscape island.

\. Phone: 262.694.2327 beardevelopment.com

BER,g co»ew
RA ts'

Q 4011 80" Street, Kenosha, WI 53142



Natural Resource Special Exception Question and Answer Form

Section 1: Per Section 15-9.0110, Applications for a Special Exception to stream, shore
buffer, navigable water-related, wetland, wetland buffer, and wetland setback provisions,
and for improvements or enhancements to a natural resource feature of this Ordinance
shall include the following:

A. Name and address ofthe applicant and all abutting and opposite property owners of records
(Please attach supplemental documents as necessary)

Applicant: Boomtown, LLC
4011 8)Street
Kenosha, WI 53142

Abuttmg Property Owners:

North:

South:

East:

West:

Franklin DC Land, LLC
142 E. Capitol Drive
Hartland, WI 53029-2104

WI Electric Power Co.
c/o Real Estate
231 W. Michigan Street
Milwaukee, WI 53203

Boomtown, LLC
4011 8Street
Kenosha,Wl53142

Boomtown, LLC
4011 80 Street
Kenosha,Wl53142

Wisconsin WDOT
PO Box798
Waukesha,Wl53187

WI Electric Power Co.
c/o Real Estate
231 W. Michigan Street
Milwaukee, WI 53203

B Plat of survey. Plat of survey prepared by a registered land surveyor showmg all of the
mnformat1on required under $15-9 0102 ofthis Ordinance for a Zoning Complance Perm1t

Page I I
City of Franklm Natural Resource Special Exception Question & Answer Form



Please see attached.

C. Questions to be answered by the apphcant Items on the apphcahon to be provided m wnting
by the applicant shall mclude the followmg

1. Indication ofthe sect1on(s) of the UDO for which a Special Exception is requested.

15-4.0101
15-4.0102

2. Statement regardmng the Special Exception requested, giving distances and dimensions
where appropriate

The subject property consists ofapproximately 15.60 acres and includes public road
frontage on STU 36 and West Ryan Road. The property is zoned R-8 Multi-Family
Residential. A Concept Plan for a 2-family condominium neighborhood has been
presented to the Common Council and received very positive feedback. A Certified
Survey Map was approved by the City ofFranklin earlier this year.

A Wetland Delineation was completed in 2014. The City required an updated wetland
be completed in 2021. Between 2014 and 2021 the wetlands have expanded, likely clue to
grading activities that have occurred on the property.

The property includes two (2) delineated wetlands on the east and west sides of the
property. An Approved Jurisdictional Determination was completed by the US Army
Corps ofEngineers. According to the jurisdiction, the wetlands are not waters of the
United States and do not require any Federal permitting. As such, they are considered
isolated non-federal wetlands.

Per the delineation, the wetlands are isolated and dominated by reed canary grass,
purple Ioosestrife, narrow leaved cattail and green ash. This species mix indicates a low
quality wetland.

In 2018 the property was fully permitted as a Wisconsin Department ofTransportation
Select Fill Site. While a WDOT Select fill site is exempt from local municipal
regulations, a Land Disturbing Permit was obtained from the City of Franklin.
Per the approved permit, select fill was hauled, placed and compacted on the site. The
fill was graded to form a "table-top" to facilitate future development of the site. The fill
limits were approved outside of the wetland areas, but within the wetland buffers and
setback. The limits of fill are depicted on the topographic survey.

The Applicant is requesting a Natural Resource Exception to position buildings within
the wetland buffer and setback. The existing wetland boundaries (the natural resource)
will not be impacted. Please note that the fill exists within the setback and buffer, as
permitted.

3. Statement ofthe reason(s) for the request.

As part of the mass grading, underground utility construction and public roadway
construction, associated with a condominium project, Boomtown LLC is requesting
approval of a Natural Resource Special Exception to allow building footprints to be

Page [2
City of Franklin Natural Resource Special Except1on Question & Answer Form



located within the Wetland Buffer and Setback. Please note that significant fill exists
within these areas.

If the UDO Wetland Buffers and Setbacks were enforced, several buildings would not
be allowed to be constructed.

Enclosed as part of this submittal, are detailed survey exhibits and grading plans
showing the location of the permitted fill and the proposed improvements of the project.

4. Statement of the reasons why the request is an appropriate case for a Special Except10n,
together with any proposed conditions or safeguards, and the reasons why the proposed
Spec1al Exception 1s in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the Ordinance In
addition, the statement shall address any exceptional, extraordmary, or unusual
Circumstances or condit10ns applymg to the lot or parcel, structure, use, or intended use
that do not apply generally to other properties or uses m the same district, includmg a
practicable alternative analysis as follows:

The City of Franklin Plan Commission and City Council has approved a zoning
classification and Certified Survey Map for this property. The intended use of the
property is condominium neighborhood

The applicant has completed a wetland delineation for the property. It was
discovered that the property includes wetlands that have expanded due to the fill
operation that occurred in 2018. The expansion of the wetlands, artificially, has
impacted the buildable area of the site.

Please note that the permitted fill was placed in the wetland setback and buffer,
before a development plan was drafted. The fill was placed within the guidelines of a
permit granted by the City of Franklin.

The disturbance within the Wetland Buffer and Setback already exists. The
Applicant is not proposing any impact to the wetland resource, but simply
requesting that buildings be places within the Buffer and Setback which has already
been impacted.

No permits from either the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources or the US
Army Corps of Engineers are required, as no impact to the wetlands will occur.

a Background and Purpose ofthe Project

1 Describe the project and its purpose in detanl Include any pertinent
construction plans

The project is planned for a future residential neighborhood consisting
of two-family condominiums.

n1 State whether the project 1s an expansion of an ex1sting work or new
construction.

New Construction

Page ]3
City of Franklin Natural Resource Spec1al Except1on Question & Answer Form



11 State why the project must be located mn or adjacent to the stream or
other navigable water, shore buffer, wetland, wetland buffer, and/or
wetland setback to achieve its purpose

The wetland exists at the toe of a significant slope of placed and
compacted fill material. The fill material exists, not proposed.

The future plans of the property will include buildings with footprints
that extend into the wetland buffer and setback. Because of the narrow
shape of the property and the location and orientation of the wetland
resources, the project cannot be feasibly completed without locating
the buildings within the wetland buffer and setback.

b. Possible Alternatives.
C.

State all of the possible ways the project may proceed without affecting
the stream or other navigable water, shore buffer, wetland, wetland
buffer, and/or wetland setback as proposed

While the project cannot proceed without some level of impact to the
Wetland Buffer and Setbacks, the Applicant has applied for a
Variance to reduce the front yard setback from 25' to 20'. The
approval of the Variance would reduce the total amount of impact.

The wetland buffer and setback have already been encroached upon.
The applicant is requesting to construct homes within the area that has
already been impacted.

ll State how the project may be redesigned for the site without affecting the
stream or other navigable water, shore buffer, wetland, wetland buffer,
and/or wetland setback

A Variance of the Front Yard Setback would allow the building pads
and associated grading to be shifted an additional 5' from the wetland
edge. Impacts would still be needed to accommodate the project, but
the impact would be reduced.

The wetland buffer and setback have already been encroached upon.
The applicant is requesting to construct homes within the area that has
already been impacted.

11 State how the project may be made smaller while stull meeting the
project's needs

IV

All wetlands on the periphery of the property will be preserved,
however, the wetland buffers and setbacks have been impacted by
permitted activities.

v State what geographic areas were searched for alternative sites

None

Page [4
CIty of Franklin Natural Resource Spec1al Except1on Question & Answer Form



vi State whether there are other, non-stream, or other non-navigable water,
non-shore buffer, non-wetland, non-wetland buffer, and/or non-wetland
setback sites available for development mn the area

It is assumed that there are other areas in the City of Franklin that
do not exhibit these unique conditions. However, this property is
adjacent to STU 36 and planned for development by the City of
Franklin.

vii. State what will occur if the project does not proceed.

If the project does not proceed, the anticipated tax increment
contemplated by the future development will not be generated. The
land will sit fallow and vacant within the City limits ofFranklin.

d. Comparison ofAlternatives
1 State the specific costs of each ofthe possible alternatives set faith under

sub 2 , above as compared to the angina! proposal and consider and
document the cost of the resource loss to the commumty.

Incorporating a reduced front yard, would affect the project costs.

11. State any logistical reasons limiting any of the possible alternatives set
forth under sub. 2., above.

There would be no logistical reason why the reduced front yard
setback could not be implemented.

1ii. State any technological reasons Immiting any of the possible alternatives
set forth under sub. 2,above

Please see above.

1v State any other reasons limutmng any of the poss1ble alternatives set forth
under sub. 2,above.

NIA

e Choice of Project Plan State why the project should proceed mnstead of any of
the poss1ble alternatrves histed under sub.2 , above, which would avoid stream or
other navigable water, shore buffer, wetland, wetland buffer, and/or wetland
setback impacts

The Applicant would prefer to use a combination of a Front Yard
Variance and limited NRSE to facilitate the project There are no
alternatives that completely eliminate the need for the NRSE The
project should proceed because it implements the best design practices
and engineering to develop this unique site.

Page ]5
City of Franklmn Natural Resource Specal F xcepton Question & Answer Form



Further, the resource that is being buffered consists of low-quality
wetland, that is not federally regulated and likely not subject to State
regulation. Further, no impact to the actual resource will occur.

f. Stream or Other Navigable Water, Shore Buffer, Wetland, Wetland Buffer, and
Wetland Setback Description Describe m detail the stream or other navigable
water shore buffer, wetland, wetland buffer, and/or wetland setback at the site
which will be affected, includmg the topography, plants, wildlife, hydrology,
so1ls and any other salient information pertaining to the stream or other navigable
water, shore buffer, wetland, wetland buffer, and/or wetland setback

The wetland Buffer and Setback consists of placed and compacted fill that
was placed under a City Permit. The buffer includes a 4: 1 slope from the
wetland edge to a building pad.

g. Stream or Other Navigable Water, Shore Buffer, Wetland, Wetland Buffer, and
Wetland Setback Impacts. Descnbe in detail any impacts to the above functional
values of the stream or other navigable water, shore buffer, wetland, wetland
buffer, and/or wetland setback·

Drvers1ty of flora including State and/or Federal designated threatened
and/or endangered species

The wetland buffer and setback consist of commercial landscape seed
mix used to restore the property after the filling operation. Restoration
was done as a permit condition.

11 Storm and flood water storage.

The property is not in a designated floodplain or floodway.

11 Hydrologic functions.

The wetland setback/buffer does not have a hydrologic function.

iv Water quality protection mcludmg filtration and storage of sediments,
nutrients or toxic substances

The site will be fully restored and stabilized after project grading.
We anticipate the area between the wetland and future home will be
left natural, as it includes a significant slope.

v Shoreline protection against eros1on

NIA

vi Habitat for aquatic organ1sms

NIA

vu Habitat for wildlife

Page [ 6
City of Franklmn Natural Resource Spec1al Except1on Quest1on & Answer Form



The wildlife habitat will not be impacted. The impact to the wetland
buffer/setback was an agricultural field before the filling operation
occurred.

vm Human use functional value

The proposed areas of impacts are not being used for any type of
human use.

Ix Groundwater recharge/discharge protection

Groundwater and surface water will continue to drain to the
peripheral wetlands.

x Aesthetic appeal, recreation, education, and science value

There is no educational or scientific function to the impacted areas.
There is no aesthetic appeal .

xi. Specify any State or Federal designated threatened or endangered species
or species of spec1al concern

Owners are not aware of any State or Federal designated threatened
or endangered species on our site.

xn1. Existence within a Shoreland

NIA

XI1 Existence withmn a Primary or Secondary Environmental Corridor or
w1thm an Isolated Natural Area, as those areas are defined and currently
mapped by the Southeastern Wisconsin Regional Plannmg Commission
from time to time

The property in question does not include any land designated as
Primary or Secondary Environmental Corridor as defined by
SEWRPC.

h Water Quality Protection Descnbe how the project protects the pubhc mterest m
the waters of the State ofW1sconsm

The installation of professionally engineered/designed storm sewer through
the area of impact will correct overland drainage issues. Further, on-site
storm water detention will improve the quality and rate of storm drainage
leaving the site.

5. Date of any previous application or request for a Special Except1on and the d1spos1t1on of
that prev10us apphcahon or request (if any)

NIA

Page [ 7
City ofFranklm Natural Resource Special Excepl!on Quesl!on & Answer I orm



D Copies of all necessary governmental agency permits for the project or a wntten statement as
to the status ofany application for each such permit. (Please attach accordingly)

Section 2: Staff recommends providing statements to the following findings that will be
considered by the Common Council in determining whether to grant or deny a Special
Exception to the stream, shore buffer, navigable water-related, wetland, wetland buffer and
wetland setback regulations of this Ordinance and for improvements or enhancements to a
natural resource feature, per Section 15-10.0208B.2. of the Unified Development Ordinance.

a That the condtuon(s) giving rse to the request for a Special Exception were not self
imposed by the applicant (this subsection a. does not apply to an application to improve
or enhance a natural resource feature)
The request for Natural Resource Exception is based on fill material being placed in
the wetland setback/buffer under a City granted permit. Documentation of the
situation is enclosed for review and reference.

b. Compliance with the stream, shore buffer, navigable water-related, wetland, wetland
buffer, and wetland setback requirement will.

be unreasonably burdensome to the applicants and that there are no reasonable
practicable alternatives:

The compliance with the wetland buffer/setback cannot be achieved. This is
an "after the fact" situation. Fill was permitted to be placed in this area and
the impacts to the wetland setback/buffer already exists.T he project does
not impact streams, waterways, wetlands or navigable waterways. All
wetlands on the property have been avoided.
, or

1i. unreasonably and negatively impact upon the applicants' use of the property and
that there are no reasonable practicable alternatives:

Applicant represents that the denial of the NRSE would be unreasonable
and negatively impact the applicants proposed use of the property based on
the fact that the impacts were permitted and the impact to any functional
natural resources is minimal.

c. The Spec1al Except1on, mcluding any condrtrons imposed under this Section will.

be cons1stent wIth the ex1sting character ofthe neighborhood

The proposed impact and resulting development will be consistent with the
neighborhood and consistent with the existing zoning and Comprehensive
Plan.

, and

11 not effectively undermme the ability to apply or enforce the requirement with
respect to other properties:

Page [ 8
Caty of Franklin Natural Resource Spec1al Fxcept1on Quest1on & Answer I orm



The situation and conditions related to this project are unique as the
affected property wasa properly permitted to impact the wetland
buffer/setback. Applying the wetland setback/buffer at this point serves no
purpose and does not protect the actual wetland resources.
Other properties seeking the same relief would need to meet similar
standards.

, and

be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the prov1s1ons of this
Ordinance proscribing the requirement:

Applicant represents that the unique circumstances involved with this
request is what the NRSE process was intended for.

, and

1v. preserve or enhance the functional values of the stream or other navigable water,
shore buffer, wetland, wetland buffer, and/or wetland setback mn co-existence
with the development (ths findmng only applying to an applcaton to mprove or
enhance a natural resourcefeature).

The applicant understands and agrees to place Conservation Easements on
other natural resource features within the site, including any areas of
mitigation. Further, the project calls for significant installation and
maintenance ofmunicipal street trees.

d In makmg its determmations, the Common Council shall consider factors such as

i. Charactenstics of the real property, mcluding, but not limited to, relative
placement of improvements thereon with respect to property boundaries or
otherwise applicable setbacks

The improvements will not negatively affect surrounding properties.

11 Any exceptional, extraordmary, or unusual circumstances or conditions applying
to the lot or parcel, structure, use, or intended use that do not apply generally to
other properties or uses mn the same district:

The exceptional, extraordinary or unusual circumstance is that the resource
being impacted has already been impacted and the property has been
included in a TID Project Plan whereby the resulting improvements are
necessary to generate tax increment.

11 ExIstmng and future uses of property; useful hfe of nnprovements at issue,
disability of an occupant.

The future use of the property has been affirmed through zoning, Concept
Review and Certified Survey Map.

The future improvements will be permanent.

Page [9
City of Franklin Natural Resource Spec1al Excepton Question & Answer Form



1v Aesthetics

There will be no negative impact to aesthetics. The resulting development
will be a residential neighborhood with required street trees and significant
green space.

v Degree of noncompliance with the requirement allowed by the Special
Except1on

Considering the that the area of impact was previously disturbed, the NRSE
is not over-reaching.

vu. Proximity to and character of surrounding property.

Applicant owns the adjacent properties to the east and south. W.Ryan Road
separates neighboring land to the north, a WE Energies ROW separates
neighboring land to the west and a remnant WDOT parcel is located to the
west.

vii Zoning of the area in which property rs located and neighboring area

Zoning in the general area is generally Residential.

v Any negative affect upon adJoining property

There are no negative affects to the surrounding property.

1x Natural features of the property:

The natural features of the property are not proposed for disturbance. The
project does not include any wetland or forest impact.

x. Environmental 1mpacts

There are no other environmental impacts associated with the NRSE.

Page I IO
City of Franklin Natural Resource Special Exception Queshon & Answer form



Cf) w
(.)

<( 0:
u.-:,

~~ u.- »g <I)(.)w 0 U,(.)
<( <( °'"' ~ ~ ~to °'"'0::: " " ~~ ~~ 3 z z 5O:>- z z

2s<( u.O
r-ie, -:i2. a6

"'w <(w
0::: ~
=>
f- !ii€ sg?<( w +3w (.) J,;. ~ ±ij0: - u.- u.- AGu. :, u._ u.-0 "'<.> ~Ui::? ~~ <I)(.) <I)(.)

0<(~- a, <( ~ <( ~~ ~ " 3,gw $ " ~., A ,___ 833 MN z##5 - "'o:>- z i·; ;e ~- i. ~ tiu 9 u.- --
>-;;:-:::' u,U0::: "' o-<" u,u

~-~=> ~ ~"'0 u
°'"'0 :;·s

Cl)
b ew , i j0::: d ~ i! "' liw

§ ±s, 1, & R o; ti...J a. ~ t~ 6r: ~ 0 ~ p ! ii ih s#4 ±ji t 8 8<( w ii er; -• ~ ~ ~ ±;0::: u n $$ . -~
~
-~~ H. H ii-~ 1~0: ~-~ ~~~:, 3a m g=> 0 ±± ... 5i t . . ii"' ±it @ ± id $I- w ~~~ ~~~ Si# ¥8 s3 3%¥ J $%,a&0:

<( □ [i I I I I I
~ ~z I I I ~I I I I I

/

..- 0
N CD-- criI"- 0
N CX)

0
ti:
CJ
Q
I.)
wc..

c:::w>::iw
Cl

z
I.)z viw

<( Cl

_J z
a.. <...Jc..
z
0

1-zw=a..
0
_J
w
>w
0

low
lo
0:::a..
Cf)
w
0
0:::
:::>
0
Cf)
w
0:::

I
I

/
/

/

\
\

\

~ ;§
= A~ a.. ~ ~~<( :i~ ;i a g•i " 2.... §" ! }

<( J a ±a
C
w B.... Ien I I ~~ . ~0 gf .

~

z
0
E
(l_
0
~
(..)
<(
co
fw
Cf)
fz
0
0:::
LL
L{')
N



z
<( z
_J <!:a.. ~
z
0
low
lo
0:::a..
Cf)
w 0.,

2£0::: :;,
=> ~z0 0:Cf) u:;

fl ?
0::: 8

/ I\ / /_,.,
/

\
/\

/_,.,\

w
a:::
::::,
I
<(
w
LL
w
(.)
a:::
::::,
0
Cl)
w
a:::
.J
<(
a:::
::::,
I
<(
z

--I
I
I
Ir
I
I

O'z'o'Q.,

ir:: :.
I 0

I
I
I
r
I
I
1-----
1

I
I
I
}

1

I
I
I
I~
I '-, \



of Franklin Inspection Department

9229 W Loomis Road, Franklin Wisconsin 53132-9728 (414) 425-0084 Fax (414) 425-7513

General Permit
For

Fill

Permit Number:

Property Location:

120180438

12000 W Loomis Rd

I IIIIIIII IIIII IIII IIIII IIII IIIII IIIII IIIII IIIII IIIII IIII IIII

Issue Date:
Expiration Date:

Estimated Cost:

03/14/2018

03/15/2020

$ 4,000.00

Tax Key #: 891-9993-000
Subdivision:
Lot:

Project Description: Strip and stockpile topsoil. Approx. 37,500 CY offill will used to raise the field The area will be
restored with topsoil and seeded. ALL SILT FENCE MUST BE IN PLACE PRIOR TO THE
START OF WORK. As DOT contractor, Musson Bros. acknowledges the fill will only come from
the project described Written venficatlon ofDNR approval must also be provided to the City. The
4:1 maximum slope must be held. Access to the srte must be off STH 36/Loomis Rd only. There
will be no access off ofW. Ryan Rd. at any time.

Property Owner: Contractor:

Mills Hotel Wyomung LLC
4015 80th St
Kenosha W1 53142

Permit Issued By /

Fees Amount

Sol Fl $ 4,000 00
Total $ 4,000.00

Musson Brothers, Inc.
4215 N 124th St
Brookfield WI 53005

Balance Due $ 4,000.00



Project File Data Coordinate System
Name: CIUsers\Lisa\Desktop\2018 Jobs118501 Name: SCS900 Localization

l 08th Street\Dumpsites\Bear Datum: WGS84 Equivalent Datum
Development\BEAR DEVELOPMENT 11- Zone: SCS900 Record
6-17.vce

Size: 13MB
Modified: 4/20/2020 12:23:53 PM (UTC:-5)
Time zone: Central Standard Time
Reference
number:
Description:
Comment 1:
Comment 2:
Comment 3:

Earthwork Volume Report

Unclassified surface compared to Unclassified surface

[Surfaces

Geoid:
Vertical datum:
Calibrated site:

11-6-17 topo
FINALTOPO

Bank Volumes Based on Surface Geometry Alone

Cut material
Fill material

Deficit

1
Bank Areas Based on Surface Geometry Alone

Cut area
Fill area
Zero volume area
Total

[Depth summary

Maximum depth of cut material
Maximum depth of fill material

Classification: Unclassified
Classification: Unclassified

83.4 yd°
46,804.4 yd3

46,721.0 yd

8,147.4 fe
356,671.2 f

0.9 ft
364,819.5 ft?

1.504 ft
6.183 ft



Geoid:
Vertical datum:
Calibrated site:4/24/2020 12:28:56 PM (UTC:-5)

Project File Data Coordinate System
Name: C:\Users\Lisa\Desktop\2018 Jobs18501 Name SCS900 Localization

108th Street\Dumps1tes\Bear Datum: WGS84 Equivalent Datum
Development\BEAR DEVELOPMENT 11- Zone: SCS900 Record
6-17.vce
14MBSize:

Modified:
Time zone: Central Standard Time
Reference
number:
Description:
Comment I:
Comment 2:
Comment 3:

Stockpile Volume Analysis

Measured stockpile surface compared to estimated foundation surface

I Surfaces
I
I TOPSOIL SOUTH PILE Classification: Unclassified

I Volumes from Surface Geometry

Approximate stockpile volume 964.1 vdl[

I Areas from Surface Geomet11-

Approximate stockpile area
Zero volume area
Total

7,162.8 re
0.4 ft

7,163.2 ft2

I Depth summary

Maximum depth of stockpile
Maximum depth of depression

7.500 ft
0.000 ft

This is a report of the volume of a stockpile, as measured between the stockpile surface and a surface
constructed from the base of the stockpile.



Project File Data Coordinate System
Name. C:Users\LIsa\Desktop\2018 Jobs\118501 'Name: SCS900 Localization

108th Street\Dumpsites\Bear Datum: WGS84 Equivalent Datum
Development\BEAR DEVELOPMENT 11- Zone: SCS900 Record
6-17 vce

Size: 14 MB
Modified: 4/24/2020 12:28-56 PM (UTC:-5)
Time zone: Central Standard Time
Reference
number:
Description:
Comment 1:
Comment 2·
Comment 3:

Stockpile Volume Analysis

Measured stockpile surface compared to estimated foundation surface

I Surfaces

Geoid·
Vertical datum·
Calibrated site·

TOPOSIL NORTH PILE

j Volumes from Surface Geometry

1 Approximate stockpile volume

j Areas from Surface Geometry

Approximate stockpile area
Zero volume area
Total

I Depth summary

Maximum depth of stockpile
Maximum depth of depression

Classification: Unclassified 1

944.3 yd

7,605.6 ft
0.7 fe

7,606.2 ft

8.000 ft
0.000 ft

This is a report of the volume of a stockpile, as measured between the stockpile surface and a surface
constructed from the base of the stockpile.



Project File Data
Name: C:\Users\Lisa\Desktop\2018 Jobs\l 08th

Street\Dumpsites\Bear
Development\BEAR DEVELOPMENT
11-6-17.vce

Size: 1 MB
Modified: 3/8/2018 549:53 AM (UTC:-6)
Time zone: Central Standard Time
Reference
number:
Description:
Comment 1:
Comment 2:
Comment 3:

Coordinate System
Name: SCS900 Localization
Datum: WGS84 Equivalent Datum
Zone: Default
Geoid:
Vertical datum:

Earthwork Volume Report

Unclassified surface compared to Unclassified surface

I Surfaces

11-6-17 top0
FINAL SURFACE 3-7-18

Bank Volumes Based on Surface Geometry Alone

Classification: Unclassified
Classification: Unclassified

I
Cut material:
Fill material:

Deficit:

133.0 yd3

37,405.0 yd3

37,272.0 yd

Note: 'Cut Material' is defined as material where [FINAL SURFACE 3-7-18] is lower than [11-6-17
topo]. 'Fill Material' is defined as the volume of material where [FINAL SURFACE 3-7-18] is higher
than [11-6-17 topo].

Note: The above volumes are calculated solely from the geometries of the selected surfaces. No
material properties are applied to the above numbers.

Date: 3/8/2018 5:56:59 AM

----~ - .~- ·

Project:
C:\Users\Lisa\Desktop\2018

Jobs1 08th Street\Dumpsites\Bear

Business Center - HCE



----•·•,:,.\J.\'ll~(l.._,, !1<JVII_)--------------------------------------------~

a.=qr,
-- ·:.--+1r---·-~ -: ... -_

•·· "'"'::. ... :::.::. __Hi.:-_:::__- ---- __.__

_j

3 4A
LE «

.J
~,
w
D

j

' ',
I

I llrn¥-'1~~ l·i

3
~
"'"' litn's:-<=.1o"'=--::r:



usson
Brothers, Inc..
READY MIXED CONCRETE• ASPHALT PAVING• EXCAVATION• TRUCKING

February, 14, 2018

City of Franklin Engineering Dept.
Attn: Glen Morrow
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 531321

RECEIVED

FEB 1 4 2018
City of Franklin

Enineerin

Re: Musson Brothers, Inc. - Filling on Bear Development Lands

Glen,

Thanks for discussing the Bear Development project with me this morning. I have been working with
Dan Szczap, from Bear Development, for a number of months now and want to make sure things go smoothly
for his project and for ours. Their lands near Ryan Road and Loomis are in need of clean fill. I have clean fill
available from our 108" Street project between College Ave and Edgerton Ave. The clean fill will raise the
sites and help with their future development plans.

As you requested, I have filled out the City of Franklin Fill/Soils Disturbing Permit Application and
attached it to our ECIP (erosion control implementation plan). I am required to submit an ECIP, to the
WDOT/WDNR, for each selected site where we intend to haul fill, stockpile recyclables, or use as a borrow
site. The Bear Site North needs about 60,000 CY's of fill per the proposed site plan that we submitted. I
submitted the ECIP to the WDOT/WDNR last week. I have since spoken with Kristina Betzold from the
WDNR. I forwarded to her the Wetland Delineation Report that Bear had done recently. She will be reviewing
the ECIP and the Delineation Report and will reply with any comments or concerns. I expect that she will ask
for a site visit to discuss placement of the Silt Fence and any other BMP's that may be necessary. The WDOT
enviromnental staffwill also review and consult with the WDNR and make their own comments. I will revise
my ECIP to incorporate any changes that the WDOT/WDNR requires. I will keep the City infonned as to any
changes, to the ECIP, that the WDOT/WDNR requires.

Please let me know if we will be required to pay the fees as per the matrix on your Pennit Application.
The Bear Site North could use approximately 60,000 CY's and the south sites at least that much. That could
mean an expense of $10,000 to $15,000 in fees that had not been accounted for in our bid.

Please feel free to contact me with any questions. My mobile #414-303-2721, email
aruffing@mussonbrothers.com.

Sincerely,
Andy Ruffing
Musson Brothers, Inc.

P.O. Box 818
Rhinelander, Wisconsin 54501
(715) 365-8700
Fax (715) 369-9296 AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER

4215 N. 124th Street
Brookfield, WI 53005

(262) 790-5060
Fax (262) 790-5069



ls.City of Franklin eoososames

~iiiJ9229 West Loomis Road, FranklIn, Wisconsin53132-9728 (414)425-7510 Fa: (414) 425-3106

Office Use Only:
Permit No. _
Issue Date:
Expire Date:

Address: _
Owner: _
WIDNR Permit No.

FILL/SOILS DISTURBING PERMIT APPLICATION

This permit application andpermit are authorized byDivision 15-8.0300 of the City ofFranklin UnifiedDevelopment
Ordinance ("UDO"). Please call the Engineering Dept. at 414-425-7510 with any questions regarding this application.

Classes of Applications:

Class Fee Nature of land disturbin construction activi
1 $50 1/4 to 1/2 acres disturbed and/or 25 to 100 cu. Yds. fill or excavation

2 or more acres disturbed and/or 500 or more cu. yds. fi or exc vation;
*$50 for each 500 cu. ds. or ortion thereof in addition o the b se 500 cu. ds.

1/2 to 2 acres disturbed and/or 100 to 500 cu. yds. fill or excavation; Supporting or Adjoining Natural
Resource Features (see UDO $15-8.0302A.6); and Adverse Drainage Impacting (see UDO $15
8.0302A. 7

$100

$250
+$50*

2

3

Class 2 at fee amount of $250 plus /?0 additional 500 cu. "Total Fee Paid

Application Notes:
1. Each Fill/Soils Disturbi ust in ude an r sion and ediment control plan (see UDO 15

8.0307), except as set
2. The fill site plan sha n ur · cross-sections at a minimum of 100-foot

intervals or closer on s1 [ersites\ ping ter than 4:1.
3. In lieu of a control pl a ey depicting the area and describing any

volume of and the nature , and the restoration to be performed, if any,
together with such other information as =»i••:uau1 he City Engineer or designee (see UDO $15
8.0306A.).

4. In lieu of a control plan, an Adverse Drainage Impacting lass 2 applicant may submit an erosion and sediment
control plan statement, which shall briefly describe the si e, including a site map, the best management practices
that will be used, and the site development schedule (see O §15-8.0307B.).

5. An application may have to include additional informatio (see UDO §1 - . 6C.) and any permit granted may
include conditions, including, but not limited to a form ofsur n (letter ofcredit) (see UDO $15-8.0306D.).

6. If a land disturbing construction site activity involves 1 or more acres of land area, a permit is additionally
required from the Wisconsin Department ofNatural Resources prior to the commencement ofsuch activity.

Applicant Agent/Owner to Complete:

Nature of land disturbing construction activity:,
Describe: (fill, grade, etc.)ttl797re.l
Land Area Involved: (acres)lS9gr0.]a%rt5.
Volume ofMaterial: (cu. yds.)d90z21,e,,<'ACf,a
Location(s) ofFi]] Source._te'nn=LEthInf'1infnttt/

Natural Resource Feature(s) Within I 00 Feet: [ ] YES [ ] N
Proposed start Date: 2la. I?2,ZolR
Proposed Completion Date: arc>er 2,Zolf

1



I have reviewed and understand DIvIs1on 15-8 0300 of the City ofFrankhn Umfied Development Ordmance pertammg to
eros1on control and I shall implement the control plan, control plan statement, best management practices, and/or
restorat10n as applicable to my activity and as may be reqmred by any penmt granted to me for this project.

I further grant the nght ofentry onto the property which is the subJect of this Permit Application, to the City of Franklm
City Engmeer or destgnee, for the purpose of mspectmg and momtonng for compliance with Div1s10n 15-8 0300 of the
Ctty ofFranklm Umfied Development Ordmance.

I hereby certify that the mformatton provided by me upon and with this Perm1t Apphcatmn 1s, to the best of my
knowledge and behef, true, accurate and complete.

Property & Location:
Street Address #4as. 2o w.,
City/Sate/Zap Eh». ut ssl32
Tax Key#. 83-993- 000 12000 \.;\l LmM lS RD,
Owner(s) ,8e4 ..-LJ« velopn,e:nf-
Name: 1'22,'/ls/4te.l '4e,n,,n, LLC.
Street Address WS 8tJ,J,{_ ~r::T
City/State/Zip enasa 1 tu/ .53/1./2.
Tax Key#: _
Phone. 22-82- 05
Fax 242- - 8'-/2 - O'/S7
Email. dszaz·,p<6««dewelanent.cam
Date. _

Signarnre _

S1gnarnre. _

Applicant /Agent , J) /J'?
N«me. ace&»lr+ l4-l
Street A«ares vs• as.S
cssaero:6.LL, wi ssoos
Tax Key#: _
Phone 4-303-272/
Fax 22- 290-509
Email arah, enussmoY=rs. <mm

--2,
FILL/SOILS DISTURBINGPERMIT

The above F1ll/S01ls Dtsturbmg Permit Apphcat10n 1s hereby conditionally approved upon all of the above statements and
terms and the terms and provisions of D1v1s10n 15-8 0300 of the City of Frankhn Umfied Development Ordmance,
mcludmg, but not hm1ted to the reqmrement of the Owner and any Apphcant Agent to notify the City Engmeer or City
Engmeer's des1gnee w1thm 48 hours of the commencement of any land distitrbmg construct10n act1v1ty, and all other
apphcable laws Thts approval ts also subject to those conditions as may be set forth below

Conditions of Approval:

Approved By:

Franklin City Engineer or Authorized Representative Date
2



B. Erosion Control Implementation Plan Requirements - Selected Sites

Project ID. 2140-11-70 Highway. USH 45 County Milwaukee
Name of Road/Project: 108th Street (Hales Corners) - College Avenue - Edgerton Avenue
Type of Work: Removals, common excavation, excavation below subgrade, underdrain, breaker
run, base aggregate dense, HMA pavement. concrete pavement. concrete curb and gutter,
concrete sidewalk, roundabout, colored concrete, stamping colored concrete, standard lighting,
decorative lighting, storm sewer, temporary and permanent traffic signal, pavement marking,
permanent signing, and all incidental items necessary to complete the work as shown on the plans
and included mn the proposal and contract.
Prime Contractor· Musson Brothers Inc.
Address: 4215 N 124st Brookfield WI 53005
Contact Person: Andrew Ruffing
DOT Project Manager: Charles Krummel

Phone- 262-790-5060
Project Leader: Paul Watry

The ECIP shall also include, at a minimum, a narrative and pictorial description for each of the
selected sites, 1f any, and attendant erosion control and storm water management measures for
the selected sites. If the combined area of the project site and all selected sites disturbs 1 or more
acres as determined by W1sDOT the following information is required for each selected site.

If a selected site Is used prior to WisDOT approval, it is not covered under the Cooperative
Agreement between DOT and DNR and all applicable permits need to be obtained before the
selected site can be used

1.

2

Selected Site Name: Bear Site North---------------------------
Between W Ryan Rd and W. Loomis Rd. (approx .. 1,500 ftW.

AddressoftheIntersectionofRyan&Looms.)
CityNillage/Town. Franklin County: Milwaukee--------

Part of NW¼ Sec 30, T5N
Township Range Section 1/4 Sect 1/4-1/4 Sect R21E------------1 ncIude a location map, i e a plat map.

Principal contact of the contractor or other person responsible for installation,
maintenance, and removal of erosion control and storm water management
measures at the selected site
Name. Tyler Trimberger Phone. (262) 224-7377
Firm Arbor Green, Inc
Address. 430 E. Albert Street---------------------------

Portage, WI 53901

3 Is this a commercial pit?
If yes, Name of the
pit:
Contact for the
pit:.

No If no, continue to #4

Phone-

WS1073 doc



Include cover sheet of NR 216, NR 135 or COMM permit displaying the permit
number, CUP number and expiration date.
Will the waste or borrow be in the permitted area? Yes
If yes then end of Part B for this selected site. If no then complete remainder of
Part B.

4. Have applicable permits been obtained? Na. see above

5. Is the selected site on tribal land? No

6 Has the Archaeological Review (Form DT1919) been sent to BEES? Yes
What was the Bureau recommendation? x Have not received response yet

Survey Recommended Hugh Potential OK to Proceed

7 Construction actIvIty dates at the selected site: Start· March 5, 2018 Comp.: Oct 12, 2018

8. A narrative description of the selected srte as rt exists before construction, the nature of the
activities to be performed at the site including approximate quantity of waste/borrow
material, and land use anticipated after restoration to the site. - The site is a relativelyflat
farm field, with a crown, that slopes both east andwest to adjacent wetlandareas.
Approximately 60,000 CYoffill will be used to raise thefield on average between 3 to 7
verticalfeet. Topsoil will be strippedfrom the areas to befilledandmoved to temporary
stockpile areas to the NE andSW. Fill will be addedand topsoil will be respread.
Drainage on the site goes to the east andwest towards the adjacent wetlands. The general
area is eastwardsloping. The site will be accesseddirectlyfrom LoomisRd.

9. A description of the intended sequence of mayor land disturbing activities at the selected
site. After the installation ofsiltfence, topsoil will be strippedandstockpiled on the
northeastern andsouthwestern parts ofFillArea. Filling will happenfrom south to
north. Positive drainage will be maintainedat all times. All areas will be restored with
topsoil, fertilizer, andseed upon completion ofourfilling. Fertilizer application rates and
seeding will be discussedwith thefarmerprior to the work being done.

10. Estimated total area of selected site: Total disturbed area 8.5 +/- acres

11 Immediate receiving waters:
(Attach FEMA Floodplain maps)

12 Runoff coefficients at the selected site (Attach the Runoff Coefficient Table)
Supply the following estimates Site slope before construction: 2% After: _2

13 Site map(s) including· (See Trans 401.08(2)(b)(11) for details)
a Boundaries of the site and areas of soil disturbance.
b Existing topography and drainage patterns, roads and surface waters
co Drainage patterns and approximate slopes anticipated after mayor grading activities.
d Location of mayor structural and non-structural erosion control and stormwater

management practices
e Location of areas where stabilization wll be employed, Including but not limited to

WS1073 doc



vegetation, following construction or maintenance activities.
f Area and extent of wetland acreage on the site, whether disturbed or not.
g Locations where storm water is discharged to a surface water or wetland.
h Locaton of any internal haul roads.

(Recommend using USGS maps, Orthophotos, SCS Soils maps, or equivalent )

14. A description of appropriate erosion control and storm water management measures that
will be employed at the selected site to prevent sediments and pollutants from reaching
waters of the state, including wetlands. The plan shall clearly describe the appropriate best
management practice for each mayor activity identified and the timing during the
construction process that the measures will be implemented. The description of best
management practices shall include:
a Description of permanent or temporary erosion control and storm water management

measures. Plans shall ensure the preservation of existing vegetation where practical.
b. Description of structural practices to divert runoff away from exposed soils, to store

flows or to otherwise limit runoff and the discharge of pollutants from the site
c. Management of overland flow at the site.
d. Trapping of sediment in channelized flow.
e. Staging construction to limit bare areas subject to erosion.
f Protection of downslope drainage inlets where they occur.
g. Minimization of tracking at the site.
h. Clean up of off-site sediment deposits.
1. Proper disposal of building and waste material at the site
J. Stabilization of drainage ways.
k. Installation of permanent stabilization practices as soon as possible after final grading
I. Minimization of dust to the maximum extent practical.
m Stabilization of the disturbed portions of the site.

Siltfence will be installedprior tofilling on the site. Hay bale reinforcement or a second line of
siltfence will be added ifit is determined that additionalprotection is necessary. Temporary
seeding will be applied to topsoil stockpiles if the stockpiles are to be leftfor more than 2 weeks.
Efforts will be made to leave existing vegetation in place to aid in the control oferosion and
sedimentation. A trackingpadwill be built and used to access the sitefrom Loomis Rd. The
trackingpad will be maintained to help reduce tracking topublic roadways. Ifsoils are tracked
from the site, cleanup will be accomplishedusing loader, sweeper with water spray mechanisms,
and water truck. Apick up broom will be utilized ifother methods are unsuccessful. Dust will be
controlled using water. Siltfence will be removed after vegetation has been re-established and
the site is stabilized.

16 A description of the procedures to mamtam vegetation, best management practices and
other protective measures, mn good and effective operating condition. If the selected site
will remamn open for more than 2 weeks without construction activities (1.e. over-winter), how
will the site be stabilized and how often will it be inspected? Vegetation will be left in all
areas as long aspossible until the areas are requiredfor waste excavationplacement.
Bestmanagementpractices will be used to control erosion andsedimentation. The site
erosion control devices will be inspectedat a minimum weekly andafter all ½" or greater
rain events.

If permanent infiltration devices are employed, complete:

WS1073 doc



17 Existing data describing the surface soil, subsoils, and depth to groundwater at the selected
srte (Refer to Sol Conservation Service's County Soil Survey Book or equivalent where
available)

WS1073 doc



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Acceptance ofPublic Improvements in Conjunction
with the 'DevelopmentAgreement for Tax

Incremental Financing District No. 6 Public
Improvements and Ryan Meadow Subdivision'

MEETING
DATE

2/1/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.6.
BACKGROUND

Pursuant to the development of the Tax Incremental District No. 6 Public Improvements and Ryan Meadows
Subdivision, the developer has substantially completed its obligations and is requesting, per the attached
letter, that the City accept the public infrastructure regarding the same.

ANALYSIS

The City Engineer has reviewed the project requirements and concurs that all public improvements are
complete, as prescribed and required in the agreement, with the exception of the final lift of asphalt plus the
one-year warranty. As such, and because the City would like the developer to delay in completing the final
lift of asphalt until at least 80% of the new homes in the area are constructed, staff is reviewing the agreement
in detail to ensure that acceptance of the completed infrastructure does not carry unintended consequences.

The City Attorney, City Engineer, and Director of Administration are in the process of reviewing all project
details with the expectation that staff will be ready to present a recommendation to the Council at the
Meeting on Tuesday, February 1, 2022.

The project review includes a complete review of:

(1) the TID No. 6 Development Agreement Between the City of Franklin and Loomis and Ryan, Inc.;
(2) the First Amendment to TID No. 6 Development Agreement Between the City of Franklin and
Loomis and Ryan, Inc.;
(3) the Development Agreement for TID No. 6 Public Improvements and Ryan Meadows
Subdivision;
(4) the bond, in the amount of $11,095,010.30, currently held by the City;
(5) any outstanding costs, invoices, or similar with regard to the project, and
(6) any other related documents on this matter.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff will present a recommendation regarding this request to the Common Council at its meeting on
Tuesday, February 1, 2022.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to be determined upon completion of staff review.

Director of Administration/City Attorney/City Engineer



BER
DEVELOPMENT

January 26, 2022

Peggy Steeno
Director of Admmnustration
City of Franklin
9229 W Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Providing Creative Real Estate Solutions to Build Better Communities

Re Ryan Meadows Subdivision-Acceptance of Public improvements

Dear Ms. Steeno.

Per our recent conversations, please accept this letter as formal request for City of rranklin Acceptance of
the Public Site Improvements at the Ryan Meadows Subd1v1s1on The proJect has been designed and
constructed under City of Franklin superv1s1on and the project 1s substantially complete Further, the Record
Drawings have been submitted and approved by City Engmeenng

We understand that the Development Agreement includes contmumg Developer obligations for Ryan
Meadows, which we are prepared to perform In particular, the fmal lift of asphalt 1s a Developer
respons1b1ilty, but, per the Development Agreement, cannot be mnstalled until 80% of the homes are
constructed w1thm the subdivision. The tumeline on thus oblgaton could be 2-3 years, based on the pace of
home construction. That bemng said, we respectfully request acceptance of the Public Site Improvements m
order to reduce the existing Subdivision Performance Bond and enter the Warranty Penod for the public
improvements

Should you have any question regarding this matter, please do not hesitate to contact met at (262) 949
3788 or by email, dan@beardevelopment com

Respectfully,

Daniel Szczap
Bear Development, LLC

S Phone 262 6942327 beardevelopment com

A BER cow
Rektsu

$ 4011 80" Street, Kenosha, WI 53142



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Approval ofa Job Description for the
Position ofLaborer

MEETING
DATE

2/1/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.7.
BACKGROUND

A new position, Laborer, in the Department of Public Works, was included and authorized in the 2022
Budget. This position is replacing the majority of the temporary help positions in the Department, and is
slated to be a full-time, permanent position.

ANALYSIS

The Laborer position was created as a solution to two on-going issues:
1. There have been less and less qualified applicants for the typical seasonal summer help positions.

Several years ago, the City increased the DPW seasonal pay to $13/hour. Unfortunately, most
employers have also increased their wages, to $13 to $15/hour or more, and thus the temporary
positions are no longer viewed as attractive positions, especially since the work can be physically
challenging. The work ethic that we now get from many of our applicants, typically college students,
is less than desirable, and thus staff would prefer not to hire seasonal workers at this time.

2. Hiring employees with the required Class A Commercial Drivers License is very difficult in recent
years due to full employment in the construction trades. The Laborer position would allow us to hire
someone with similar skills who does not currently have a Class A CDL. The person could perform
most of the duties of the Light Equipment Operator position but could not drive any equipment where
the Class A CDL was required. If the person subsequently obtained their CDL, they could then be
promoted to a Light Equipment Operator position.

The job description was created using the approved Light Equipment Operator position, and removed any
requirements or duties which required the Class A CDL. The position would be a Salary Grade 3, which is
one pay level below the Light Equipment Operator. The budget had anticipated this position would pay
$21/hour, which is consistent with the Grade 3 salary range.

On January 17, 2022, the draft position description, as attached, was considered by the Personnel Committee
and recommended for approval by the Common Council.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval of the Laborer position job description.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to approve the job description for the Laborer position.

DOA-PAS



Job Title:

Department:

Appointing Authority:

Supervisor:

CITY OF FRANKLIN
JOB DESCRIPTION

Laborer

Public Works

City Engineer

Public Works Superintendent

Grade Level: Per AFSCME Union ContractSalary Grade 2 or 3 (will rate
job and have a recommendation at the Personnel Committee meeting)

FLSA Status:

Prepared By:

Last Update:

Approved By:

Date Approved:

Hourly, Non-Exempt

Glen Morrow, City Engineer, Director of Public Works

January 13, 2022

Common Council

222222222, 2021

Summary:
Under general supervision operates a variety of equipment and medium light duty dump
trucks and equipment utilized in the construction and maintenance of municipal
infrastructure. Performs manual labor in a variety of routine assignments, either as a crew
member or independently following work instructions. Work often requires heavy
physical exertion and may be performed in adverse weather conditions.

Essential Duties and Responsibilities
Operate medium duty and light duty trucks and other municipal equipment in various
sizes and weights in the loading, hauling and unloading of various equipment, materials
and supplies.

Plan route to insure most economical use oftime and equipment.

Assist in installing and replacing road and street signs.

Perform routine and basic maintenance on city facilities.

Cut weeds, mow lawns, prune trees, plant trees, trim shrubs, remove trees, apply
fertilizers, topsoil and seed public lands.

Pick up brush and trash from city streets and public grounds.

Set concrete forms, pour and finish concrete. Tuck point, repair or rebuild storm sewer
catch basins and manholes. Install storm sewers.



Patch and crack seal roadways. Repair street curb and sidewalks.

Operate jackhammers, brush clippers, mowers, and other small equipment and tools to
maintain the public infrastructure.

Operate medium duty dump trucks equipped with front plow, wing plowand saltspreader
to plow snowand salt roads according to departmentalpolicy.

Control traffic at worksites by flagging to guide traffic through work areas, as required or
assigned.

Install culverts and assist the heavy and light equipment operators with steaming out
culverts when frozen.

Perform maintenance on city parks and bike trails, install playground equipment.

Perform routine inspection and preventive maintenance on assigned equipment and refer
defects or repairs to supervisor; clean equipment.

Perform all duties in conformance to appropriate safety and security standards.

Keep records ofwork completed.

Perform other related, similar or logical duties as assigned or required by the supervisor.

The duties listed above are ILLUSTRATIVE ONLY, and is not a comprehensive listing
of all functions and tasks performed by positions in this class. It does not imply that all
positions within the class perform all of the duties listed, nor does it necessarily list all
possible duties that may be assigned.

Minimum Qualifications, Education, and Experience:
Graduation from high school or GED equivalent. 1 year of related experience, such as
landscaping, construction work, or other outside physical work is preferred. A good
driving record is required. one (l) year previous experience involving the use of light
equipment and medium duty dump trucks

Language Skills:
Ability to read and interpret documents such as safety rules, operating maintenance, and
procedure manuals.

Ability to communicate orally, in writing, and understand and follow written and oral
instructions.

Mathematical Skills:
Ability to add, subtract, multiply and divide in all units ofmeasure using whole numbers.

Reasoning Ability:
Ability to establish and maintain effective relationships with employees, supervisors and
the general public.

Ability to make independent judgments which have moderate impacts on the
organization.

2



Necessary Skills and Abilities:
Thorough knowledge of traffic laws and defensive driving.

Skill of safe operation of listed tools and equipment.

Working knowledge of methods, materials and tools used in street and road maintenance
work.

Working knowledge of hazards and safety precautions common to light and heavy
equipment operations.

Ability to drive and operate a variety of equipment and light trucks under varymg
conditions.

Ability to observe proper safety rules and regulations as written in the city safety manual.

Supervision Received:
Works under the general supervision of the Public Works Superintendent.

Supervision Exercised:
None.

Responsibility for Public Contact:
Daily contact requiring courtesy, discretion, and sound judgment.

Certificates, License, Registrations:
At a minimum, must possess a valid Wisconsin Class D A CDL Driver License with N
endorsement. MANDATORY. After employment, employee will be given opportunity
to earn a CDL Driver License with commitment guarantees.

After employment, employees will be required to attend City sponsored safety, health and
job training seminars, i.e.; Personal Protection Equipment, Respiratory Protection,
Competent Person, Confined Space Entry, Hazard Communications, First Aid/CPR, or
any other course or training required by the Department of Commerce or City necessary
for an employee to safely, skillfully and productively perform their job.

Tools and Equipment Used:
As driver license endorsements allows, transportation vehicles, dump truck, pickup truck,
utility truck, street sweeper, skid steer, jetter/inductor truck, front-end loader, street roller,
manlift, tamper, plate compactor, saws, pumps, tar kettle, compressors, sanders,
generators, stump grinder, common hand and power tools, shovels, wrenches, detection
devices, mobile radio, telephone, ditch witch, brush chipper and hand tools used in the
maintenance of vehicles.

Physical Demands:
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an
employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the
essential functions.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is occasionally required to stand;
use hands and fingers to handle, feel or operate objects, tools, or controls; and reach with
hands and arms. The employee is occasionally required to sit, climb, balance, stoop,
kneel, crouch, crawl, talk, hear and smell. The employee is often required to walk short

3



distances, sometimes over uneven terrain. The employee may also be required to perform
strenuous tasks under varying weather conditions.

The employee must frequently lift and/or move up to 40 pounds, and occasionally lift
and/or move up to 100 pounds. Specific vision abilities required by this job include close
vision, distance vision, color vision, peripheral vision, depth perception, and the ability to
adjust focus.

Work Environment:
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an
employee encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the
essential functions.

Work is regularly performed outdoors. Occasionally, while performing the duties of this
job, the employee will work outdoors in inclement weather, such as rain, extreme heat or
cold. The employee occasionally works near moving mechanical parts and in high,
precarious places, and is occasionally exposed to wet and/or humid conditions, fumes or
airborne particles, toxic or caustic chemicals, risks of electrical shock, and vibration.

The noise level in the work environment is usually moderate, at times loud when near or
operating equipment.

Selection Guidelines:
Formal application, review and rating of education and experience, job related written
test, oral interview and a reference check. A practical exam may be required.

Miscellaneous:
The duties listed above are intended only as illustrations of the various types of work that
may be performed. The omission of specific statement of duties does not exclude them
from the position if the work is similar, related or a logical assignment to the position.

The job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer
and employee and is subject to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and
requirements of the job change.

4



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION

WATERMAIN PROJECT ON S. LOVERS LANE
FROM W. ST MARTINS ROAD TO

7911 S. 100TH STREET

MTG.DATE
Februarv 1, 2022

ITEM NO.

G.8.
BACKGROUND
The Franklin Water Utility is constructing a new water storage tower in the vicinity of 8120 S.
Lovers Lane. This tower is needed to address inadequate storage in the western pressure zone,
and all of Franklin. This project has received approval from the Public Service Commission and
is expected to be bid in the second quarter of 2022. Construction is expected to take about 18
months from award of bid.

This tower will require connection to the water distribution system via a ¾-mile segment of a 16-
inch watermain. The watermain segment will complete a water system gap that extends from the
intersection ofW. St. Martins Road (approximately 750 feet north ofW. Loomis Road) north along
the eastern side of the road to the entrance of Target Corporation (approximately 1,500 feet south
of W. Drexel Avenue).

The tower and associated watermain projects are anticipated in the 2022 budget.

ANALYSIS
Resolution 93-3955 discusses the process for surveying property owners who have petitioned the
City for water service. Note that this is a voluntary process and is not spelled out in the municipal
code. Typically, affected property owners are surveyed before the City develops a watermain
extension project because these projects are typically developed at the request of one or more
property owners. In this situation, the need for the watermain is because of the water tower.
Surveying the property owners would give them an advance notice of the project, but could also
be a source of frustration since the project needs to occur with/without their consent.

This project will affect 39 parcels as shown on the attached exhibit. An engineering report will
determine how many would be benefitted as some are already served by water from other
directions. It is anticipated that approximately 20-25 properties would be benefitted by this
project.

Regardless if the property owners are surveyed or not, the next step is to pass a resolution for the
intent to special assess for the watermain. Benefitted property owners would be assessed for an 8-
inch system and the water impact fees would be responsible for the rest of the project.

OPTIONS:
A. Survey property owners
B. Do not survey property owners

FISCAL NOTE
Decision to survey or not survey adjacent property owners will not affect the budget. Preliminary
estimates indicate that a 16-watermain system could cost $1.6 million and an 8-inch watermain
system would be just over $700,000.

RECOMMENDATION
(At the will of the Common Council) Direct Staff to [Survey/ Not Survey] the property owners
along S. Lovers Lane Road and return with a preliminary resolution to special assess properties.

Department ofEngmeermg GEM



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 93-2955

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

A RESOLUTION PERTAINING TO THE SURVEYING OF OPINION FROM
PROPERTY OWNERS UPON A PETITION FOR THE EXTENSION OF

SANITARY SEWER OR WATER MAIN

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Frankl in has
utilized a survey process to sample public opinion as part of its
deliberations from time to time upon whether to extend sanitary
sewer and/or water into limited and determinable areas, the cost
of such municipal improvements to be funded by special assessments
for the special benefits conferred upon the properties located in
such areas; and

WHEREAS, the survey process has been utilized as an attempt
to determine the number of property owners to be affected by a
proposed special assessment for municipal improvements who are in
favor of the proposal and the number of those affected property
owners against such proposal; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council has considered each petition for
the extension of sanitary sewer or water and the question of
whether to proceed to survey the potentially affected property
owners upon such petition, on a case by case basis; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council has experienced a number of
renewed petitions and requests to reconsider denials of petitions
for the extension of municipal utilities, subsequent to the recent
completion of the survey process upon the original proposals, the
costs of such survey process having been borne by the municipality;
and

WHEREAS, the Common Council has considered the administrative
and service costs of the survey process and the effect upon the
community of the receipt of repeated survey questionnaires upon
public improvement project proposals after their recent denial.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common
council of the City of Franklin, that the following be guidelines
pertaining to any surveys to affected property owners upon a
petition for the extension of sanitary sewer or water:

1. No survey of property owners within a lim; and
determinable area for the purpose of obtaining :heir
opin's: pon a petition the extension of sanitary
sewe: /or water shall e unuertaken at any timewithi
nine othser the date of denial by the Commaco 3 xtens' 1euti
ta
to gauggiatiffT"1"1""""1""""""eathe community upon receipt o: a renewe pe.i.ion 'or e



Res. 93-3955
Page Two

extension of municipal utilities, which contains new
information or facts which arose subsequent to the
previous denial of a like petition, indicating a
potential adverse effect upon the health and safety of
the community.

2. In utilizing the survey results, the determination of the
number of property owners in favor of or opposed to any
proposed work of municipal improvement shall be made only
upon those surveys which have been returned and no weight
shall be in any way afforded to the consideration of
those surveys which have not been returned.

3. The determination as to whether property owners are in
favor of or against any proposed work of municipal
improvement shall be made only by a percentage
calculation, with the number of property owners returning
surveys in favor of or opposed to any proposed work of
municipal improvement as the numerator and the total
number of property owners returning surveys as the
denominator.

4. As part of the survey process, a property owner shall
only be entitled to return one survey, regardless of the
number of properties owned or whose ownership is
controlled by such property owner.

5. The survey questionnaire shall advise property owners
that the municipal improvement will result in sewer
and/or water quarterly service charges, that property
owners will incur the cost of plumbing connections to
existing improvements and the cost of lateral
installation to the property line and that the assessed
value of property may be increased due to the
improvements.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council on the
5th day of April , 1993.

Passed and adopted by the Common Council on the 5th
April , 1993.

James
\

day of

AYES_5NOES0ABSENT 1 (Ald. Mayer)





f,

!

ii

Vl
h»
Q)
:>
0
-'
V')

s::::
0
s::::
0
Vl
s::::
Q)....><I
s::::

"'O
O
0or-
Q)
s::::
ro
-'



u
i..
Q)
>
0
...J

V)

C:
0
C:
0
'iii
C:
Q)....
Xw
C:

-0
O C
E 0
i.. 0::
Q)....
0z



APPRO~

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION

WATER SURVEYFORFRONTAGE ROADALONG
S. LOVERS LANE (U.S. 45 / STH 100) FROM
W. HERDAPLACE TO S. PHYLLIS LANE

MTG.DATE
February 1, 2022

ITEM NO.

G.9.
BACKGROUND
Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WisDOT) is planning a project on S. Lovers Lane (U.S
45 I STH 100) from W. Rawson Avenue (CTH BB) to W. College Avenue. The project schedule
has moved up from the previously reported circa 2024 or 2025 to a letting and commence
construction in 2023. This item was last discussed at the Common Council on August 18, 2020
when residents were surveyed for a preference on the one-way or two-way street configuration for
the east frontage road between W. Herda Place and S. Phyllis Lane.

During the utility coordination efforts, it was noted that these same six houses have no access to
public water, even though a watermain is extended on both W. Herda Place and S. Phyllis Lane.
There is also a watermain on the west edge of S. Lovers Lane, but the road is a 4-lane divided
highway and WisDOT would not allow six individual water services to cross beneath this road
section.

ANALYSIS
To Staffs knowledge, there have never been any requests from these properties for public water.
With WisDOT doing major construction for this frontage road, water should be installed now, or
ignored for many decades. Staff has verified with WisDOT Staff that their construction could
accommodate coordination with a City contractor to construct a watermain along the frontage road.

Any decision to construct or ignore this watermain extension needs to be made soon.

Survey of property owners for a watermain project is not mandatory. Surveys do provide Common
Council useful information, but sometimes, decisions need to be made for other reasons besides
current want for water service. Surveys can also serve as a way to engage property owners on an
upcoming project.

OPTIONS
A) Direct Staff to survey property owners and return with a recommendation
B) Direct Staff to not survey and proceed with design efforts.
C) Direct Staff to not survey and do not proceed with design efforts.

FISCAL NOTE
Water impact fees are not applicable since an 8-inch water main is the expected system to be
installed. There are annual budgets for miscellaneous water main extensions and the design could
be covered in the 2022 budget ($200,000) and next year's budget should consider the construction.
In addition, the six homes would be subject to special assessment.

RECOMMENDATION
Instruct Staff to survey 6 property owners along the frontage road of S. Lovers Lane (U.S. 45 /
STH 100) from W. Herda Place to S. Phyllis Lane and return to Common Council with an
evaluation and recommendation of the project.

Engineering Department: GEM





APPROVAL~

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION

ARESOLUTION TO ENTERLICENSE WITH
WISCONSIN ELECTRIC POWERCOMPANY

TO USE THEIR PROPERTYFORALINEARPARK
FROM S. 116TH STREET I W. MAYERS DRIVE TO

MUNICIPAL BOUNDARYWITH MUSKEGO

MTG.DATE
February 1, 2022

ITEM NO.

G.10.
BACKGROUND
Staff is working to develop the S. 116 Street Trail in the Wisconsin Electric Power Company
(WE Energies) property. Specifically, the property is the nowdefunct Milwaukee Electric Railway
and Light Company, also referred to as the Milwaukee Interurban Lines. There was a rail segment
between Hales Comers and Waukesha that passed through St. Martins Junction.

The City has a 1994 agreement to locate an asphalt hiking and biking trail on the WE Energies
property north of St. Martins and they are agreeable to working out a similar arrangement for this
proposed section along the west side of S. 116th Street.

ANALYSIS
This needs to be finalized not only for the construction of a trail, but to proceed with permitting
though the Wisconsin Department ofNatural Resources that requires control of the land before a
permit application is accepted.

The attached License Agreement was prepared by WE Energies and stipulates responsibilities to
the City.

OPTIONS
Approve or Deny

FISCAL NOTE
Construction of a trail has significant implications on budget. But this license, in and of itself,
only has impact on maintenance efforts.

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt Resolution 2021- a resolution to enter license with Wisconsin Electric Power
Company to use their property for a linear park from S. 116th Street I W. Mayers Drive to the
municipal boundary with Muskego.

Engineering Department: GEM



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2022

RESOLUTION TO ENTER LICENSE WITH WISCONSIN ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY
TO USE THEIR PROPERTY FOR A LINEAR PARK

FROM S. 116TH STREET/ W. MAYERS DRIVE
TO MUNICIPAL BOUNDARY WITH MUSKEGO

. ... ...-.-.-.

WHEREAS, the Wisconsin Electric Power Company (WE Energies) owns a rail segment
property of the now defunct Milwaukee Electric Railway and Light Company, also referred to as
the Milwaukee Interurban Lines that connected Hales Comers and Waukesha by passing though
the St. Martins Junction; and

WHEREAS, the City is planning a pathway between the intersection of S. 116 Street and W.
Mayers Drive, passing southerly crossing W. Road, and continuing to the municipal boundary with
Muskego; and

WHEREAS, WE Energies is acceptable to the City to occupy the linear section of land to
construct and maintain a pathway for public recreation; and

WHEREAS, the City is agreeable to the terms and conditions set forth in a lease agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin, that the City enter into a License Agreement with Wisconsin Electric Power
Company to use their property for a linear park from S. 116th Street I W. Mayers Drive to municipal
boundary with Muskego.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin the
day of,2022, by Alderman

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the
day of2022

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT GEM



LICENSE AGREEMENT

THIS LICENSE, Made and entered into this_day of _, 2022, by and between
Wisconsin Electric Power Company, a Wisconsin corporation, doing business as We Energies, hereinafter
referred to as "Licensor'', and City of Franklin, a municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as "Licensee",
(Individually sometimes referred to as "Party', collectively as "Parties").

WITNESSETH:

Licensor, for and In consideration of the covenants, conditions, and agreements hereinafter contained, hereby grants
license and permission unto Licensee, to develop, at Licensee's sole cost and expense, and use a part of Licensor's
right of way lands (hereinafter "Lands") as a recreation trail (hereinafter "Premises") and to place thereon a trail for
hiking, biking, and cross-country skiing and other similar non-motorzed recreational uses (hereinafter "Trail") for use
by the general pubhc and for no other purpose or purposes whatsoever (except those purposes as may be
determined by Licensor for its own use), which Premises is located west side of South 116 Street starting in front of
8139 S 116th Street heading south along S116 Street then Southwesterrly and then running parallel with W Loomis
Road ending at Waukesha County (county line), being a part of the Westerly ½ of Sections 18 and 19 and Northwest
¼ of Section 30, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin in Milwaukee County, W1scons1n., The general
location of said Lands and Premises is shown highlighted on the maps marked Exhibit "A", attached hereto and
made a part hereof

The License and permission herein granted 1s subject to the following cond1t1ons.

Term: The term of this License Agreement (hereinafter "License") shall be for a period of five (5) years
(hereinafter "Initial Term") and continue thereafter on a year to year basis subject to termination as hereinafter
provided This License shall commence on the above date which 1s the date the last of the Parties hereto
executed this License (hereinafter "Commencement Date")

2 Termination: Upon expIratIon of the Initial Term, this License may be terminated at any time by either Party
hereto by providing at least 90 days prior wntten notice to the other Party of such termination. Notwithstanding
any of the terms and conditions contained herein, should Licensor require exclusive use of any part of its Lands,
Including the Premises, for its purposes, then Licensor may, at any time, Including dunng the Inital Term,
terminate the License in whole or in part on such part or parts of the Lands or Premises 1t requires, and Licensee
shall, not later than 90 days after receiving notice of such termination, at its sole cost and expense, relocate,
remove or re-route the Trail from such part or parts of the Lands

3. Non Use: Licensee shall have one (1) full year, beginning at the Commencement Date of this License, to begin
construction of the Trail and one (1) full year after the start of construction to complete construction, as permitted
heremn If Lucensee fals to begn construction of the Trail within one (1) year of the Commencement Date or
complete construction of the Trail within one (1) year, this License shall terminate immediately without notice
from Licensor.

4 Base Rent: During the Initial Term and extensions thereto, no Base Rent shall be due.

5 Assignment: Licensee shall not assign this License nor permit any transfer by operation of law or otherwise of
the interest m the herein-described Premises acquired through this License unless otherwise approved by
Licensor in writing.

6 Acceptance of Premises: Licensor offers and Licensee agrees to take the Premises in an "as 1s" condition and
Licensor makes no warranty or representation of any kind as to the condition, quahty orsU1tab1lity of the soil, subsoil

-1



or surfacing of the Premises and Lands or anything thereon or therein, unless the same 1s specifically set forth in
this License, for the purposes to which Licensee will utilize the Premises Licensee has examined the Premises
described hereinabove and knows the condition thereof and no representations as to the cond1t1on and repair
thereof and no agreements to make any alterations, repairs or improvements 1n or about the licensed Lands and
Trail have been made by Licensor. Licensee's taking possession of the Premises shall be conclusive evidence as
against Licensee that the Premises were in good order and satisfactory condition for use as a Trail and other
permitted ancillary uses Licensor shall not be hable for any damages anstng from acts or neglect of Licensee or its
1nv1tees or users of the Premises, whetherauthonzed to use the Lands and Premises or not.

7. Permitted and Prohibited Uses: The Premises shall be used for the purpose of constructing, installing, operating,
ma1nta1ning, using, repamng, and removing a gravel or asphalt recreation trail and permitted appurtenances
thereto for hkmng, biking, and cross-country sking and other similar non-motonzed recreational uses and for no
other reason whatsoever. No vehicles, trucks, cars orequipment are to be parked ormaterials stored on said Lands
or Premises at any time without specific written approval of Licensor. Furthermore, the Licensee agrees that no
motonzed vehicles, including but not limited to cars, trucks, snowmobiles, motor bikes, mini-bikes, motorcycles,
mopeds, go-carts and all-terrain vehicles will be used, operated or permitted on the Lands or Premises However,
Licensee shall be permitted to use motonzed vehicles for the patrol, maintenance and other permitted uses of the
Lands and Premises. The Licensee also agrees that no horses will be used or permitted on the Lands and
Premises Licensee agrees that no kites, model airplanes or similaror dissimilar objects that may come in contact
with or in close proximity to the facilities of Licensor or the American Transmission Company LLC (hereinafter
"ATC") and its successors and assigns, will be used, operated or permitted on the Lands and Premises

8 Signage: Licensee shall not place or maintain or allow to be placed or maintained by any person or persons, any
signs or advertising billboards upon the Lands or Premises at any time, except as required or permitted by this
Section Licensee shall install and maintain signs that are necessary to identify Licensee's Trail and occupancy of
the Lands and Premises at every road crossing and at least every 2,600 feet along the Trail or more frequently as
desired by Licensor. Such identification signs shall include the We Energies approved corporate logo and shall
state "In cooperation with We Energies" or such other signs as Licensor may reasonably require. Licensee further
agrees to post, maintain at all times, and 1f necessary, replace signs that expressly state the uses that are permitted
and prohibited under Section hereof In addition, Licensee hereby agrees to post safety and traffic signs along the
Trail and at road crossings, railroad crossings, drveways, farm crossings and any other vehicular crossings along
the Trail All signs must be approved by Licensor pnor to erection or installation on the Lands or Premises

9 Zoning and Permits: Licensee hereby agrees that Licensor has made no representations that the Premises are
properly zoned for the proposed use by Licensee, and it is expressly understood that Licensee hereby assumes
any and all obligations and responsibilities wth respect to compliance wth all applicable zoning laws and ordin
ances of any regulatory bodies which may have Jurisdiction Any change in zoning must be approved by Licensor
This License 1s conditioned on Licensee's obtaining all necessary permits and authority for the proposed use All
permits required hereunder shall be acquired by Licensee at its sole cost and expense. If permits are required, a
copy of the final permits must be provided to the Licensor pnor to the commencement of any work on the Lands or
Premises by Licensee and upon reasonable time for Licensor to review the permits

10 Governmental Jurisdiction: Licensee shall, in the use and occupancy of the Premises, comply with all laws,
ordinances, rules and regulations of the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, State of Wisconsin and all other
governmental bodes havng junsdcton, over the operation of Licensee's or Licensor's business or occupation of
the Lands and Premises

11 Construction and Other Liens: Licensee shall have no authority, express or implied, to create or place any hen or
encumbrance of any kind or nature whatsoever upon, or in any manner to bind, the interest of Licensor 1n the
Premises or Lands or to charge the Base Rent payable hereunder, 1f any, for any claim in favor of any person

-2



dealing wth Licensee, including those who may furnish matenals or perform labor for any construction or repairs
Licensee covenants and agrees that It will pay or cause to be paid all sums legally due and payable by It on
account of any labor performed, materials, services orsupplies furnished in connection with any work performed on
the Premises and Lands by or at Licensee's direction on which any hen Is or can be vahdly and legally asserted
against its interest in the Premises or the improvements thereon and that it will save and hold Licensor harmless
from any and all loss, liability, cost or expense, including costs of SUit and reasonable attorney's fees, based on or
arising out of asserted claims or hens against the Leasehold estate or against the nght, ttle and interest of the
Licensor in the Premises and Lands or under the terms of this License Licensee will not permit any construction
lien or any other hens which may be imposed by law affecting Licensor's or its mortgagees' interest in the Premises
and Lands to be placed upon the Premises or Lands ansrng out of any action orclaimed action by Licensee, and in
case of the filing of any such hen Licensee will prompUy pay same Licensee shall provide Licensor with Lien
Waivers from all contractors and subcontractors for all work performed and matenal and services supplied by or on
its behalf at the Premises or Lands If any such hen shall remain in force and effect for ten (10) days after written
notice thereof from Licensor to Licensee and Licensee has not posted with Licensor a bond in the amount of at
least 125% thereof, Licensor shall have the nght and pnvtlege of paying and dscharging the same or any portion
thereof without inquiry as to the validity thereof, and any amounts so paid, including expenses and interest, shall be
so much Additional Rent hereunder due from Licensee to Licensor and shall be paid to Licensor immediately on
presentation of a bill therefor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Licensee shall have the right to contest any such hen
in good faith and with all due d1hgence so long as any such contest, or action taken in connection therewith,
protects the interest of Licensor and Licensor's mortgagee In the Lands, and Licensorand any such mortgagee are,
by the expiration of said ten (10) day period, furnished such protection, and indemnification against any loss,
labltty, cost or expense related to any such lien and the contest thereof as are satisfactory to Licensor and any
such mortgagee If Licensee has posted a bond with Licensor in the amount of 125% of the hens, such hens can
and will be cleared within 180 days of fihng. However, Licensor reserves the right at any time prior to the expiration
of said 180 day penod to make a demand on said bond to clear tts title in the event such liens would prevent
Licensor's lawful use or transfer of its property in any way or to prevent any loss of Licensor's fee simple ownership
nghts. Licensor reserves the nght to make demand on any such bond immediately upon expiration of said 180 day
penod Licensor agrees to notify Licensee of its intent to secure the release of any such hens from the posted bond
No temporary or permanent construction may occur in weUands If any work is proposed w1th1n wetlands, the
Licensee must obtain the appropriate permits from the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources ("WDNR") and
the Army Corps of Engineers ("ACOE"). The Licensee must provide a copy of the application and final permits to
Licensor pnor to working within the wetland and provded Licensor has reasonable time to review sald permits.

12 Diggers Hotline: Licensee shall contact Diggers Hoffine at (800) 242-8511 to locate any underground fac1ht1es at
least five (5) days pnor to any work, excavation or construction on the Lands and Premises in order to determine
the location of electnc, telephone, water, communication and natural gas facilities within the Lands, Premises and
surrounding lands in the vIcm1ty of the contemplated work and the applicable clearance requirements for work
performed in the proximity of such faclrtes.

13 Plan Review and Approval: Licensee shall submit to Licensor and to ATC for ,ts review and written approval,
detailed site plans and construction drawings (hereinafter "Plans") showing the proposed location of the Trail with
respect to the Lands and Ut1hty Fac1ht1es, which Plans shall also include proposed grade changes, Trail cross
sections, signs and other improvements to the Premises which Licensee desires to construct or Install If Licensee
intends to use any fill on Licensor's Lands, Licensee shall include the type and source of any fill material on the
Plans and any fill matenal used shall be subject to inspection and analysis by Licensor for the presence of
Hazardous Matenal as defined n Section_hereinafter Licensee wll not install or construct or permit to be
installed or constructed, any improvements upon, or make any alterations or substantive changes to the
approved plans for the Premises without first submitting plans and specifications to Licensor and receiving
Licensor's approval thereof

-3



14 Height Restrictions: Licensee hereby agrees that no vehicles or equipment will be used, stored operated or
permitted on the Lands or Premises having a height In excess of 12 feet above original ground grade level,
unless otherwse approved in wntmng by Licensor and/orATC as their respective interests le.

15 Runoff Control: Licensee and its contractors shall follow those best management practices to prevent or control
site runoff and erosion in accordance with the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (hereinafter "WDNR")
publication "Wisconsin Construction Site Best Management Practice Handbook " It shall also be the responsibility of
the contractor to determine if and when a permit to discharge storm water associated with a construction activity as
per Wisconsin NR 216, or subsequent statute, law, ordinance, act, rule or regulation, 1s required. Following the
completion of Licensee's work, all adJoining areas shall be restored

16 Drainage and Grade Changes: Licensee shall be permitted, at its sole cost and expense, to grade, level, and
apply crushed stone and/or asphalt paving and plant grass on the Trail and Premises as may be permitted by
Licensor except that the Licensee shall not in any manner alter or change the original ground grade level of the
Premises, or alter in any manner the drainage on the Lands or Premises without obtammg wntten permission from
Licensor Licensor, at tts sole discretion, may require Licensee to nstall such drainage facilities as Licensor may
deem necessary to adequately dram the Lands and Premises, which fac1hties are made necessary due to or ansng
out of any filling, grading, leveling, pang or use by the Licensee hereunder All such drainage facilities (mncluding
culverts, storm sewers, ditches, etc) shall be installed by and at the expense of the Licensee and to the complete
satisfaction of Licensor. Any existing culverts that run beneath Licensor's lands must be maintained or enhanced,
they can not be removed, filled orotherwise blocked.

17 Maintenance and Landscaping: Licensee shall, at its sole cost and expense, keep the Licensed Lands and
Premises routinely mowed, free of weeds and to trim and/or cut down any trees and shrubs to the satisfaction of
the local Weed Comm1ss1oner and Licensor. Licensor reserves the right to trim and/or cut down any trees and
shrubs on the Lands and Premises Licensee further agrees that it shall mamtam the entire Premises as a Trail
as described hereinabove, and perform such other landscaping maintenance necessary to maintain an
appearance suitable to such use as a Trail for biking, h1kmg and cross-country skiing and other similar non
motorized recreational uses. Licensee shall not plant any trees or shrubs on the Lands or Premises without the
express written permission of the Licensor. Licensee agrees to keep the Lands and Premises clean and free
from all debris, rubbish, htter and trash Licensee shall be permitted or upon request of Licensor, to place trash
containers at convenient locations on the Premises Such containers shall be emptied on a regular basis, prior
to overflowing or creating a nuisance, by Licensee

18 Work Standards: During construction, use of and repairs or maintenance to the Lands or Premises pursuant to
thus License, while in proximity to electncal conductors or gas facilities presently exasting or to be installed at
some future date, Licensee hereby agrees to conform to all laws, rules, ordinances, acts and regulations such as
0 SH.A. Safety and Health Regulations for Construction dealing with safe work practices and the operation of
equipment near electncal Ines and equipment and the provisions and requirements of the Wisconsin
Administrative Code, Rules of the Department of Commerce and any amendments thereto. Licensee shall, at all
times, comply with the prov1s1ons of the Wisconsin State Electnc Code, compiled by the Department of Commerce
and the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin, and all amendments thereto. Any work done by Licensee on the
Lands or Premises shall be performed m such a manner as not to interfere with the use of Licensor's Lands for
electnc Imes, gas lines, communication Imes and related or unrelated fac1hbes, both overhead and underground,
which presently exast ormght be installed at a laterdate

19 Damage to Facilities: Licensee hereby agrees to effectively prevent damage to electrical facilities,
communication facilities or related fac1hbes due to or ansrng out of the construction, installation, operation,
maintenance, repairs, removals and use of the Lands and Premises by Licensee, its employees, agents,
contractors, customers or Invitees In the event the Lands, Premises or adjoining lands or existing electncal and

-4-



communication facilities or related or unrelated facilities thereon are damaged as a result of activities conducted
on or in any way connected wth Licensee's construction, installation, operation, maintenance, repars, removals
or use of the Lands or Premises by Licensee, its employees, agents, contractors, customers or invitees, repairs
shall be completed by or at the direction of Licensor and paid for by Licensee upon presentation of a bill therefor

20 Movement of Licensor Facilities: In the event it s necessary for Licensor, ATC or existing tenants, permittees
or licensees to reconstruct, protect, modify, adjust, replace or relocate ,ts facilities due to the aforementioned use
of Licensor's Lands and/or the construction, operation, maintenance or existence of Licensee's facilities,
Licensee agrees to promptly reimburse Licensor, ATC or such affected tenants, perm1ttees or licensees upon
presentation of a bill for the costs and expenses incurred by Licensor as a result thereof but Licensee shall be
given the option of movng or relocating its matenal and equipment to reduce or eliminate costs associated
herewith

21 Proximity to Gas Lines/Facilities: Dunng construction, Installation, operation, maintenance, repairs, removals
and use of the Lands and Premises pursuant to this License, while m proximity to gas Imes and gas facilities
presently existing or to be installed at some future date, Licensee hereby agrees to exercise due caution, comply
with all applicable safety laws and regulations and take or suffer no action which results m the gas Imes or gas
facilities being placed in violation of any applicable law or regulation. In the event the Lands, Premises, adjonng
lands or existing gas facilities or related facilities thereon are damaged as a result of activ1t1es conducted on or 1n
any way connected with Licensee's construction, installation, operation, maintenance, repairs, removals or use
of the Lands or Premises by Licensee, its employees, agents, contractors, customers or invitees, repairs shall be
completed by or at the direction of Licensor and paid for by Licensee upon presentation of a bill therefor.

22 Solid Waste: Licensee shall not cause or permit any solid wastes to accumulate or be stored m or about the
Lands or Premises. All solid wastes shall be properly stored, handled and routinely disposed of off the Lands
and Premises m a manner that complies with applicable federal, state and local laws, codes and/or regulations.
Licensee shall not store, handle or dispose of solid wastes m a manner that will pollute or contaminate the
atmosphere, ground or water or which may adversely affect the health, welfare or safety of persons whether
located on the Lands, Premises or elsewhere

23 Hazardous Materials: Licensee its agents, employees, contractors, and invitees shall not cause or permit any
Hazardous Material to be brought upon, kept, or used in or about the Lands or Premises or Licensor's adjoining
lands The use and/or storage of Hazardous Material by or for any assignee 1s prohibited Licensee shall not
discharge, leak, or emit, or permit to be discharged, leaked, or emitted, any material into the atmosphere,
ground, storm water or sanitary sewer system, or any body of water, if such material (as determined by the
Licensor or any governmental authority) does or may pollute or contaminate the same, or may adversely affect
(a) the health, welfare, or safety of persons, whether located on the Lands, Premises or elsewhere, or (b) the
cond1t1on, use, or enjoyment of any other real or personal property

As used herein, the term "Hazardous Material" means

a Any "hazardous waste" as defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, as
amended from time to time, and regulations promulgated thereunder;

b Any "hazardous substance" as defined by the Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation and Luabiltty Act of 1980, as amended from time to time, and regulations
promulgated thereunder;

c Any oil, petroleum products, and their byproducts, and

-5



d Any substance which 1s or becomes regulated by any federal, state, or local
authonty

governmental

Licensee agrees that 1t shall be fully liable for all costs and expenses related to the use, storage, and disposal of
Hazardous Material kept on the Premises or Lands by the Licensee and the Licensee shall give 1mmed1ate notice to
the Licensor of any violation or potential v1olat1on of the provisions of this Section- Licensee shall defend,
indemnify, and hold harmless Licensor and its agents from and against any claims, demands, penalties, fines,
labltes, settlements, damages, costs, or expenses (including, without limitation, attorneys' and consultant fees,
court costs, and litigation expenses) of whatever kind or nature, known or unknown, contingent or otherwise, arising
out of or in any way related to:

aa The presence, disposal, release, or threatened release of any such Hazardous Material which is
on, from, or affects soil, water, vegetation, buildings, personal property, persons, animals, or
otherwIse,

bb Any personal injury (including wrongful death) or property damage (real or personal) arising out of
or related to such Hazardous Material;

cc Any lawsuit brought or threatened, settlement reached, or government order relating to such
Hazardous Matenal; or

dd Any volation of any laws applicable thereto The provsions of ths Section shall be mn addition to
any other obligations and lablites Licensee may have to Licensor at law or equity and shall
survive the transactions contemplated herein and shall survive the termination of this License.

Provided Licensee 1s not in violation of any federal, state or local laws, rules, ordinances or orders existing at the
signing hereof or at some future date perta1rnng to vehicular discharge, leak, release or emission of any
antifreeze, ol, petroleum products and their byproducts from Licensee's vehicles or those of its employees,
contractors, visitors and invitees affecting the Premises and Lands and provided any such discharge, release or
em1ss1on is 1n the typically small amounts associated with parking lot and driveway usage, Licensee shall not be
considered to be in violation of this Section Any larger discharge, leak, release or emission of antifreeze, ol,
petroleum products and their byproducts resulting in pooling or runoff of the products must be quickly and
thoroughly cleaned up by Licensee and properly disposed of off Licensor's lands or Licensee will be considered
In violation of thus Section

Licensee shall not be considered In volaton of this Section due to the presence of fuel in the fuel tanks of its
vehicles or the vehicles of its employees, agents, contractors and invitees

Nothing contained herein shall be construed to preclude Licensee from using Hazardous Materials in the routine
maintenance of the Lands or Premises without the prior consent of Licensor so long as such materials are
readily available to the general public or are applied by a contractor licensed for such application and are used in
compliance with federal, state or local laws and regulations for its intended purpose and is applied in the manner
and quant1t1es recommended by the product manufacturer and the Wisconsin Department of Agriculture, Trade
and Consumer Protection.

24 Job Inspector Notification: Licensee agrees to contact Rolle Smatc 414-944-5955 or such other person or
phone number as Licensor may from time to time designate, within the specified time hm1ts to inform him about
the following occurrences.

a) At least seven (7) days prior to the commencement of the project herein permitted

-6



b) Within seven (7) calendar days after the termination of the License herein permitted with a plan for
restoration.

c) Within seven (7) calendar days after the restoraton has been completed

d) W1thm seven (7) calendar days after a lapse of six (6) months since Licensee accepted this License 1f
the project herein permitted has not been undertaken by such date, within seven (7) calendar days
after each six (6) month interval thereafter until the project herein permitted is undertaken

It is not Licensor's intent to serve as or m lieu of a building inspector, but to serve and protect Licensor's interest
In the Lands and Premises and other Improvements and its communication, electncal, gas and other facilities In
the event Licensor's 1nspector(s) reasonably determines that communication, electnc, gas or other fac1lit1es of
Licensor are in danger of bemg damaged or certain construction activity poses a threat to human life, Licensee
hereby agrees that Licensor's inspector(s) Is empowered to immediately shut down and stop all threatening
actIvIty and the work shall not restart until Licensor's inspector is satisfied that the dangerous situation has been
resolved to his or her satisfaction. The cost of Licensor's reasonable supervision shall be 1tem1zed and billed
separately to Licensee and Licensee agrees to promptly reimburse Licensor for its reasonable cost

25 Indemnification/Insurance: Licensee hereby agrees to indemnify, save and hold harmless Licensor, its
affiliated corporations and their respective directors, officers and employees against any and all loss, cost,
liability, damage and expense, including attorney's fees incurred by Licensor on account of any Injury to or death
of any person or persons whomsoever or on account of damage to property sustained by any person or persons
whomsoever caused by, connected with or arising directly or indirectly, wholly or m part, from any use, permitted
or not, or operation of the Lands and Premises resulting m any manner from the privileges herein given and
whether authorized for such use or not, or the failure of Licensee to observe the covenants of this License;
excepting, however, any claims or actions arising out of the sole negligence or willful acts of Licensor Licensee
agrees to deliver to the Licensor a certificate to the effect that 1t has m full force and effect a comprehensive general
liability insurance policy, which may be supplemented by an umbrella policy, issued by a reputable insurance
company and Bodily Injury Llab1lity coverage m the amount of $1,000,000 each person, $2,000,000 each accident,
and Property Damage L1abihty coverage m the amount of $250,000 each accident, and further providing that
Licensor will receive at least ten (10) days notice m writing of any cancellation thereof and naming Licensor as an
additional insured. Licensee agrees to continue such insurance in force during the entire term of this License, and
shall furnish like certificates for any renewal thereof

26 Safety and Protection: The Licensee hereby agrees, at its sole cost and expense, to erect and maIntaIn any
barncades, guard rails, fencmng, and/or safety devices for protection as they relate to the protection of the
Licensor's and ATC's electric faclttes, gas facilities and related construction and operational procedures The
Licensee agrees to maintain the same in good condition, repair and appearance at all times. Licensee will submit
to Licensor any and all plans and specifications for the installation of barncades, guard rails, fencing and/or
safety devices or protection which may be installed on the Lands and Premises and such installations shall not
be made without the consent and prior written approval of Licensor No fencing, barricades or other
improvements shall be installed or erected for any purpose which will obstruct, interfere with or impede the free
access of Licensor or ATC to the Lands, Premises or facilities

27 Galvanic/Stray Current/Grounding: Licensee agrees to release Licensor from any respons1b1hty for damage
or personal injury resulting from electromagnetic fields electrolysis due to local galvanic or stray current con
drtions on or along sad Lands Further, Licensee agrees to assume all costs for electrolyss protection. All
Improvements, including bnidges, shall be grounded unless otherwse approved in wntng by Licensor.

-7



28 Removal of Improvements: Licensee hereby agrees, upon the exp1rat1on or early termination of this License by
forfeiture, lapse of time or otherwse, If so requested in wting by Licensor, to remove promptly, at Its sole cost
and expense, all or part of its improvements including Trail surfaces and drainage structures from the Lands or
Premises In the event Licensee cannot or 1s unable or unwilling to remove said improvements and related
facilities as directed by Licensor, Licensee hereby authorizes Licensor to do so, and Licensee hereby agrees to
reimburse Licensor for any and all expenses incurred in connection therewith, including restoration as
hereinafter required, upon presentation of a bill therefor, and Licensee hereby agrees to indemnify and save
harmless Licensor from all liability of any kind whatsoever that Licensor may have incurred by such removal

29 Restoration: Licensee agrees to restore or cause to restore the Lands and Premises of Licensor to the
condition exsting pnor to any disturbance to such Lands and Premises Licensee further agrees that upon the
earlier termination or expiration of this License by either Party, the Lands, including the Premises shall be
restored to the condition existing prior to any disturbance or improvement from the aforementioned use of Lands
and Premises. Included, but not limited to, in such restoration, after construction and subsequent to termination
of this License, shall be the spreading of topsoil and sowing perennial type grass seed on any disturbed areas,
replacement of crushed stone and/or paved surfacing, replanting of shrubs and other ground cover and repair of
fences and gates or other damages incurred due to or arising out of the permission herein given.

30 Snow Plowing: Licensee shall be permitted to plow, but not pile, the snow on the Premises In the event it
desires to do so

31 Taxes: Dunng the License Term, Licensee shall be responsible for all taxes on the Licensed Space, such taxes
being defined as any and all federal, state and local governmental, quasi-governmental or public authority taxes,
assessments and charges of any kind or nature, whether general, special, ordinary or extraordinary (but not
including income or franchise taxes or any other taxes imposed upon or measured by Licensor's income or
profits, except as provided below), or payments to governmental authorities in lieu thereof, whether or not in
contemplation of the parties to this l..Jcense, which Licensor shall pay or become obligated to pay because of or
In connection with the ownership, renting, or operation of the Licensed Space (Including but not lmrted to
charges for the installation, maintenance, repair and replacement of sewer/water, curb, gutter and roadway)
and of the personal property, fixtures, machinery, equipment, systems and apparatus located thereon or used in
connection therewith. Taxes shall include, without limitation, all real and personal property taxes (attributable to
the year in which paid), sales taxes, assessments (special or otherwise), fire inspections, transit taxes and ad
valorem taxes but shall not include penalties or late fees thereon unless the penalty and/or late fees are directly
attributable to Licensee Taxes shall also include all fees, costs and expenses (including, legal fees and court
costs) pad by Licensor in connection wth protesting or contesting or seeking a refund or reduction of and/or
negotiating with public authorities with respect to any of the aforesaid taxes, regardless of whether Licensor 1s
ultimately successful If at any time during the term hereof, a tax or excise on rents or other tax however
described, other than an income tax, 1s levied or assessed by the United States or the State of Wisconsin, or any
pol1t1cal subdivision thereof, on account of the rents hereunder or the interest of Licensor under this License,
such tax shall constitute and be included 1n taxes Any taxes paid by Licensor hereunder shall be reimbursable
to Licensor by l..Jcensee as Additional Rent

32 Breach of License: In the event Licensee shall breach or violate any of the terms, conditions or provisions of
this License, or 1f any governmental agency having Jurisdiction shall serve any demand, order or notice, including
violations relating to zoning or municipal ordinances, upon Licensor or Licensee, the Licensee shall, at its sole
cost and expense, correct sad breach or violation and comply wth sad demand, order or notice wthin 30 days
of its receipt of such written notice or as stated within said demand, order or notice. In the further event that
Licensee does not correct sad breach or violation or comply with said demand, order or notice wthin the
required time period, It shall be lawful for Licensor, without liability to Licensee, without notice or demand, to
declare said License terminated and to re-enter the Premises either with or without process of law and to expel,

-8



remove and put out Licensee or any person or persons occupying the Premises, using such force as may be
necessary so to do and to repossess and enjoy the Lands and Premises again as before this grant of License
without prejudice to any remedies which might otherwise be used for the preceding breach of covenants,
Licensee hereby expressly waIvmg all right to any notice or demand under any statute relating to forcible entry
and detainer The decision of Licensorshall be final and binding upon Licensee concerning any breach or default
in the covenants and agreements contained m this License. Licensee shall be liable to Licensor for any and all
costs incurred, including reasonable attorneys' fees owng to or arising out of any action taken pursuant to this
provision mn which Licensor prevails

33 Licensor Right to Enter: The Licensor reserves unto itself and ATC and for their employees, agents and
contractors the right, at any time, to enter upon the Lands and Premises by any means necessary ) for
performing studies, gathenng of air, water, sol and other material samples, 11) for inspection of the Premises in
order venfy Licensee's compliance with the Lease terms, i) for access to Licensor's Lands including the Premises,
v) to inspect, patrol, construct, install, operate, maintain, replace and repair electric lines, gas lines, communication
equipment and related and unrelated facilities and equipment, both overhead and underground, upon, over, across,
m and beneath the Premises and the Lands without liability to Licensee, the same as though this License had not
been entered into Licensor or ATC through Licensor may, without hab11ity to Licensee, require Licensee to
immediately vacate all or part of the Premises upon notice to do so In the event Licensor deems 1t necessary to
make emergency repairs to its fac11it1es. In the event tt becomes necessary for LicensororATC to install or erect
additional electric lines, natural gas Imes, communication lines and/or related facilities at some future date,
Licensee hereby agrees to vacate as much of the Premises as Licensor and/or ATC deems necessary and for
such penods of times as may be necessary to install, modify, reconstruct or erect such facilities upon receipt of
notice from Licensor to do so Licensor and/or ATC shall perform and complete all work under this Section as
quickly as Is reasonable possible to minimize the inconvenience to Licensee

Licensee further agrees that It shall immediately vacate the Premises and close down the Trail upon not1ficat1on
by Licensor that weatherconditions exist or may develop which could cause dangerous conditions such as icing
on trees and wires

34 Paramount Rights: The rights of the Licensor and ATC to utilize the Lands and Premises In their utility business
will at all times be and remain paramount to the rights herein granted to Licensee and nothing stated herein Is to
be construed as restricting Licensor from granting rights to other Parties or persons mn, upon or under the Lands
and/or Premises for but not limited to driveways, streets, sidewalks, sewers, water pipes and mains, drainage
tiles and pipes, gas mans and pipelines, communication circuits and other allied uses. It is understood and
agreed that this License is subject to all existing easements, grants and licenses.

35 Fees and Charges: As a condition of the agreement, Licensee shall not charge at any time fee for the use of the
Trail except that Licensee may be permitted to charge a fee for group activities or spec1al events upon written
consent of Licensor, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld

36 Alcoholic Beverages Prohibited: Licensee covenants and agrees that alcoholic liquors or beverages are not
permitted on the Lands and Premises.

37 Police Protection: Licensee shall be permitted to provide or arrange for the provIsIon of all law enforcement and
shall be permitted to reasonably require such law enforcement personnel to patrol the Premises as 1t deems
reasonable under this License

38 Notices: All notices to Licensor shall be sent by a reputable overnight delivery service, registered or certified
mail, addressed to Wisconsin Electric Power Company, Property Management, Room A252, 231 West Michigan
Street, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53201, or at such other address or place as Licensor may from time to time

-9



designate in writing Personal delivery wth a signature acknowledgement of receipt by Licensor is always an
acceptable means of delivery

All notices to Licensee shall be sent by a reputable ovemnght delivery service, registered or certified mall
addressed to City of Franklin, Engineering Department Attn. City Engineer 9229 W Looms Road, Franklin,
Wisconsin 53132 or at such other place as Licensee may from time to time designate in wntIng. Personal
delivery with a signature acknowledgement of receipt by Licensee Is always an acceptable means of delivery

39 Waiver ofTerms and Conditions: Failure of Licensor or Licensee to enforce or insist upon compliance with any of
the terms or conditions of this License shall not constitute a general waiver or relinquishment of any such terms or
conditions, but the same shall be and remain at all times in full force and effect.

40 Costs and Attorney Fees: Licensee shall pay and discharge all reasonable costs, expenses and attorney fees
that may be Incurred or pad by Licensor mn enforcing the covenants and agreements of this License where
litigation Is not commenced. In the event ht1gat1on Is commenced by Licensor or Licensee to enforce any
provision of this License, the prevailing Party (as determined by a judgment in favor of one Party or the other)
shall be entitled to recover from the other, as additional costs, its reasonable attorney fees and costs incurred mn
connection wth such acton.

41 No Joint Venture: The agreements contained herein are not intended, nor shall the same be deemed or
construed, to create a partnership between Licensor and Licensee, to make them Joint ventures, nor to make
Licensor in any way responsible for the debts or losses of Licensee

42 Obligations Survive: All obligations of Licensee hereunder not fully performed as of the expiration or earlier
termination of the term of this License shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of the term hereof,
including without limitation, all payment obligatlons with respect to taxes and all obhgat1ons concerning the
condition of the Lands.

43 Binding Effect: The covenants and agreements herein contained shall inure to the benefit of and be b1nd1ng
upon the Parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns, except as otherwise provided in Section
hereof.

44 Captions: The captions in this License are inserted only as a matter of convenience and for reference and in no
way define, limit, construe or descnbe the scope or intent of such sections or paragraphs of this License nor in
any way affect this License

45 Severability of Provisions: If any term, covenant or condition of the License or the application thereof to any
person or Party or circumstance shall, to any extent, be 1nvahd or unenforceable at any time, the remainder of
the License, or the apphcatlon of such term, covenant or condition to persons, Parties, or circumstances other
than those as to which It Is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby and each term, covenant
or condition of thus License shall be valid and be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law

46 Interpretation: The laws of the State of Wisconsin shall govern the validity, performance and enforcement of
this License. Whenever the singular number Is used, the same shall include the plural, and the masculine gender
shall include the feminine and neuter genders

47 Acceptance: Licensee hereby accepts this License upon the terms, cond1t1ons, restrictions hereinbefore set
forth, and do covenant to keep and perform each and every one of said terms cond1t1ons and restrictions

- 10



The covenants herein contained shall bind the Parties mutually and their respectve successors and assigns

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said WISCONSIN ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY has caused these presents to be
signed by Tonya M Peters, its Manager of Property Management on thedayof
___, 2022, and the said. _, has caused these presents to be signed by
its and its and its
corporate seal to be hereunto affixed this__day of 2022

In Presence Of· WISCONSIN ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY
(Licensor)

By _
Tonya M. Peters, Manager of Property Management

CITY OF FRANKLIN
(Licensee)

By· _
Stephen R Olson, Mayor

By _
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

By· _
Bryan Tomczak, Director of Finance and Treasurer

Approved as to form by Date .. _
Jesse A Wesolowski, Ctty Attorney

R \Datalas\Real Estate\Recreation Trails\Recreation Trails\MASTERREC TRAIL LICENSE TEMPLATES\MASTER RECTRAIL LICENSE TEMPLATE 2022 doc
Franklin S 116th St southwest toWaukesha Co Line Final version
Thus document was drafted by Jule Simmons on behalf of We Energies, P O Box 2046, Milwaukee, Wisconsin
53201

-11



EXHIBIT "A"
UJ

1111111
- gs {¢ 3' ):( -e '&.

111 I 111

~
l:'11' 1 •I_J r.\oIi li :i ~n~~l::I

'_j I I • u '-j

\

I • I,
I .r' ~ ,,,. D
& c::,.
I I I

w,
z
C>·liJ'm

"'f" N
N
(Y)

1
.LS \ I-I.ill s

~
-□

I

di::
Cl

\

~
( I.LS ._,--- .LSIS □ 5 ~

•!i ~3, 0oy ,- u= ,-_p'---. I ~
""') l!i

V)• " -r <¢ l. L 9 Ii- <3 Ie !

~~ 3 •~
s / g oo ?H.L9L :;g
,/ e we9o ~~i :3 H\ uI, ~m ff~~ ii i2 3%~~-~ ~!;j:

0 2§ ~~
0 •0 ?::::

D ~<
0

•
,, ~
>... g

-.: ' ~;,s %
lj
8

I a
3 <

z

~

z ..

:::! ix:

z I- %z t- ffi::J w >-:.; I- w H- z>0 ::,z [>: W::i: 0 15
<( a.. LI · im:! 00::: Cl 0::: 3: ZNw g
LL. w t- 0 w"' &lR0 en ..... 5<LL. a.. <C • o

0 w z0 [>: rz ::,a..
~

.,
>- u. t- ....I0
I- z (.0 >- ::".!:c3 3 ~ I-

a.. • z.::,
·Oen o

E $ •II
i. ,ahq
§ ~ I li ; ~- !
H ll. u C. ..

! GS I£ s j

II.
Ill

I (s\§3a:
C,

PROJECTID: 2020•0291
WlTH NIA Exhibit A page 1 ~°f1v· MILWAUKEE



EXHIBIT "A"

N

t

Cl
$
:5
<(
a::,-

!iia::,-..,- m
V1 +
E u
t- 00
0 «4
rl t
rl V1

□

I

w

I

i=-z::,
8

rl

gJ
0

$g

0z
t:;s4
8= t

Exhibit A page 2 of 2



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL.::t»-

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION

STATUS UPDATE FORTHE
S. 116T STREET TRAIL IN THE WISDOT 2022-2026

TRANSPORTATIONALTERNATIVES PROGRAM (TAP)

MTG.DATE
February 1, 2022
ITEM NO.

G.11.
BACKGROUND
The Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) is a legislative program that was authorized in Fixing
America's Surface Transportation Act (or "FAST Act"), the federal transportation act that was signed into
law on December 4, 2015. With certain exceptions, projects that met eligibility criteria for the Safe
Routes to School Program, Transportation Enhancements, and/or the Bicycle & Pedestrian Facilities
Program are eligible TAP projects.

All TAP projects require sponsors to pay at least 20% of approved projects costs- i.e. 80% of the project
would be covered by the grant. TAP projects must commence within four years of the award date.

A TAP application was submitted in 2020 and Franklin was unsuccessful in obtaining the grant. Pursuant
to direction to Staff on June 15, 2021, Franklin/GRAEF proceeded with design of the trail, removed a
portion around the St. Martin ofTours from the TAP project, added a trail head with Ryan Road crossing,
and lowered the construction request from 80% to 70% match.

ANALYSIS
The 116" Street Trail is an eligible TAP project. This trail would extend from W. Loomis Road /
Waukesha County line vicinity along the WE Energies easement (Inner Urban Rail corridor) northeast to
S. 116 Street and up the west side of S. 116" Street in the WE Energies property to the St. Martins area
in the vicinity of W. Mayers Drive. The total length is about 11,200 feet.

The deadline for the TAP application was January 28, 2022. The submitted grant application is enclosed.

Staff will return with an update on the project when awards are given.

FISCAL NOTE
The request will is for design/permitting ($240,000) and construction ($1,758,000) of the total project.
The City's share would be $767,000 and includes design funds spent to date.

OPTIONS
Not applicable.

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED
To receive information and place on file.

Engineering: GEM



WisDOT 2022-2026
Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) Application
http://wisconsindot.gov/Pages/doing-bus/local-gov/astnce-pgms/aid/tap.aspx

Review and utilize TAP guidelines and application Instructions when completing this document.

As discussed mn the WsDOT TAP Guidelines, this application will go through a two-step process. The first step will
be an assessment by the region as to elig1b1lity and whether or not the project will be able to meet the rigorous,
statutorily mandated commencement deadline. The second step will be an assessment of the relative merits of the
application compared to other eligible applications. Applicants will be notified if their application is found
ineligible.

Application Type

Select one and only one box for the application type. Please note that projects which are within the boundaries
of a TMA will need to either compete locally within the MPO or as part of the Statewide solicitation. Refer to
this map (http://wisconsindot.gov/Documents/doing-bus/local-gov/plning-orgs/map.df) for more
information about the TMA areas.

[] Appleton Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO)-
[] Gree Bay MPO
[] Madison Area MPO
[] southeastern Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission (Milwaukee OR Round Lake Beach)

If none of the above, project application is from:
D Area with population between 5,000 and 200,000
D Area with population of 5,000 or less
[] Region-wde: % of population within a TMA area

% of population between 5000 and 200,000

Project Applicant
Name, Location of Public Sponsor and Sponsor Type:

Sponsor Name: City of Franklin
Sponsor Type (Check appropriate box):
Local government (check one): [] county cy [] vtage []row
D Regional transportation authonty D Transit agency
[] sate or federal natural resource/public land agency
D School district or school(s)
[] Non-Profit entities responsible for administration of local transportation safety programs
[] Tribal Nation

Project Title. S. 116" Street Trail
Describe location, boundaries and length of the project: S. 116 Street corridor from Mayers Drive to
Milwaukee/Waukesha County Line. Total length= 11,200 feet
County: Milwaukee
Street Address of Project (1f located on a highway or road): 8139 S. 116 Street to 12301 W. Ryan Road

Note: For infrastructure projects, attach an electronic project location map in PDF Format, size 8½ by 11.

I Inlato! ontomhor 9091 A-1



Project Contact
Primary Public Sponsor Agency Contact Information:

Name Glen E. Morrow Title: City Engineer Street Address: 9229 W. Loomis Road Phone (414)425
7510

Municipality: Franklin State: WI Zip: 53132

Secondary E-mail: gmorrow@franklinwi.gov
Secondary Public Sponsor Agency or Private Organization Contact Information {if applicable):

Phone. ( )Street Address:
State. WI Zip.

Organization / Agency Name:
Name. Title:
Municipality.
E-mail.

Head of the Local Public Sponsor Agency or Private Organization Contact Information:

Organization/ Agency Name: City of Franklin
Name: Stephen R. Olson Title: Mayor Street Address: 9229 W. Loomis Road Phone : (414) 425-7500
Municipality: Franklin State. WI Zip. 53132
E-mail. solson@franklinwi.gov

MPO, if applicable
Select one, if applicable,
0 Bay Lake RPC (Sheboygan),
[] srown County Planning Commission (Green Bay)
[] Chippewa-Eau Claire MPO (WCWRPC - Eau Claire)
0 Duluth/Superior Metropolitan Interstate Committee (Superior)
D East Central Wisconsin RPC (Appleton, Oshkosh)
0 Fond du Lac MPO (Fond du Lac)
[]Janesville MPO (Janesville)
0 La Crosse Area Planning Committee (La Crosse)
D Madison Area MPO (Madison)
[] Marathon County MPO (Wausau)
[] southeastern Wisconsin RPC (SEWRPC - Waukesha)
[] statelmne Area Transportation Study (Beloit)

Refer to this map (http://wisconsindot.gov/Documents/doing-bus/local-gov/plning-orgs/map.df) for more
information about the TMA areas

MPO Project Prioritization
If an MPO Is submitting more than one proJect in an urbanized area within an MPO, the sponsor must rank each
project in priority order, eg.,1 (highest priority) to 5 (lowest), for the local priority among five proJects Local ranking
will be used as a guide in project selection Project Priority:

Please Note: MPO Project Prioritization is due by January 28, 2022.

I Inlatd ontomhor 9071 A-2



Project Activity
TAP Eligibility Category:
Indicate which ONE of below categories best identifies the proposed project:

[_] Bicycle-Pedestrian Facilities: construction, planning, and design of on-road and off-road trail facilities for
pedestrians, bicyclists and other non-motorized forms of transportation (this category includes on-road
bicycle lanes, sidewalks, etc.)

D Safe routes for non-drivers, including children, older adults, and individuals with disabilities
~ Conversion and use of abandoned railroad corridors for trails for pedestrians, bicyclists, or other non-

motorized transportation users
D Construction of turnouts, overlooks, and viewing areas
D Historic preservation and rehabilitation of historic transportation facilities
D Safe Routes to School (SRTS) (this category includes infrastructure and non-infrastructure activities)

NOTE: Applicants proposing a project within the SRTS eligibility category MUST complete the
'School Demographics' and 'Safe Routes to School Plan' sections on page A-5 below.

Project Summary (400 words or less). Please copy and paste your response from a Word Document.
Applicants must fill out the project summary field below. This summary is also the first question in the narrative
section.

This trail will primarily be located on the now defunct Milwaukee Electric Railway and Light Company, also
referred to as the Milwaukee Interurban Lines. There was a rail segment between Hales Corners and
Waukesha that passed through St Martins Junction. The trail will be in a rough graded, 100-ft +/- wide
property that is now owned by Wisconsin Electric Power Co. (WE Energies). The City has an agreement to
locate an asphalt hiking and biking trail on the WE Energies property north of St. Martins and they are
agreeable to working out a similar arrangement for this proposed section along the west side of S. 116th
Street. This trail will connect to a self funded trail to the north which will be constructed in 2022. A new
trailhead wll also be constructed adjacent to the trail at Ryan Road

Although the path will require minimal grading for placement of aggregate and asphalt, the current WE
Energies property has multiple culverts that must be inspected and perhaps replaced. Side slopes will need
to be flattened where needed to make them compliant with bicycle facility requirements.

The existing segment is heavily used by commuters from Muskego to Milwaukee. SEWRPC has count
volumes as high as 1,694 for a July 2-15, 2018 time frame. It is anticipated that this trail will also be heavily
used by commuters. Thus project appears on SEWRPC's VIS1on 2050 Plan and is a missing segment
connecting Franklin to Burlington.

I Jnrlatolontomhar 79)1 A-3



Project Benefit

Check all applicable project benefits, then describe in application narrative:
[] ENVIRONMENTAL

~ Increases likelihood of modal shift to biking, walking or transit from utilitarian car travel.
~ Increases access and connection to the natural environment.

[] PUBLIC HEALTH - Project would have a demonstrable impact upon public health of applicant
community.

[] ECONOMIC JUSTICE - Project would go beyond community enhancement to address a specific
"communities of concern," including elderly, disabled, minority, and low-income population? The
proJect within close proximity of public parks, schools, libraries, public transit, employment and/or
retail centers, and residential areas. The project improves low income access to transit, Jobs, education,
and essential services.

~ SAFETY - Project addresses a specific safety concern. The project contains or addresses:
D Collision data

□
~□
~
~
~

□[] Provides crosswalk enhancement (striping, refuge island, signal, etc.)
For SRTS Projects there is:

[] Documented bike/pedestrian crash involving school age children or crossing guard at
arrival/dismissal times near the school.

[] crossings of state highways, main arterial roads or other high speed or high traffic volume
roads.

~ Lack of bicycle and pedestrian facilities or lack of connectivity of facilities that do exist.
D High level of parental concern documented in survey data.
D Few or no children who live within 1 mile walk or bike. Busing may be offered to everyone

because of documented hazards.
[] children are walking but application shows that unsafe conditions exist.

[] HISTORICAL AND/OR PRESERVATION SIGNIFICANCE - Project would have strong historical or

□
Local Resolution of Support
There Is or there will be a local resolution of support for the proposed project, executed by a governing body that
has the authority to make financial commitment on behalf of the proJect sponsor (1.e., County Board, City Council,
or Regional Planning Commission Policy Board).

preservation benefit.
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT - Project facilitates economic development by increasing bicycle/
pedestrian traffic mn commercial corridors or by creating a destination that will help retail.

Lack of adequate safe crossing or access
Lack of separated facility
High speed/volume
Provides sidewalk or pathway, wth curb-cuts
Provides bike lanes, markings, and s1gnage
Implements traffic calming measures
Signage and/or markings directed to safety concern

X] Yves 0 No
Please note that a resolutionwill be required for an application to be eligible, which means a copy of the resolution
should be submitted to the Region Local Program Manager no later than 5:00 PM April 18, 2022.

l Inlatod ontomhr 9n91 A-4



Existing Facilities & Projects that Impact the Proposed Project
Rail Facilities.

Does a railroad facility exist within 1,000 feet of the project limits? D Yes 63 No
If yes, specify: Choose an Item

If yes, does the project physically cross a rail facility? D Yes □ No
Owner of Rall Facility:

Will an easement from OCR be required? D Yes ~ No

Is the proposed proJect location man area with known safety issues? D Yes ~ No
If yes, specify. and (consider applying for Highway Safety Improvement Program {HSIP) funds if applicable)

Is this project on or parallel to a local road or street? []Yes []No
If Yes, provide the name of the road or street: S. 116 Street

Does this project cross a state or federal highway? D Yes IZ] No
Does this project run parallel to a state or federal highway? D Yes IZ] No
If Yes to any of these questions attach an existing typical cross-sectwn of the roadway, showmg nght of way,
travel lanes, shoulder and sidewalk (ifappltcable). Examples are available m FDM15-1-5 attachment 5.3 of the
WIsDOTfacilities Development Manual

Will this project be constructed as part of another planned road project? D Yes IZ] No
If Yes, specify if this 1s a state, county, or focal project and when the road project is scheduledfor construction:
Will any exceptions to standards be requested? D Yes IZ] No
If Yes, provide a brief description of the exceptions that may be requested:

Real Estate (RE) /Right of Way (ROW)
Was any real estate acquired or transferred in anticipation of thus project?
If yes, please explain.

D Yes IZ] No

List any other funding (past or present) used w1thm the proposed project limits (1.e. DNR Stewardship)

Is the project on an existing right of way (ROW)?
(NOTE: It is recommended that local funds be used to acquire right of way)
If Yes, have you obtained a permit from the W1sDOT Regional Office Maintenance Section to conduct work on
the right of way? D Yes IZ] No

Check all boxes that apply to ROW acquisition for this project:
[] None [] Less thanacre [] More thanacre
[] Parklands [] Large parcels [] Temporary interests

List any other funding (past or present) used within the proposed project limits (1.e. DNR Stewardship)

N/A

If right of way was acquired in anticipation of this project, attach a detailed hst of available, completed project
and parcel acqu1s1t1on documentation. Refer to Section 11 2, Records Management, found mn the Local Program
Real Estate Manual (LP RE Manual).
http //wiscons1ndot.gov/dtsdManuals/re/lpa-manual/lpa-manual-chll.pdf.

D Yes IZ] No

I Inlato} ontomhor 9191 A-5



PLEASE NOTE: Except for existing or new sidewalks, and existing bicycles or pedestrian pathways, State law
prohtbrts the use of condemnation to establish or extend a recreational trail, a bicycle way, a bicycle lane, or
pedestrian way. Refer to Section 6.3.5, Condemnation L1m1tations, found in the LP RE Manual:
https://wisconsindot.gov/dtsdManuals/re/lpa-manual/lpa-manual.pdf
lf right of way was acquired in anticipation of thus project, did the acquisition contain any buildings or relocation?
D Yes ~ No

If yes, Please read Section 6 2, Relocation Assistance, found in the LP RE Manual to determine 1f relocation
assistance was properly offered and documented: http://wisconsindot.gov/dtsdManuals/re/lpa-manual/lpa
manual-ch6.pdf

Does the project include the need for new ROW for a sidewalk, recreational trail, or bike/pedestrian way?
~ Yes D No

If right of way Is required, acqu1s1t1on will occur through a transfer of an adequate interest in real property.
[SJ Yves [] No

For real estate questions, please contact Abigail Ringel, WisDOT Local Public Agency Real Estate Statewide
Facilitator, at (414) 220-5461 or Abigail.Ringel@dot.wi.gov

Environmental/Cultural Issues
Agriculture D Yes □ No [SJ Not Investigated
Comments:
Archaeological sites D Yes □ No 63 Not Investigated
Comments
Historical sites D Yes □ No [SJ Not Investigated
Comments
Designated Main Street area D Yes □ No 4 Not Investigated
Comments.
Lakes, waterways, floodplains ] ves □ No □ Not Investigated
Comments
Wetland ] ves □ No □ Not Investigated
Comments· Wetland impacts being coordinated with DNR
Storm water management D Yes □ No ~ Not Investigated
Comments·
Hazardous materials srtes D Yes □ No 3 Not Investigated
Comments
Hazardous materials on existing structure D Yes □ No 3 Not Investigated
Comments.
Upland habitat D Yes □ No ~ Not Investigated
Comments
Endangered/threatened/migratory species D Yes □ No ~ Not Investigated
Comments.
Sect1on 4(f) D Yes □ No 4 Not Investigated
Comments
Sect1on 6(f) D Yes □ No 3 Not Investigated
Comments
Through/adjacent to tribal land D Yes 0 No 6a Not Investigated
Comments

l Inlato ontomhor 7091 A-6



Miscellaneous Issues

Construction Schedule Restrictions (trout, migratory bird, local events): None

Local Force Account (LFA):Will the proposed project utilize municipal employees to complete any portion of the
construction activities? [] Yves [] No
If yes, explain the desired LFA portion of the project

NOTE: LFA work must include labor, equipment and materials. The purchase of materials only 1s not
considered to be a legitimate project.
NOTE: Please review W1sDOT TAP Guidelines for restrictions on certain LFA work as of July 1, 2015

Maintenance (only complete thus section tf project application involves a trail project).
will the facility be snowplowed in the winter? [] Yes []No
Comment:
If no to the above question, will the trail allow snowmobile use in the winter? D Yes D No
Comment.
Anticipated fee for trail use: [] Yves [] No
Comment·
Anticipated equestrian use on trail. D Yes [8J No
Comment·

Other Concept Notes: Provide any add1t1onal relevant project information that has not been covered 1n another
section of the application.

School Demographics (Complete ONLY if submitting a project within the SRTS Programming/ Planning eligibility category)

What are the name(s) and demographics for each school affected by the proposed program or project?

Optional: Alternatively, SRTS project applicants may submit a narrative response detailing school

demographics provided that all fields below are answered in such attachment.

School name: Country Dale School School population: 480 Grades of students at school: Pre K - 6

Estimated number of students currently walking to school (if known): 5

Estimated number of students currently biking to school (1f known). Not Known

Does the school have any policies related to walking or biking? No

Distance eilg1bi11ty for riding a bus: N/AAll students are provided with bus transportation Number of children

not eligible for busing: N/AAll students are provided with bus transportation

Number of students eligible for busing because of a hazard situation: N/AAll students are provided with bus

transportation

Percentage of students living within one mile of the school. 68%

Percentage of students living within two miles of the school: 85%

Percentage of students eligible for free or reduced-cost school meals: 15.6%

Commurnty(s) served by school: Franklin Commurnty(s) population 36,000

Safe Routes to School Infrastructure (Complete ONLY if submitting a project within the SRTS eligibility
category}

Does your school or community have a Safe Routes to School plan? D Yes [8J No

If yes, can it be viewed onhne? D Yes, the website address Is []No, it is attached with the application.

l Inlatl ontomhor 7(91 A-7



If no; in no more than 400 words, attach a Word document describing any SRTS-related planning efforts

undertaken by the school or community.

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

Project Costs, Priorities, and State Fiscal Years:

NOTE: Do not include pages A-7 and A-8 in the Concept Definition Report (CDR} for approved TAP projects.

Complete the table below for the appropriate fiscal years of the apphcat1on/project cycle (2022-2026). If a
sponsor proposes to construct a project in phases throughout multiple years, schedule the project costs as
appropriate and provide further detatls mn the project description.

In addition to the table below, attach a detailed breakdown of project costs in Microsoft Excel. This detailed
breakdown must clarify assumptions made in creating the budget such that a third-party reviewer would be able
to substantiate the assumptions.

Submit a separate application and budget for each project or stand-alone project segment for which you are
willing to accept funding, or for a bike trail section that could function as a separate facility. Project requests are
not considered for partal funding.

Applicants may work with the Local Program Manager within their region for assistance to more accurately
estimate costs. All estimates will be reviewed by WisDOT Region staff for consistency with current practices and
approaches Also, WIsDOT Region staff may revise estimates mn these categories due to the complexrty of the
proJect or other factors. WisDOT will notify the sponsor of any changes to estimates within the application and
determine whether the sponsor wishes to continue with the application with the revised estimate

NOTE: Requesting design and construction projects in the same fiscal year is not allowed.

Project Prioritization
If a sponsor is submitting more than one project the sponsor must rank each project in priority order, e.g., 1 (highest
priority) to 5 (lowest), for the local priority among five projects Local ranking will be used as a guide in project
selection. Project Priority: N/A

] Design:
] 100% Locally Funded (state review is required to be included as 100% locally funded) OR
[] 80% Federally Funded ("state revew only" projects are not allowed)

[] FY2023 []204 []F 2025

NOTE: Requesting design and construction projects in the same fiscal year is not allowed.

Total Funding Federal Funding Local Funding

A. Design Plan Development $ $ $100,000

B. State Review for Design $ $ $20,000

(provided by Wis DOT Region)

Total Design Cost Estimate with State Review $ $ $120,000

(sum lines A and B)

l Inlatol ontomhr 9071 A 8



[] construction:
Basis for Construction Estimate: D Itemized D Per Square Foot D Past Projects
D Other, please specify:

Schedule Preference: [] FY2024 []FY2025 []FY 2026

Total Funding Federal Funding Local Funding

Total Participating Construction Cost $1,758,000 $1,231,000 $527,000

Total Non-Participating Construction Cost $0 $0 $0

A. Subtotal Construction Costs $ $ $

B. Construction Engineering Costs $ $ $

(Coordinate wIth WisDOT Region)

C. State Review for Construction $ $ $

(Provided by WisDOT Region)

Total Construction Cost Estimate with $ $ $

Construction Engineering and State Review

(sum Imes A, Band C)

□ Real Estate: (Recommend funding with local funds )

0 FY 2023 0 FY2024 [] FY 2025

Total Real Estate Cost (round to next $1,000) $

□ Utility: (Compensable utility costs must be $50,000 mnmmum per utility.
Recommend funding with local funds.

0 FY 2023 L] FY2024 0 FY 2025 L] FY 2026

Total Utility Cost (round to next $1,000) $

[]other: (Planning or SRTS Non-Infrastructure Programming).

0 FY 2023 [] FY2024 L] FY 202s 0 FY 2026

Total Other Cost (round to next $1,000) $

NOTE: WisDOT Policy link: http://wisconsindot.gov/rdwy/fdm/fd-18-01.pdf

NOTE: WisDOT Region staff may revise estimates in the Plan Development, State Review for Design, and State
Review for Construction categories based on the complexity of the project or other factors.

Narrative Response
Provde a narrative response attachment answering questions 1 through 6, making sure to provide
Information mn response to each sub-question. Please limit the response to three (3) double-spaced pages,
using a minimum 11-point font size and a 1-inch margin

1. PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND OVERVIEW.

I Inrlatd ontomhor 791 A-9



This is the summary from page A-3 of the application. It is a general overview of the project, including type of
facility or project, location (please attach a location map or maps) and any other information about the project.
It is brief. Limited to about 400 words.

2. PROJECT PLANNING & PREPARATION & LOCAL SUPPORT
Describe the degree to which this project was planned for and the local support and commitment for the
project. If this project is part of a plan, describe that plan and the project's priority in that plan. If this is a
planning project describe how this project will be integrated into other efforts. For SRTS projects, describe
walk/ bike audits, parent surveys and data on crashes that support the selection of this project. Provide data
that supports the selection of your project.

3. PROJECT UTILITY & CONNECTIVITY

For Infrastructure Projects
Describe the degree to which this project serves utilitarian rather than recreational purposes and how, if at all,
the project adds connectivity to the state's multi-modal transportation network, including bicycle, pedestrian
and transrt facilities. Make specific reference to distance between modal connections and destinations.
Describe how, if at all, the proposed project would connect to these existing land uses: park, school, library,
public transit, employment and/or retail centers, residential areas, other. Describe how this proJect fills a
multmmodal gap or serves as a backbone to a local multmmodal network.

For Planning Projects
Implementation of plan would serve a broad geographic area and adds connectivity to the state's mult1modal
transportation network. Descnbe how this project fills a multimodal gap or serves as a backbone to a local
multimodal network.

For Safe Routes to School Programming Projects
Will the project get a higher percentage of children walking and biking to school - addresses clear safety
problems for children already walking/biking. Address the following desired outcomes: reduction in parent
concerns that keep them from allowing children to walk/bike, potential for changes in hazard busing, change
in policy limiting walking/biking to school; increased school commitment to promoting walking/biking;
improved driver behaviors mn the school zone; making it more appealing for children to walk/bike; more law
enforcement participation in walking/biking issues

4. PROJECT BENEFIT- ENVIRONMENTAL, LIVABLITY, ECONOMIC JUSTICE, PUBLIC HEALTH, HISTORICAL
PRESERVATION, & SAFETY

Describe the benefits likely derived from the proposed project, this description should correspond to the
project benefrt section on page A-3.

NOTE: A TAP projects should contnbute to a community benefit. Projects that contributes to more than
one benefit or have significant impact on a particular benefit wll receive more points.

5. HISTORY OF SPONSOR SUCCESS, DELIVERABILITY AND COMMITMENT TO MULTIMODAL

How will the project be implemented on time? What obstacles or problems must be overcome to implement
this project, and in light of project obstacles, describe how the project sponsor will comply with state law and
policy requmng project commencement within four years of the award date, and project completion within
approximately stx years? Please describe prior experience with other multmodal projects and success in
delivering those projects in the year in which they were scheduled. For example, were you able to deliver the
project in the year rt was programmed? Have you ever had to turn back awarded federal funds? Please explain.
If problems were experienced in the past, what will be done on this project to ensure successful completion?
Describe the project sponsor's commitment to multmmodal programs and facilities generally like a complete

lJnlatol ontomhor 9071 A-10



streets ordinance, advisory committees, or inclusion of multimodal accommodations in any other local
program projects.

Key Program Requirements Confirmation

Please confirm your understanding of the following project condition by typing your name, title and initials at the
bottom of this section. A Head ofGovernment/Designeewith fiscal authorityfor the project sponsor must initial
this section and sign this application. Sponsor consultant(s) should not initial or sign project applications.

WisDOTwill deem ineligible any application that does not provide confirmation to this section.

a Private organizations proposing projects must have a public project sponsor such as a local government unit.

b. The project sponsor or private partner must provide matching dollar funding of at least 20% of project costs.

c. This Is a reimbursement program. The project sponsor must finance the project until federal reimbursement
funds are available.

d. The project sponsor will pay to the state all costs incurred by the state in connection with the improvement that
exceed federal financing commitments or other costs that ineligible for federal reimbursement. In order to
guarantee the project sponsor's foregoing agreements to pay the state, the project sponsor, through its duly
executed officers or officials, agrees and authorized the state to set off and withhold the required
reimbursement amount as determined by the state from any monies otherwise due and payable by the state
to the municipality.

e. The project sponsor must not incur costs for any phase of the project until that phase has been authorized for
federal charges and the W1sDOT Region has notified the sponsor that it can begin incurring costs. Otherwise,
the sponsor risks incurring costs that will not be eligible for federal funding.

f. The project sponsor will follow the applicable federal and state regulations required for each phase of the
project. Some of these are described in the Guidelines. The requirements include, but are not limited to, the
following: a Qualifications Based Selection (0BS) process for desgn and engineering services (Brooks Act); real
estate acquis1t1on requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act
of 1970 and amendments; competitive procurement of construction services; Davis-Bacon wage rates on
federal hghway right-of-way projects; WsDOT FDM & Bicycle Facilities Handbook; ADA regarding accessibility
for the disabled; MUTCD regarding signage, U.S. Department of the Interior standards for historic buildings. Each
WISDOT Region can provide copies of the current Sponsor's Guide to Non-Traditional Transportation Project
lmplementatJOn, and references for sections of the Facilities Development Manual (FDM) and other documents
necessary to comply with federal and state regulations. Applicants who plan to implement their projects as
Local Let Contracts using the Sponsor's Guide must become certified that they are capable of undertaking
these projects.

g. lf applying for a bicycle facility, rt is understood that All Terrain Vehicles (ATVs) are not allowed. Snowmobile
use Is only allowable by local ordinance. Trail fees may only be charged on a facility if the fees are used solely to
maintamn the trail WisDOT reserves the right to require that facilities be snowplowed as part of a maintenance
agreement where year-round use by bicyclists and pedestrians Is expected.

h The project sponsor agrees to maintain the project for its useful life. Failure to maintain the facility, or sale of
the assets improved with FHWA funds prior to the end of its useful hfe, will subject the sponsor to partial
repayment of federal funds or additional stipulations protecting the public interest m the project for its useful
life.

If the project sponsor should withdraw the project, it will reimburse the state for any costs incurred by the state
on behalf of the project

l Inlatord ontomhor 971 A-11



j. The project sponsor agrees to state delivery and oversight costs by WisDOT staff and their agents. These costs
include review of Design and Construction documents for compliance with federal and state requirements,
appropriate design standards, and other related review. These costs will vary with the size and complexity of
the project. The sponsor agrees to add these costs to the project under the same match requirements 80% /
20% match requirements.

k. Projects that are fully or partially federally funded must be designed in accordance with all applicable federal
design standards, even 1f design of the proJect was 100% locally funded.

As the project progresses, the state will bill the project sponsor for work completed that is ineligible for federal
reimbursement. Upon project completion, a final audit will determine the final division of costs as between the
state and the project sponsor. If reviews or audits reveal any project costs that are ineligible for federal funding,
the project sponsor will be responsible for any withdrawn costs associated with the mehgible work.

m. For 100% locally-funded design projects, cots for design plan development and state review for design are
100% the respons1b11ity of the local project sponsor. Project sponsors may not seek federal funding only for
state review of design projects.

n The project sponsor acknowledges that the requisite project commencement requirement and that failure to
comply with the applicable commencement deadhne will jeopardize federal funding. Commencement is within
four years of the date of the project award. The project must be commenced within four (4) years of the project
award date according to Sec. 85.021, Wis. Stats. For construction projects, a project is commenced when
construction is begun. For planning projects, a planning project is commenced when the planning study 1s
begun. For non-infrastructure proJects that do not fall within any of the above categories, a project is considered
commenced on the date that WisDOT receives the first reimbursement request from the project sponsor, as
noted on form DT1713 in the 'Date Received' field.

o. The project sponsor acknowledges that the requisite project completion timeline for approved TAP projects will
be memorialized 1n a state-municipal agreement, and failure to comply with the apphcable proJect timehne will
Jeopardize federal funding.

p Federally-funded transportation construction projects, with the exception of sidewalks, are likely improvements
that benefit the public at large. Improvements of this type cannot generally be the basis of levying a special
assessment pursuant to Wis. Stat. $ 66.0703. Municipalities who wish to obtamn project funding via special
assessment levied against particular parcels should seek advice of legal counsel. See Hildebrand v. Menasha,
2011 WI App. 83.

Please confirm your understanding of the following project cond1t1on by typing your name, title and initials at the
bottom of this section. A Head of Government/Designee with fiscal authority for the project sponsor must 1n1t1al
thus section and sgn thus application. Sponsor consultant(s) should not initial or sign project applications.

I confirm that I have read and understand project conditions (a) through (o) above:
Name: GlenvE Moro Title: CtyEngweer
Accepted {please initial here): GEM

Fiscal Authorization and Signature
Application prepared by a consultant? IZI Yes D No
If yes, consultant information and signature required below

Consultant Company Name: GRAEF Company Location (City, State) Milwaukee, WI

Consultant Signature (electronic only): Mary Beth Pettit Date: January 26, 2022

NOTE: On Local Program projects, it is not permissible for a consultant to fill out applications gratis (or for a small
fee) for a municipality and then be selected to do the design work on a project unless the municipality erther.

IInlat} ,ontomhor 7)91 A-12



a.) uses a one-step QBS process with the scope of work to include the grant application and the design services,
if authorized; or

b.) uses a two-step QBS process with the scope of work for the first selection for the preparation of the grant
applcaton(s) and the second selection for the actual design(s)

In either case, all costs incurred prior to WisDOT project authorization are the responsibility of the
municipality. See FDM 8-5-3 for additional information: https:llwisconsindot.govl rdwy_[fdm[fd-08-
05.pgdf#fd8-5-3

Sponsor Agency· City of Franklin

Contact Person: Glen Morrow (Note: must be Head of Government or

Desgnee)

Title. City Engineer, Director of Public Works

Address: 9229 W. Loomis Road, Franklin, WI

Telephone: 414-425-7510

Email: gmorrow@franklinwi.gov
Only one project sponsor is allowed per project. As a representative of the project sponsor, the individual that
signs below is confirmmg that the information in this project application is accurate. A local official, not a
consultant, must sign the application. I understand that completion of this application does not guarantee
project approval forfederal funding.

Head of Government/Designee Signature (electronc only): Glen E. Morrow Date: 1/26/2022

Application and Attachments Checklist

Submit applications and attachments utilizing the contact information contained in the corresponding TAP Pre
Scopmg Application Instructions. Applicants must submit eligible applications on or before 5PM on January 28,
2022, and must include the following documents:

[8J A completed application in Microsoft Word format
[8J Narrative Response: maximum of three double-spaced pages, 11-point font size with 1-lnch margins
[8J Cost Estimate Detail as required mn the 'Project Costs and Dates' section of this application
[8J For infrastructure projects, an 8½ by 11 project map submitted in PDF format
[8J If available, a local resolution of support for the proposed proJect
[] Non-Profit Entities Only: A resolution rat1f1ed by "Secondary Municipal Agency" listed on page A-2,

certifying the Non-Profit as "Responsible for administration of local transportation safety programs"
D If right of way was acquired in anticipation of this project, attach a detailed hst of available, completed

project and parcel acquisition documentation (see page A-2)
[8J If proposed project crosses or runs parallel to a local road, street, or state or federal highway, attach

an existing typical cross-section of the roadway, showing right of way, travel lanes, shoulder and
sidewalk (if applicable) (see page A-2).

D SRTS Non-Infrastructure Applicants Only: School Demographics Information (Page A-7)
D SRTS Applicants Only: Description of Existing Planning Efforts (400 words or less)
[8J Up to three pages of additional attachments (photos, letters of support, etc)

FOR WISDOT USE ONLY-This information must be entered on the spreadsheet and on the application.

WisDOT Region comments on application, including eligibility concerns:

I Inlatrl ontomhor 991 A-13



Region Reviewer's Name:

Reviewer's Title.

I Indatol Sontomhor 7191 A-14

Date Received:



1. Project Description and overview

This trail will primarily be located on the now defunct Milwaukee Electric Railway and Light Company,
also referred to as the Milwaukee Interurban Lines. There was a rail segment between Hales Corners
and Waukesha that passed through St. Martins Junction. The trail will be in a rough graded, 100-ft +/
wide property that is now owned by Wisconsin Electric Power Co. (WE Energies). The Crty has an
agreement to locate an asphalt hiking and biking trail on the WE Energies property north of St. Martins
and they are agreeable to working out a similar arrangement for this proposed section along the west
side of S. 116th Street. This trail will connect to a self-funded trail to the north which will be constructed
in 2022. A new tratlhead wll also be constructed adjacent to the trail at Ryan Road.

Although the path will require minimal grading for placement of aggregate and asphalt, the current WE
Energies property has multiple culverts that must be inspected and perhaps replaced. Side slopes will
need to be flattened where needed to make them compliant with bicycle facility requirements

The existing segment is heavily used by commuters from Muskego to Milwaukee. SEWRPC has count
volumes as high as 1,694 for a July 2-15, 2018 time frame. It is anticipated that this trail will also be
heavily used by commuters. This project appears on SEWRPC's Vision 2050 Plan and is a missing
segment connecting Franklin to Burlington.

2. Project Planning & preparation & Local support

The City conducted a public involvement meeting (PIM) for the trail on July 22nd and has publicly shared
and presented the current efforts through on-going coordination and meetings wrth Franklmn.

3. Project Utility Connectivity
The City of Franklin has an agreement with the City of Muskego that once this trail is constructed, they
will extend the trail to connect to the existing trail on the west side of North Cape Road. The
connectivity that this trail provides is the bggest attraction, linking Burlington to Muskego, Muskego to
Franklin, and Franklin to Milwaukee Is a benefit to communities beyond Franklin. Once into Franklin, the
existing trail network that includes the Oak Leaf Trail, will bring users to numerous desired destinations
including the Rock Complex at 76th and Rawson, and nearby recreational areas such as Big Muskego
Lake. The City of Franklin is currently preparing a master plan that details how new trail connections
throughout the city will connect this new 116 Street trail on the west side of the city to the Oak Leaf
Trail within the Root RIver Parkway on the west side of the city.

4. Project Benefit
Once the City of Muskego connects this trail to the existing trail west of North Cape Road, there will be a
trail extending into Racine County. This project will fill mn the gap on the State's 2050 bike plan.

5. History of Sponsor Success

The City of Franklin 1s anxious to complete this missing link of trail as evident by their funding the design
efforts with the full intention to construct this project as early as possible.



I
I:

%£
8 .,
~ 3r
! ~
~ Iii ~
I %s~ e8~
~ ~~
l'l 36

I Ii
~~ IIi !~ gz

8 ~~
±
%

l :1

5

" z

I
l';
E

$ §
z

~

111111 I
9 e 3s slog

II I I II I

s

/
C

rl

/
I

/'-._
f L

w

I 8
□ ~

0

sj

( Hl.ll
)
□

N
N
CV')

J.S

z ..

z
0

Cf) 1-z () N
<( :::, N
_J 0::: 0
0.. I- N
Cf) Cf) co
en ZN
w O c:-0::: () co
CJ 0::: ::::Jooll'.'. LL -,
a.. l-

oz

:::! 0:::

z I- %z
I- ffi z:::::i w::;; .~ w z>z 0 u1$ 3a: 0

~
0.. LI · .....z (.) en0:::: 3:: NC w iwLL VJ }. O w
0 en .... )I::: N

LL 0.. <( 0
0 w N0 a: rz ::,
0..

~± u.. I- ..J0
z oz :eu :s ~ z0.. r

-oen o

II.
Illloa:
"

PROJECTID 2020•0291
WITH: NIA

COUNTY· MILWAUKEE



w •i
B:r
VI

I

"i::z
::,
8

~
I
!

r--J

1-. Iii

:
r;

I

4\,°
3)1, ,
s±.-.u



ESTIMATE OF QUANTITIES I
Title S 116th Street Trail Phase 2
Lim1ts Milwaukee County Line to Mayers Dr
County Milwaukee
Date 1/26/2022 17 47

I
Projot I.D. #1

Item # Description Qty Unit Cost Total Category
$0 0010

203.0100 Removing Small Pipe Culverts 16 EACH $ 500 $8,000 0010
205.0100 Excavation Common 7000 CY $ 35 $245,000 0010
208.0100 Borrow 1000 CY $ 25 $25,000 0010
305.0120 Base Aggregate Dense 11/4-lnch 4600 TON $ 35 $161,000 0010
460.5225 HMA Pavement 5LT58-28 S 2200 TON $ 110 $242,000 0010

Culvert Pipes 320 LF $ 100 $32,000 0010
Apron Endwalls 32 EACH $ 500 $16,000 0010

619 1000 Mobilization 1 LS $ 100,000 $100,000 0010
Erosion Control 1 LS $ 150,000 $150,000 0010
Split Rail Fence 100 LF $ 50 $5,000 0010
Trail Head Infrastructure 1 LS $ 40,000 $40,000 0010
Trail Head· Ameniites (i.e. rest rooms) 1 LS $ 250,000 $250,000 0010

I I I
Category 0010 Subtotal} $1,274,000

Contingency on 60% Plan Estimate] 20% $255,000

Cost Subtotal J $1,529,000
Construction Engineering Subtotal i 15% $229,000;

I Total I $1 758,000'
I

City Share ofConstruction Funding 30% $527,000
Federal Share ofConstruction Funding 70% $1,231,000 °

• Dollar Figures Shown in TAP Application
I

I I

Page 1of1



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-7583

A RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR THE
S. 116TH STREET TRAIL IN THE WISDOT 2020-2024

TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVES PROGRAM (TAP)

.-.i o ,•.e-o- o

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin values the quality of life for all ages of its residents; and

WHEREAS, trails are an important opportunity to provide exercise and opportunity to
traverse the City in a safe manner on a pedestrian and bicycle facility; and

WHEREAS, the S. 1 16 Street Trail has long been considered a potential project and has
appeared on numerous City, County, and Regional trail masterplans; and

WHEREAS, the trail has garnered support from other agencies including the City of
Muskego and Milwaukee County Parks; and

WHEREAS, the Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WISDOT) is soliciting
projects for the 2020-2024 Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP).

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the City
of Franklin that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby support the submittal of the S. 116" Street
Trail to WISDOT for consideration in the 2020-2024 Transportation Alternatives Program
(TAP).

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council on the 21st day of January, 2020
by Alderman Nelson.

Passed and adopted by the Common Council on the 21st day of January, 2020.

ATTEST:

4d±a.#degaloxa,
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES5 NOES0 ABSENT l (Aid. Taylor)



Letter of Support for City of Franklin 116th Trail Application Milwaukee County Parks
9480 Watertown Plank Rd.

Wauwatosa, WI 53226
(414) 257-PARK

Date:

To:

From.

Subject·

January 23"9 2020

TAP Committee

Jessica Wineberg, Milwaukee County Parks Trails Coordinator

Letter of Support for 116 Trail Development by City of Franklin

To Whom it May Concern:

Milwaukee County Parks supports the development of a trail along 116in the City of Franklin. This corridor
has been on the Milwaukee County Trails Network Plan for decades and is a good project for increasing
connectivity of the bike network in the southwestern portion of Milwaukee County. Milwaukee County Parks
supports the development of this and other trails on the Trails Network Plan by other agencies and
municipalities Through partnership and development of more trails, we can best serve the diverse
transportation and recreation needs of County residents and visitors

Sincerely,

Jessica Wineberg, Milwaukee County Parks Trails Coordinator

Milwaukee County Parks

MilwaukeeCounty Parks

countyparks.com

,,., , MILWAUKEE COUNTY

»:' PARKSn g'



BLANK PAGE



APPRO"stv

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

A RESOLUTION FOR THE DESIGN AND
IMPLEMENTATION OF THE STREAMBANK AND

WETLAND RESTORATION ON PRIVATE PROPERTIES
IN THE 7300 BLOCK OF S. 35TH STREET

(TKN 761-9992-002, 761-9994-005, & 761-9997-003)
IN COOPERATION WITH

ROOT-PIKE WATERSHED INITIATIVE NETWORK

MEETING DATE
February 1, 2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.12.

BACKGROUND
Historically, a section the East Branch of the Root River was truncated and relocated to
accommodate the Rawson Homes subdivision (south of W. Rawson Avenue, between S. 35th
Street and S. 37th Street). This stream continues to fight its way back to its original course which
endangers S. 35th Street. Through the years, DPW has tried to protect the road by armoring key
sections of the stream bank with recycled concrete sidewalk sections, and those efforts are failing.
The stream bank is currently within a few feet of the S. 35th Street pavement. Not only does this
endanger the road pavement, but is a safety concern if a car were to leave the pavement into the
ditch. Placing a guard rail along this section would be very expensive and have minimal
effectiveness as the eroding ditch does not provide adequate, long term anchoring.

These parcels on the east side of the road that contain the stream are owned by Northwestern
Mutual Life Insurance Company (NWM). The natural resources contained in the vicinity of the
streambank make this area undevelopable. NWM has expressed an interest in partnering with the
City to resolve the concerns to S. 35th Street.

Root-Pike Watershed Initiative Network (Root-Pike WIN) is a 501(c)3 non-profit formed in 1998
by the Department of Natural Resources and other watershed stakeholders, including Franklin, to
restore, protect and sustain the five watersheds of Southeastern Wisconsin. Root-Pike Watershed
Initiative Network brings municipalities, private citizens, donors and environmental experts from
the Root-Pike basin together to improve water quality, restore natural habitats, reduce storm water
runoff and create places where people want to live, work and invest. Franklin utilizes Root-Pike
WIN to satisfy some of our MS4 stormwater requirements.

ANALYSIS
Staff has approached Root-Pike WIN and Foth Engineering to assist in solving this issue. It is
believed that a wider encompassing project would not only protect the integrity of S. 35th Street,
but also provide a sustainable solution that can increase stormwater infiltration, reduce bank
eros1on and channelization, reduce sediment loading, and enhance biodiversity through
revegetated habitats.

There are many grant opportunities available for these types of projects and Root-Pike WIN is
experienced in these types of projects. The attached resolution would authorize Root-Pike WIN
to work on this project as needed to bring it to fruition, specifically to apply for grants to secure
the funds necessary to complete the design and implementation. Any fees paid directly by the
City of Franklin are yet to be determined and would be discussed as needed prior to proceeding
with Franklin reimbursable activities.



This issue is planned to be discussed at the Franklin Environmental Commission on February 23,
2022.

OPTIONS
Accept or Reject Resolution authorizing Root-Pike WIN to work to identify and acquire funding
on the City's behalf for this project(s).

FISCAL NOTE
Not determined at this time. To be discussed as opportunities are identified. This resolution does
not commit City to fund and/or implement the wetland restoration, even if the design work is fully
funded and finalized into construction documents with no financial assistance from the City.

The draft capital improvement plan has $103,000 anticipated for expenditures in 2023.

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED
Authorize Resolution 2021- a resolution for the design and implementation of the
streambank and wetland restoration on private properties in the 7300 block of S. 35th Street (TKN
761-9992-002, 761-9994-005, & 761-9997-003) in cooperation with Root-Pike Watershed
Initiative Network.

And direct Staff to present and gather additional input at the February 23, 2022 Environmental
Commission meeting.

Engineering: GEM



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-----

RESOLUTION FOR THE DESIGN AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE
STREAMBANK AND WETLAND RESTORATION ON PRIVATE PROPERTIES IN THE
7300 BLOCK OF S. 35TH STREET (TKN 761-9992-002, 761-9994-005, & 761-9997-003)

IN COOPERATION WITH ROOT-PIKE WATERSHED INITIATIVE NETWORK

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin is interested in protecting the integrity of a public road
in the 7300 block of S. 35" Street from a meandering streambank on private properties owned by
Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance Company (TKN 761-9992-002, 761-9994-005, & 761-
9997-003); and

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin is interested in providing a sustainable solution that not
only protects the public roadway, but can increase stormwater infiltration, reduce bank erosion
and channelization, reduce sediment loading, and enhance biodiversity through revegetated
habitats; and

WHEREAS, Root-Pike Watershed Initiative Network is a 50l(c)(3) non-profit
organization that initiated and implements the Root River Watershed Restoration Plan; and

WHEREAS, Root-Pike Watershed Initiative Network is experienced in identifying and
acquiring grant and other financial aid funding necessary to complete the design and
implementation for these types ofprojects; and

WHEREAS, Root-Pike Watershed Initiative Network is willing to provide grant writing,
conduct site tours, facilitate the obtaining of professional engineering services, act as the project
manager to obtain professional services to develop the plans, estimate, schedule and manage the
grant funds received to complete the wetland design, permitting, and implementation; and

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin works cooperatively with Root-Pike Watershed
Initiative Network through the Southeastern Wisconsin Clean Water Network and the
Department of Natural Resources to reduce stormwater runoff impacts as part of the City of
Franklin's stormwater permit requirement; and

WHEREAS, there is no commitment by the City of Franklin to fund and/or implement
the streambank restoration project even if the design work is fully funded and finalized into
construction documents with no financial assistance from the City; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Franklin will cooperatively
work with Root-Pike Watershed Initiative Network, and HEREBY AUTHROIZES its Executive
Director to develop grant applications to act on behalf of the City of Franklin to:

1. Create and submit grant applications to various grant sources with City of Franklin's
Engineer's input review and final approval; and

2. Facilitate the design and implementation of the project in accordance with the rules,
regulations and wishes ofCity of Franklin and the Department ofNatural Resources; and

3. Take the necessary action to undertake, direct and complete the approved design provided
by the various potential funding sources under the supervision of City of Franklin's
Engineer; and

4. Serve as the project manager and fiscal agent for the design and implementation phases of
the streambank and wetland restoration on private property; and



5. Create bid documents, conduct the bidding process, and make the final bid award under
the guidance and final approval of the City of Franklin; and

6. Oversee the implementation activities and vendor contracts m accordance with the
bidding and procurement regulations of the City of Franklin.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Root-Pike Watershed Initiative
Network is required to obtain written authorization from Common Council prior to performing
any work that requires reimbursement from the City ofFranklin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin the
day of 2022, by Alderman

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the
day of2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



"±,,
REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION

ARESOLUTION FORTHE DESIGNAND
IMPLEMENTATIONOF THE WETLAND

RESTORATIONAT WATERTOWERPARK
8120 S. LOVERS LANE ROAD (TKN 801-9986-000)

IN COOPERATIONWITH
ROOT-PIKE WATERSHED INITIATIVE NETWORK

MEETING DATE
February 1, 2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.13.

BACKGROUND
The City is developing a park located at 8120 S. Lovers Lane Road. The park features are not
anticipated to be constructed for at least a few years to allow for the construction of a new water
storage facility. This parkland has significant wetland features that could be a central feature to a
passive park design.

Root-Pike Watershed Initiative Network (Root-Pike WIN) is a 501(c)3 non-profit formed in
1998 by the Department of Natural Resources and other watershed stakeholders, including
Franklin, to restore, protect and sustain the five watersheds of Southeastern Wisconsin. Root
Pike Watershed Initiative Network brings municipalities, private citizens, donors and
environmental experts from the Root-Pike basin together to improve water quality, restore
natural habitats, reduce storm water runoff and create places where people want to live, work and
invest. Franklin utilizes Root Pike WIN to satisfy some of our MS4 stormwater requirements.

ANALYSIS
Staff has discussed the wetland complexes and potential for the Water Tower Park with Root
Pike WIN. There are many grant opportunities available for these types of projects and Root
Pike WIN is experienced in these types of projects. The attached resolution would authorize
Root-Pike WIN to work on this project as needed to bring it to fruition, specifically to apply for
grants to secure the funds necessary to complete the design and implementation. Any fees paid
directly by the City of Franklin are yet to be determined and would be discussed as needed prior
to proceeding with Franklin reimbursable activities.

This issue is planned to be discussed at the Franklin Environmental Commission on February 23,
2022.

OPTIONS
Accept or Reject Resolution authorizing Root-Pike WIN to work to identify and acquire funding
on the City's behalf for this project(s).

FISCAL NOTE
Not determined at this time. To be discussed as opportunities are identified. This resolution
does not commit City to fund and/or implement the wetland restoration, even if the design work
is fully funded and finalized into construction documents with no financial assistance from the
City.



COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED
Authorize Resolution 2021- a resolution for the design and implementation of the
wetland restoration at Water Tower Park 8120 S. Lovers Lane Road (TKN 801-9986-000) in
cooperation with Root-Pike Watershed Initiative Network.

And direct Staff to present and gather additional input at the February 23, 2022 Environmental
Commission meeting.

Engineering: GEM



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-----

RESOLUTION FOR THE DESIGN AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE
WETLAND RESTORATION AT WATER TOWER PARK

8120 S. LOVERS LANE ROAD (TKN 801-9986-000)
IN COOPERATION WITH ROOT-PIKE WATERSHED INITIATIVE NETWORK

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin is interested in removing invasive species, restoring the
wetlands, increasing stormwater infiltration, enhancing biodiversity through revegetated habitats,
providing a new trail system, and creating a place where people want to be at the future Water
Tower Park located at 8120 S. Lovers Lane Road (TKN 801-9986-000); and

WHEREAS, Root-Pike Watershed Initiative Network is a 501(c)(3) non-profit
organization that initiated and implements the Root River Watershed Restoration Plan; and

WHEREAS, Root-Pike Watershed Initiative Network is experienced in identifying and
acquiring grant and other financial aid funding necessary to complete the design and
implementation for these types of projects; and

WHEREAS, Root-Pike Watershed Initiative Network is willing to provide grant writing,
conduct site tours, facilitate the obtaining of professional engineering services, act as the project
manager to obtain professional services to develop the plans, estimate, schedule and manage the
grant funds received to complete the wetland design, permitting, and implementation; and

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin works cooperatively with Root-Pike Watershed
Initiative Network through the Southeastern Wisconsin Clean Water Network and the
Department of Natural Resources to reduce stormwater runoff impacts as part of the City of
Franklin's stormwater permit requirement; and

WHEREAS, there is no commitment by the City of Franklin to fund and/or implement
the wetland restoration even if the design work is fully funded and finalized into construction
documents with no financial assistance from the City; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Franklin will cooperatively
work with Root-Pike Watershed Initiative Network, and HEREBY AUTHROIZES its Executive
Director to develop grant applications to act on behalf of the City ofFranklin to:

1. Create and submit grant applications to various grant sources with City of Franklin's
Engineer's input review and final approval; and

2. Facilitate the design and implementation of the project in accordance with the rules,
regulations and wishes of City of Franklin and the Department ofNatural Resources; and

3. Take the necessary action to undertake, direct and complete the approved design provided
by the various potential funding sources under the supervision of City of Franklin's
Engineer; and

4. Serve as the project manager and fiscal agent for the design and implementation phases of
the wetland restoration at Water Tower Park; and

5. Create bid documents, conduct the bidding process, and make the final bid award under
the guidance and final approval of the City of Franklin; and



6. Oversee the implementation activities and vendor contracts 1n accordance with the
bidding and procurement regulations of the City ofFranklin.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Root-Pike Watershed Initiative
Network is required to obtain written authorization from Common Council prior to performing
any work that requires reimbursement from the City of Franklin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City ofFranklin the
day of 2022, by Alderman _

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the
day of,2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



APPROV~

REPORTS&
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Resolution Declaring Official Intent to
Reimburse Expenditures up to $11.05 Million,

from Proceeds of Future Borrowing

MEETING DATE
February 1, 2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.14.
Background
The 2022 Budget includes debt proceeds for the following initiatives: $1.65 Million for TIO #6,
Bear Development, to complete the underground utilities to support future development; $6
Million for TIO #8, Franklin Corporate Park, for the initial infrastructure as well as developer
obligations; and $3.4 Million for Water Utility infrastructure, including the newwater tower.
Projects to be financed by the debt issues will begin at various times of the year, while the
actual debt issues funding the projects will be scheduled later in the year.

Analysis
The Common Council needs to adopt a Declaration of Intent to reimburse expenditures from
debt proceeds for any projects initiated prior to the debt sale. Absent a reimbursement
resolution, the City would be unable to utilize future borrowed funds for costs already paid.

Prior to the Debt Sale, the projects would use available City cash reserves to pay for the
expenditures. Because the City Financing will take advantage of tax-exempt provisions of the
internal Revenue Codewhen applicable, the City must declare its intent to reimburse itself for
project expenditures incurred prior to the Debt sale.

By adopting this resolution, the Council is committing to a future bond sale for the following
projects:

• TIO# 6 - $1.65 Million - Underground utilities to support future development;
• TIO #8 - $6 Million -- Initial infrastructure and developer obligations; and
• Water Utility - $3.4 Million -Water Utility infrastructure.

Recommendation

The Director of Finance & Treasurer recommends the Common Council adopt the proposed
resolution, declaring its intent to reimburse the City from proceeds for expenditures incurred
from the projects prior to the debt sale.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion adopting Resolution No. 2022-__, A Resolution Declaring Official Intent to
Reimburse Expenditures Up to $11.05 Million, From Proceeds of Future Borrowing.

Finance Dept. - Bryan



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2022----

RESOLUTION DECLARING OFFICIAL INTENT TO REIMBURSE EXPENDITURES UP
TO $11.05 MILLION, FROM PROCEEDS OF FUTURE BORROWING

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin (the "Issuer") plans to
undertake the following projects in 2022: underground utility improvements in TID # 6, in the
amount of $1.65 Million; infrastructure improvements and development agreement obligations in
TID #8, in the amount of$6 Million; and Water Utility infrastructure improvements in the amount
of $3.4 Million (the 'Projects); and

WHEREAS, the City expects to finance the Projects on a long-term basis by issuing tax
exempt notes or other obligations (collectively, the ''Notes"); and

WHEREAS, because the Notes will not be issued prior to commencement of the Projects,
the Issuer must provide interim financing to cover costs ofthe Projects incurred prior to receipt of
the proceeds of the Notes; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the Issuer deems it to be necessary, desirable, and in
the best interests of the Issuer to advance moneys from its funds on an interim basis to pay the
costs of the Projects until the Notes are issued.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council ofthe City
of Franklin that:

Section 1. Expenditure of Funds. The Issuer shall make expenditures as needed from its
funds on hand to pay the cost of the Projects until proceeds ofthe Notes become available.

Section 2. Declaration of Official Intent. The Issuer hereby officially declares its intent
under Treasury Regulation Section 1.150-2 to reimburse said expenditures with proceeds of the
Notes, the principal amount ofwhich is not expected to exceed $11.05 Million.

Section 3. Unavailability ofLong-Term Funds. No funds for payment ofthe Projects from
sources other than the Notes are, or are reasonably expected to be, reserved, allocated on a long
term basis, or otherwise set aside by the Issuer pursuant to its budget or financial policies.

Section 4. Public Availability ofOfficial Intent Resolution. The Resolution shall be made
available for public inspection at the office of the Issuer's Clerk within 30 days after its approval
in compliance with applicable State law governing the availability of records of official acts
including Subchapter II of Chapter 19, and shall remain available for public inspection until the
Notes are issued.

Section 5. Effective Date. This Resolution shall be effective upon its adoption and
approval.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,2022.



Passed at a regular meeting ofthe Common Council ofthe City ofFranklin this day
of , 2022.---·

APPROVED:

Stephen R Olson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF FRANKLIN

Fund 44 TID· 6 Baar Developmt-Loom1s/Ryan/S:::,

2022 2022 2021 2021 2020 2019
MAYOR RECOMMEND DEPT REQUEST PROJECTED ORIGINAL ACTIVITY ACTIVITY

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET ACTIVITY BUDGET

Dept 0000 - GENERAL
37,50044-0000-4011 * GENERAL PROPERTY TAX 37,500 0 0 0 0

44-0000-4012 PROPERTY TAX-SPECIAL-PAY IN LIEU 572,800 572,800 0 0 0 0

44-0000-4717 BOND PROCEEDS INTEREST INCOME 0 0 400 0 28,194 120,883

44-0000-4781 REFUNDS/REIMBURSEMENTS 0 0 100 0 0 0

44-0000-4911 BOND PROCEEDS 1,650,000 1,650,000 0 3,000,000 3,045,000 5,809,037
44-0000-4913 BOND £ NOTE PREMIUM 0 0 0 0 15,871 273,320

44-0000-5593 TRSFER TO DEBT SERVICE FUND 34 377,302 377,302 90,380 342,850 0 0
44-0000-5601 BOND/NOTE ISSUANCE COST 75,000 75,000 0 50,000 62,827 109,100

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - O000 - GENERAL 1,807,998 1,807,998 (89,880) 2,607,150 3,026,238 6,094,140

Dept 0141 - CITY CLERK
44-0141-5199 ALLOCATED PAYROLL COST 480 480 500 480 600 0
44-0141-5421 OFFICIAL NOTICES/ADVERTISING 0 0 0 0 0 43

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- 0141 - CITY CLERK (480) (480) (500) (480) (600) (43)

Dept 0147 - ADMINISTRATION
44-0147-5199 ALLOCATED PAYROLL COST 480 480 500 480 600 0

NET OF REVENUE S/APPROPRIATIONS- 0147 - ADMINISTRA (480) (480) (500) (480) (600) 0

Dapt 0151 - FINANCE
44-0151-5199 ALLOCATED PAYROLL COST 5,160 5,160 7,000 6,960 5,200 0
44-0151-5421 OFFICIAL NOTICES/ADVERTISING 0 0 0 0 256 128

'.t-0151-5492 CERT OF DEPOSIT ORIG FEE 0 0 0 0 0 2,959
-0151-6453 TIF CERTIFICATION l!'lliE 150 150 150 150 1,150 1,000

kr oF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 0151 - FINANCE (5,310) (5,310) (7,150) (7,110) (6,606) (4,087)

Dept 0152 - AUDITOR
44-0152-5213 + ANNUAL AUDIT SERVICES 4,400 4,400 0 0 0 0

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 0152 - AUDITOR (4,400) (4,400) 0 0 0 0

Dept 0161 - LEGAL SERVICES
44-0161-5212 LEGAL SERVICES S,000 5,000 10,000 0 22,136 8,640

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 0161 - LEGAL SERV (5,000) (5,000) (10,000) 0 (22,136) (8,640)

Dept 0321 - ENGINEERING
44-0321-5199 ALLOCATED PAYROLL COST 11,000 11,000 21,000 21,060 23,040 0
44-0321-5219 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0 0 0 0 144,681 0

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- 0321 - ENGINEERIN (11,000) (11,000) (21,000) (21,060) (167,721) 0

Dept 0331 - HIGHWAY
44-0331-5823 STREET EXT/IMPROVEMT/CONSTRUCTIO 0 0 265,000 3,000,000 3,048,810 0
44-0331-5829 STORM SEWER CONSTRUCTION 0 0 0 0 1,653,010 0

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- 0331 - HIGHWAY 0 0 (265,000) (3,000,000) (4,701,820) 0

Dept 0641 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
44-0641-5199 ALLOCATED PAYROLL COST 4,000 4,000 12,500 12,500 700 0
44-0641-5219 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0 0 0 0 16,500 0

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- 0641 - ECONOMIC D (4,000) (4,000) (12,500) (12,500) (17,200) 0

Dept 0755 - WATER CONNECTION
44-0755-5830 WATER EXTENSION/IMPROVEMENT 1,500,000 1,500,000 0 0 1,343,448 1,065,176

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- 0755 - WATER CONN (1,500,000) (1,500,000) 0 0 (1,343,448) (1,065,176)

Dept 0756 - SEWER CONNECTION
44-0756-5826 SANITARY SEWER CONSTRUCTION 0 0 0 0 1,480,671 0

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- 0756 - SEWER CONN 0 0 0 0 (1,480,671) 0



BUDGETer
2022 2022 2021 2021 2020 2019

MAYOR RECOMMEND DEPT REQUEST PROJECTED ORIGINAL ACTIVITY ACTIVITY

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET ACTIVITY BUDGET

Dept 0000 - GENERAL
40-0000-4011 " GENERAL PROPERTY TAX 89,400 89,400 0 0 0 0
40-0000-4911 BOND PROCEEDS 6,000,000 6,000,000 0 6,000,000 0 0
40-0000-5601 BOND/NOTE ISSUANCE COST 100,000 100,000 0 100,000 0 0
40-0000-6505 " INTERFUND INTEREST 2,500 2,500 0 0 312 0

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 0000 - GENERAL 5,986,900 5,986,900 0 5,900,000 (312) 0

Dept 0141 - CITY CLERJC
40-0141-5199 ALLOCATED PAYROLL COST 480 480 500 480 0 0

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- 0141 - CITY CLERK (480) (480) (500) (480) 0 0

Dept 0147 - ADMINISTRATION
40-0147-5199 ALLOCATED PAYROLL COST 480 480 500 480 0 0

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 0147 - ADMINISTRA (480) (480) (500) (480) 0 0

Dept 0151 - FINANCE
40-0151-5199 ALLOCATED PAYROLL COST 6,960 6,960 7,000 6,960 0 0
40-0151-5421 OFFICIAL NOTICES/ADVERTISING 0 0 0 0 16 0
40-0151-6453 TIF CERTIFICATION l!'EE 150 150 150 150 1,000 0

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- 0151 - FINANCE (7,110) (7,110) (7,150) (7,110) (1,016) 0

Dept 0152 - AUDITOR
40-0152-5213 ANNUAL AUDIT SERVICES 1,100 1,100 200 0 0 0

9ST OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 0152 - AUDITOR (1,100) (1,100) (200) 0 0 0

tpt 0161 - LEGAL SERVICES
40-0161-5212 LEGAL SERVICES 2,500 2,500 400 0 8,357 0

NET OF REVENUE S/APPROPRIATIONS - 0161 - LEGAL SERV (2,500) (2,500) (400) 0 (8,357) 0

Dept 0321 - ENGINEERING
40-0321-5199 ALLOCATED PAYROLL COST 45,000 45,000 21,000 21,060 0 0

NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 0321  ENGINEER.IN (45,000) (45,000) (21,000) (21,060) 0 0

Dopt 0331 - HIGHWAY
40-0331-5216.3409 ENGINEERING SERVICES 0 0 30,000 0 23,134 0
40-0331-5219 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0 0 0 623,000 0 0
40-0331-5823 STREET EXT/IMPROVl!lMT/CONSTRUCTIO 5,750,000 5,750,000 35,000 5,150,500 0 0
40-0331-5845.3313 ELECTRIC LINE MOVE 0 0 0 0 15,393 0
NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS- 0331 - HIGHWAY (5,750,000) (5,750,000) (65,000) (5,773,500) (38,527) 0

Dept 0641 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
40-0641-5199 ALLOCATED PAYROLL COST 30,000 30,000 17,500 17,500 0 0
40-0641-5219 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0 0 0 0 15,000 0
40-0641-5701 DEVELOPMT INCENTIVE/GRANT 0 0 0 2,500,000 0 0
NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 0641 - ECONOMIC D (30,000) (30,000) (17,500) (2,517,500) (15,000) 0

ESTIMATED REVENUES - FUND 40 6,089,400 6,089,400 0 6,000,000 0 0
APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 40 5,939,170 5,939,170 112,250 8,420,130 63,212 0
NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 40 150,230 150,230 (112,250) (2,420,130) (63,212) 0

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE (175,461) (175,461) (63,211) (63,211) 0 0
ENDING FUND BALANCE (25,231) (25,231) (175,461) (2,483,341) (63,212) 0

DEPARTMENT 0000 GENERAL

4011 GENERAL PROPERTY TAX

FOOTNOTE AMOUNTS 89,400 89,400 0



Facility Improvments
Fiber Optic Cable

Fire Station Design

Highway Bldg design
Ind park lighting
City Lighting

Water Tower Park Design
Cascade Trail Design
Dog Amenities
Cncket PItch Field
Frisbee/DIsc Golf Course
Pleasant View Park improvm
Ryan Creek Trail Sections
St Martin of Tours Trail
Southwest Park Developmen
Trail Head on Sch Prop
116th St Trail

Misc Water Projects
Water Main -S 92 to Hwy 100

Connection to Milw Water W

Water Tower hwy 100

Misc Sewer Extension
Sewer Main - Ryan Rd & 76th

Contingency

Total Projects

Net Res (Expenditure)

Beginning Fund Balance
Ending Fund Balance

350,000
1,371,200 APRA

211,000 Fd 27

549,500 Fd 27
200,000
100,000

100,000
38,213
15,000
20,000
20,000

120,000
200,000
179,308
350,000
400,000
810,285 Impact fees

Grant

200,000 Fd 22
Fd22
Fd272.s
Fd 22
Fd 27

500,000 Fd 22
Fd 27

140,000

13,690,006

285

1,371,200

52,750

137,375

47,000
23,692
5,400
7,200

56,400
124,000
111,171
126,000
248,000
155,177
560,000

200,000

Net Appropriation

75,000
575,000

3,000
653,000

350,000

158,250

412,125
200,000
100,000

53,000
14,521
9,600

12,800
20,000
63,600
76,000
68,137

224,000
152,000
655,108
(560,000)

104,625 592,875
592,8~5 (592,875)

2,772,350 4,345,650
775,950 (775,950)

3,569,700 (3,569,700)

500,000

140,000

11,540,865 2,149,141

(1,496,141)

1,497,592
1,451

City of Franklin
Capital Improvement Fund
Project List
Budget 2022

Appropnation
Project

Landfill Siting Resource
Transfers In from Impact Fees
Investment Income

Total Resources

Other Resource Value



Jaqueline Ziolkowski

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Attachments:

Paul Rotzenberg
Wednesday, October 6, 2021 10:51 AM
Glen Morrow
Mike Roberts; Jacqueline Ziolkowski
2022 Proposed Water Utility Budget for BWC Oct 19th Meeting
2022 Proposed Water Utility Budget.pdf

Attached is the Proposed 2022 Water Utility Budget. There is both a Summary and the detail as at
least one Commissioner was interested in the details last year.

This Budget does NOT have to be adopted at the Oct meeting, but should be adopted at the Nov
meeting.

I will repeat the 2022 Capital budget here as the Capital budget should accompany this operating
budget.

2022 Capital Budget:
Water Tewer - utility portion 
Design costs Wholesale supplier
Replacement truck
Water Meters
50 & Minnesota main extension
Software
Building Improvements
Total Capital

$2,772,350
592,875

25,000
149,400

69,500
33,000

14,400
$3,656,525

Debt financing
From Operating funds

$3,400,000
256,525

A full rate case will be needed in 2023, once the water tower is in service to provide the added
resources to service the tower project.

Paul Rotzenberg, CPA
Dir of Finance & Treasurer
City of Franklin, WI
414 427-7514

3eso
Franklin

wt ts c N s t



BLANK PAGE



APPROV~

REPORTS&
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2021-
2486, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2022

ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE CAPITAL OUTLAY
FUND TO PROVIDE $15,819.25 OF

APPROPRIATION AND FUNDING RESOURCE
FOR THE PURCHASE OF ONE ADDITIONAL

LUCAS-3 AUTOMATIC CHEST COMPRESSION
DEVICE, AND COMMON COUNCIL APPROVAL

TO PURCHASE THE DEVICE

MEETING DATE
February 1, 2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.15.

Background
Included in the 2022 Capital Improvement Fund is an appropriation for the purchase of two LUCAS-3
automatic chest compression devices. These devices were approved for purchase by the Council at
the January 18, 2022 Council Meeting. After that meeting, Mike Zimmerman offered to donate funds
for the purchase of an additional device for the Fire Department. The additional device will cost
$15,819.25.

Analysis
The donation offered for the third device to be purchased in 2022 will ensure that each of our medical
units is equipped with this life saving device, which benefits the City greatly since the donation offsets
the cost of the additional unit.

Recommendation

The Finance Director recommends the attached proposed Capital Improvement Fund budget
amendment to appropriate the funds, allowing the purchaseto take place and accounts for the donation
to fund the requested equipment.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 2022-__, An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2021-2486, An
Ordinance Adopting the 2022 Annual Budget for the Capital Outlay Fund to Provide $15,819.25
of Appropriation and Funding Resource for the Purchase of OneAdditional LUCAS-3 Automatic
Chest Compression Device, and Common Council approval to purchase the device.

Roll Call Vote Reauired
Finance Dept - Bryan



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO. 2022----

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2021-2486, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING
THE 2022 ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND TO PROVIDE

$15,819.25 OF APPROPRIATION AND FUNDING RESOURCE FOR THE PURCHASE OF
ONE ADDITIONAL LUCAS-3 AUTOMATIC CHEST COMPRESSION DEVICE

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Franklin adopted the 2022 Annual
Budgets for the City of Franklin on November 16, 2021;

WHEREAS; the City included in the 2022 Budget, and Council approved for purchase,
two LUCAS-3 automatic chest compression devices;

WHEREAS, having three LUCAS devices will ensure that each of our medical units is
equipped with this life saving device; and

WHEREAS, Michael Zimmerman, a business owner in the community, recently donated
$15,819.25 to cover the full cost ofa third LUCAS-3 automatic chest compression device that was
not included in the 2022 Capital Outlay appropriations;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City ofFranklin does hereby ordain as
follows:

Section 1 That the 2022 Budget for the Capital Outlay Fund be amended as follows:

Appropriation
LUCAS-3 Device Increase

Funding Source
Donation/Miscellaneous Revenue Increase

$15,819.25

$15,819.25

Section 2 Pursuant to §65.90(5)(a), Wis. Stats., the City Clerk is directed to post a notice of
this budget amendment within fifteen days of adoption of this ordinance on the
City's website.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this day of2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R Olson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



so""2
REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Committee of the Whole
Recommendations

MEETING DATE

02-01-22

ITEM NUMBER

G.16.
Recommendation from the Committee of the Whole Meeting of January 31, 2022:

(a) Demonstration of the LUCAS Device (Lund University Cardiac Assist System) by
the Fire Department.

(b) Kueny Architects, LLC Status Update Concerning the Department of Public Works
and Fire Needs Assessment Services Project.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

As directed

CITY CLERK - slw



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE

shr COUNCIL ACTION 02/01/2022

LICENSES AND MISCELLANEOUS LICENSES ITEM NUMBER

PERMITS H.

See attached listing from meeting of February 1, 2022.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

As recommended by the License Committee.

CITY CLERK'S OFFICE



Ni '
Franklin

{+<

414-425-7500
License Committee

Agenda*
Alderman Room

February 01, 2022 - 5:45 p.m.

1. I Call to Order & Roll Call i Time:
2. I ADDlicant Interviews & Decisions

License Applications Reviewed l Recommendations

Type/ Time Applicant Information Approve Hold Deny

Operator Arora, Agam S
2021-2022 Walgreens #15020

New

Operator Klemm, Tyler M
2021-2022 Swiss Street Pub & Grill

New

Operator Zurstadt, Emma R
2021-2022 Walgreens #05459New

People Uniting for the Franklin Health Dept - Community Events
Betterment of Life and Fee Waivers: Park Permits
Investment in the Names & Date of the Events: Bike Rodeo - June 4, 2022,Community (PUBLIC)

Grant 9am- 12pm; Movie Night - August 12, 2022, 6-11pm;
Trunk or Treat- October 27, 2022, 5- 8pm; Drug Take-
Back Day - October 22, 2022, 9am - 12pm (no Fee Waiver
required).
Locations: Bike Rodeo and Movie Night - Lions Legend
Park 1, Legend Dr., Schlueter Pkwy.; Trunk or Treat
Library Parking Lot, Lions Legend Park 1, Legend Dr.,
Schlueter Pkwy.; Drug Take-Back Day- City Hall Lower
Parking Lot

Police Incident Reports Review of Police Incident Reports from February 13, 2021
from February 13, 2021 thru December 19, 2021 for Class A and B Establishments.thru December 19, 2021

Time
3. Adjournment
Notice 1s given that a majority of the Common Council may attend thus meeting to gather information about an agenda Item over which they have
decision-making responsrbtl1ty Thus may constitute a meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel Badke v Greendale Village Board, even
though the Common Council wll not take formal action at thus meeting

W I SC O N S I N



APPROVAL

hr
Bills

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Vouchers and Payroll Approval

MEETING DATE
2/01/2022

ITEM NUMBER

I

Attached are vouchers dated January 14, 2022 through February 1, 2022 Nos 186465 through Nos 186781 in the
amount of$ 1,601,020 64 Also included in this listing are EFT's Nos 4809 through Nos 4828 Library vouchers
totaling$ 20,725 04, Water Utility vouchers totaling$ 13,763 08 and Property Tax vouchers totaling$ 139,371 71
Voided checks in the amount of($ 20,832 16) are separately listed

Early release disbursements dated January 14, 2022 through January 31, 2022 in the amount of$ 1,034,078 87
are provided on a separate listing and are also Included mn the complete disbursement listing These payments have
been released as authorized under Resolution 2013-6920

The net payroll dated January 28, 2022 Is $ 438,457 85, previously estimated at$ 425,000 Payroll deductions
dated January 28, 2022 are$ 554,297 16, previously estimated at $ 608,000

The estimated payroll for February 11, 2022 Is $ 447,000 wth estimated deductions and matching payments of
$300,000

Attached 1s a list of property tax disbursements Check No 17934, EFT's Nos 401 through Nos 406 and Nos
297(S) through 299(S) dated January 14, 2022 through January 28, 2022 in the amount of$ 18,492,737 30
$ 138,832 49 represents refund reimbursements, $763 40 represent payments and $ 18,353,141 41 represent tax
settlements which were approved at the Council meeting on January 18, 2022 These payments have been
released as authorized under Resolution 2013-6920

Approval to release temporary investment transfer to ADM in the amount of$ 10,000,000 dated January 26, 2022

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Moton approving the following

• City vouchers with an ending date of February 1, 2022 in the amount of$ 1,601,020 64 and

• Payroll dated January 28, 2022 in the amount of$ 438,457 85 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of$ 554,297 16, plus City matching payments and

• Estimated payroll dated February 11, 2022 in the amount of$ 447,000 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of $ 300,000, plus City matching payments and

• Property Tax disbursements with an ending date of January 28, 2022 in the amount of$ 18,492,737 30 and

• Approval to release temporary investment transfer to ADM in the amount of$ 10,000,000

ROLL CALL VOTE NEEDED

Finance Dept - KM


